

CMS

DIGITAL EXPÉRIENCE MANAGEMENT (DXM)

Master Admin Guide

Tuesday, March 12, 2019

V3



CONTENTS

Introduction	8
Conventions Used in this Document	8
Disclaimer	8
The Events Content App	9
Accessing Events	9
How to Perform a Filtered Search	10
Using the Column Sorting Options	12
Unhiding a Hidden Column	12
Using the Actions Buttons	13
How to Edit an Event	14
Basic Fields	15
Show	16
Event Occurrences	16
How to Access Event Occurrences	16
Email Templates - Email Cancellation Template	
Available Tokens	
How to Create a New Event	19
Event Topics	
Accessing and Editing the Event Topics Page	
How to Edit an Event Topic	
How to Create a New Event Topic	25
Accessing and Editing Event Types	26
How to Create a New Event Type	27
Registrant Search	28
To Access the Registrant Search Page	28
Using the Event Registrant Edit Screen	29
About Removing a Registrant from an Event	30
How to Enable or Disable the Add Additional Registrant Label and Button	31
How to Enable or Disable the Event Cart Add Additional Registrant Section and Button	32
Registration Form	
How to Access the Registration Form Page	34
How to Create a Registration Form	35
Adding a New Left or Right Column to Your Registrant Form	
Settings	39
Search Setting Options on This Page	39
Detail Settings Ontions on This Page	40
SEO Settings Options on This Page	40
Dynamic Columns	42
Events Reporting Enhancements	45
Reports	47
Report Search/Filter Ontions	
Enter Your Criteria Using the Event Options	48
Event Occurrence Ontions	49
Report Settings	
To Run an Existing Report	50 50
Available Fields	50 50
Custom Event Registration Fields	50 52
How to Create a New Event Report	52 52
The Providers Content Ann	55 5/
How to Access the Provider List	
Searching for Providers	54 55



How to Create a New Provider	56
How to Edit Providers	58
How to Add and Edit Location Content	59
Provider Profile Location Fields	60
How to Exclude Specific Locations from Displaying on Provider List and Provider Detail Pages	61
The Data Tab Drop-Down Menu	62
Genders Screen Example	63
The Provider Settings Screen	64
Provider Name Settings	66
Dynamic Columns - Providers	67
To Access Dynamic Columns	67
To Create a New Custom Field	69
Additional Contextual Configuration Fields	70
How to Remove a Field	72
The Blog Posts Field	73
Provider Ratings	74
How to Configure Provider Ratings for Your Page	74
The Locations Content App	80
How to Access the Locations Content App	80
The Locations List Page	81
How to Create a New Location	82
The New Location Screen	84
Working with Location Types	85
To Access Location Types	85
	86
To Access Insurances	86
	8/
	88
TO Access Location Settings	88
Detail Settings	00
SEO Sellings	09
Mapping Settings	90
CIVIS Integration Settings	91
Site Secret Settings	91
Dynamic Columns Locations	91
To Access Dynamic Columns	91
To Create a New Dynamic Column	92
Create Your Custom Field Using These Ontions:	90
Additional Contextual Configuration Fields	90 Q3
The Location Description Field	00 95
How to Remove a Field	96
How to Add Insurances and Services to the Locations Search List and Detail Widgets	96
Undated Locations List and Detail Widget Options	
How to Access the Location Results Widget	
Default Query.	100
Search Settings	101
How to Use the Conditional Field	105
The Services Content App	109
To Access the Services Content App	109
The Services Page	111
To Create a New Service	112



Services Settings	114
SEO Settings	115
Content Apps - API Integration - Events, Overview	117
Request Method and Content-Type	117
Common Response Codes	117
Working with XML in Request/Response Bodies	118
Request/Response NULL Fields	118
Namespaces	118
Null Fields vs. Empty Nodes When Updating Data	119
Authentication	120
Events	120
Endpoint URL	120
Request	121
Paging (Optional)	121
Response	122
Get Specific Event Request	123
Request by Internal ID	123
Request by External ID	123
Response	123
Add Event Request	125
Request	125
equired Fields	126
Update Event Request	126
Request	126
Get Specific Event Occurrence Request	127
Request By Internal Id	127
Request by External ID	127
Response	128
Add Event Occurrence Request	128
Remuest	128
Request Body	128
Required Fields	129
Undate Event Occurrence Request	130
Remuest	130
Get Event Registrants	131
Request Based on Start Date	131
Response	131
Get Specific Event Occurrence Registrants	132
Request by Internal Id	132
Request by External ID	132
Response	133
Get Event Registrant Changes	133
Request Based on Date	133
Response	134
Add Event Occurrence Registrant Reguest	135
Add by Internal ID	135
Request by External ID	135
Undate Event Occurrence Registrant Reguest	135
Lindate by Internal ID	135
Request by External ID	136
Delete Event Occurrence Registrant	136
Delete hv Internal ID	136
	100



Delete by External ID	
Content Apps - API Integration - Locations, Overview	137
Request Method and Content-Type	137
Common Response Codes	137
Working with XML in Request/Response Bodies	138
Request/Response NULL Fields	138
Namespaces	138
Null Fields vs. Empty Nodes When Updating Data	139
Authentication	140
Locations	141
Get All Locations Request	141
Request	141
Paging (Optional)	141
Response	141
Get Specific Location Request	142
Request by Internal Id	142
Request by External Id	142
Response	142
Add Location Request	145
Request	145
Required Fields	148
Update Location Request	148
Request	148
Get All Location Types Request	150
Request	150
Response	151
Get Location Type by Id Request	151
Request	151
Response	
Custom Content - Basic Configuration, Creating Custom Fields	153
To Complete Custom Field Configuration:	154
Creating Custom Content Types and Layouts	155
Basic Example of HTML Markup with Tokens:	159
Creating Custom Content Pages	160
Creating Custom List Widgets	
Custom List Query Configuration	171
Example: Accessing Locations List Widget Content Query Definition within Providers	171
G2 Search	173
Content App-Specific Search G2 Index Additions	173
Site Search Examples	173
Custom List Widget Example	175
Content Apps Configuration for Custom Content	176
To Configure the CMS Path	176
Content Apps – Location Settings	176
Custom Content Folder Path	177
Creating Sub-Sites in CMS and Filtering Content Apps Data Specific to Sub-Site	178
Personalization Setup Instructions, What Is WCO?	
WCO Targeting Groups	
How to Use Targeting Groups	
Targeting Rules	
Step-by-Step Workflow to Successful Testing and Targeting	
Add Targeting Groups to Page Element	



Create a Snippet	191
Add Variants into Your Snippet	192
Add Testing or Targeting Variants Menu	193
Overview of Steps	194
Key Concept.	194
Creating or Editing a Targeting Group	195
Adding Snippet to Targeting Group, or Associating Existing Snippet	196
How to Set up a Testing Variant	197
Setting Up Conversions	199
What are Snippets?	201
How to Build a Form	202
Actions	204
Buttons	204
Tabs	204
Placement	206
Next Step, Tabs, WCO Form Builder	206
Some Tips for Editing Wco Forms	209
Body	209
A Note about Updating Snippet Content after Editing	209
Reporting	210
Targeting Groups FAQ	212
Examples:	212
Examples:	212
Examples:	212
WCO Terminology	215
General Information about Cookies Stored by WCO	216
What is DQM?	217
DQM Capabilities	217
Accessibility in DQM, Definitions	218
What is WCAG?	218
What are Accessibility Levels A, AA and AAA?	218
What is a Benchmarking Score?	218
Why Is One Checkpoint Flagged for A Lot of My Pages?	218
What are Alt Tags and Why are They Important?	218
Other Common Compliance Errors	219
The Priority Flag	219
Where Can I Find Help Understanding a Checkpoint?	220
How Does the DQM Platform Work?	222
Accessing the DQM Panel	223
Accessing the DQM Website Dashboard from the CMS Application	224
Installing the DQM Page Checker in Chrome	225
Installing Page Checker in IE11	226
Using the DQM Page Checker	227
Viewing a Single Page in the DQM Dashboard from the CMS Authoring Environment	227
Another Point of View, the Website Dashboard Overview	228
Resolving an Issue by Topic in the Website Dashboard	234
Misspellings by Word	237
Taking Inventory	240
The Accessibility Tab	241
How Does DQM Check for Broken Links?	243
Other Reasons Links Can Be Marked as Broken	244
Excluding Links from the Link-Checking Process	244



Reducing Errors Reported in Website DQM Reports	245
Broken links	245
Cautionary Points	246
ADAM Content	246
Tips	247
Images from cross-site origin or external sources	248
Default Images Which are Used for Display or Decoration Only	248
Turning off or Suppressing Checkpoints	249
Other Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)	250
Managing Your SEO	251
Defining SEO	251
Who Manages the SEO?	251
SEO Keywords	251
Keyword Syntax	252
Enter the CODX V3 DOM	252
Browser Support	253
Logging In to the DOM	253
Installing the DOM Page Checker	253
Using the DOM Page Checker	255
Another Point of View, the Website Dashboard Overview (18)	255
Another Found of view, the website Dashboard Overview (10)	256
Managing Vour SEO Using the DOM Overview Dashboard Screen	256
Address Metadata Kowwords by Dago	250
Address Meladala Reywords by Fage	250
Moto Description Tog	209
Title Tea	209
Daga Titla	209
Page Tille	200
Pito Toxt	201
	201
Alt Taga	201
Your Domain Name	
Supported Browsers for CMS and Crownpeak	
Questions ?	264



INTRODUCTION

Healthgrades has aligned with Crownpeak as its exclusive Healthcare web technology partner to create the latest version of CMS. CMS was built leveraging the best of Crownpeak's capabilities with Healthgrades' innovation.

The Crownpeak tool has been built with the marketer in mind, which makes editing in CMS intuitive and easy. You can edit pages in a familiar browser mode without actually leaving the page. Most importantly, your marketing team and content editors will no longer be dependent on IT or web development support for simple site revisions. You are the editor, with no coding required.

However, if markup or style language is your preference, CMS's editing tools are every bit as intuitive and convenient.

CMS is designed with the marketer in mind. No coding required.

Conventions Used in this Document

References to screens and components of the application are in **Bolded Initial Caps**. Field values are represented in *italicized* text. *Italicized* text is also used for emphasis.

Disclaimer

The screen samples included in this document may vary from those you see in your software, based on configuration options selected. Screen samples are included in this documentation to serve as a guide and training tool and are not intended to represent actual replicas of screens in your software. Any patient names used in this documentation are fictitious.



THE EVENTS CONTENT APP

The **Events Content App** allows consumers to search for events that are associated with the health care organization. In this app, services and associated content can be customized based on the health care organization's preferences.

ACCESSING EVENTS

To access **Content App** components from anywhere within CMS, click the **Content Apps** icon from the **CMS** left menu, as shown in the screen image below.

The **Content Apps** console displays. From the **Content Apps** console, you can manage **Providers**, **Events**, **Locations** and **Services**. Each content app has its own menu of management items.

Click the **Events Content App** image, outlined in red below, or the **Events List** link from the **Events** menu to open the **Events** page.





HOW TO PERFORM A FILTERED SEARCH

The Events List page presents a multi-tabbed screen. Available tabs are listed below .:

- Home (Click this tab to return to the Content Apps console.)
- Data (Events opens to this tab, by default.)
- Settings
- Dynamic Columns
- Reports

E	vents							
Viev	w Events in	the System						
Key	word	(Create Date	Publish Da	ite	Event Topic	Even	t Түре
						Select an item to	filter. . Sel	ect an item to filter
Sta	tus	Location						
		 Select an item to 	filter. 🗸 🛛 🗸 🖉	lear Filter				
	Id	Title	Summary Description \checkmark	Location ~	Created Date ~	Updated Date ~	Enabled ~	Actions
	1	ACLS Preparatory Cour	A class that focuses on	Wiregrass Medical Center	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/13/2018 5:17:55 PM	true	100
	2	ACLS Today	A class that focuses on	Peachtree Hospital	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	7/25/2018 3:54:36 PM	true	100
	3	ACLS Renewal Course	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	true	100
	4	BLS for Healthcare Prov	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	true	100
	5	BLS for Healthcare Prov	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	true	100
	6	BLS Instructor Course	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	true	100
	7	BLS Instructor Renewal	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	true	100
	8	Heartsaver CPR	Hands-On Flexible Clas	Peachtree Hospital	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	11/2/2018 7:08:02 PM	true	100
								Remove Create Nev

From the **Home** tab page, you can perform a filtered search by category, narrowing your search results, as you make selections from the following:

- Keyword (free-text entry)
- Create Date (free-text entry)
- **Publish Date** (free-text entry)
- Event Topic (drop-down, listing topics such as: ACLS CPR NRP COURSES, ACLS Topic, Bariatrics Weight Loss Surgery, Bone Health, Cancer, Cancer Support Groups to Transplant Organ, Weight Management, Wellness Programs, Women's Health Education)
- **Event Type** (drop-down, listing topics such as: *Childbirth Education, Class, Fair or Health Fair, Free, Health Education, Online Class, Online Gift Shop, Screening, Seminar and Webinar*)
- Status (drop-down, options are: All, Enabled, Disabled)
- Location (drop-down, listing your hospital locations)

Search for an **Event** record by **Keyword**, **Create Date**, **Publish Date**, **Event Topic** (drop down list), **Event Type**, **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*) or **Location**), with options to **Apply** (run the filter based on your selections), or to **Clear Filter**.



- ID (This field is generated by the system on creation of a new event.)
- **Title** (This is the title of the event.)
- Summary Description (This is the description of the event that was entered on creation.)
- Location (This is the location where the event will be held.)
- Created Date (This is the date the event record was created.)
- **Updated Date** (This is the date the event record was updated.)
- Enabled (If enabled, this event is viewable and searchable.)
- Actions (Applicable to the selected record, or row, these are: Edit, Copy Event or Copy Event and Occurrence.)



USING THE COLUMN SORTING OPTIONS

There are filtering options for each column, or sortable field of the record. **Sort Ascending**, **Sort Descending** and **Hide Column**. Once a column has been sorted, the **Remove Sort** option becomes available.

Crea	ted	Date 👻 👋
2/6/	ĮΞ	Sort Ascending
2/6/	ţĘ	Sort Descending
2/6/	×	Remove Sort
10/2	×	Hide Column

UNHIDING A HIDDEN COLUMN

To unhide a hidden column, select Edit > Publishing Refresh > Current.

	INFLUENCE HEALTH	File	Edit	View		
	Site Client	•	Publis	hing Refre	esh 🕨	Current
	Home Data 🚽	- Set	Cut		Ctrl+X	"root"
.11	Events		Copy Copy I	Path	Ctrl+C Ctrl+Shift+C	Asset does not contain workflow.
	View Events in th	ie Syster	Clone Paste		Ctrl+Shift+L Ctrl+V	There are no actions available.
wco			Check	Snelling		Sena io



USING THE ACTIONS BUTTONS

Under the **Actions** column are additional options that are applicable to a selected record, or row: **Edit**, **Copy Event** or **Copy Event and Occurrence**.

To select a record to perform an action on, use the checkbox button to the left of the record, then select the desired **Actions** option.

			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								1	÷
2	ite Cl	ient 🔻										
	Home	e Data -	Settings Dynamic C	columns Reports								<
	Εv	ente										
		CIII.3	<u>.</u>									
	View	Events in th	e System									
	Keyv	vord	C	reate Date	Publish Da	ite		Event Topic		Event Type		
								Select an item to fi	lter	Select an item to filter		
	Statu	IS	Location									
			 Select an item to 	filter. 🗸 🛛 🕇 T Apply 🛛 🛇 C	ear Filter							
										Actions		
		Id	Title ~	Summary Description ~	Location	Created Date ~	Updat	ted Date 🗸	Enabled	d		
		1	ACLS Preparatory Cour	A class that focuses on	Wiregrass Medical Center	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/13	2018 5:17:55 PM	true	100		
		2	ACLS Today	A class that focuses on	Peachtree Hospital	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	7/25/2	018 3:54:36 PM	true	100		
		3	ACLS Renewal Course	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2	016 8:35:52 PM	true	100		
		4	BLS for Healthcare Prov	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2	016 8:35:52 PM	true	100		
		5	BLS for Healthcare Prov	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2	016 8:35:52 PM	true	1 D M		
		6	BLS Instructor Course	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2	016 8:35:52 PM	true	* E @		
		7	BLS Instructor Renewal	A class that focuses on		12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	12/7/2	016 8:35:52 PM	true			
		8	Heartsaver CPP	Hands-On Elevible Clas	Peachtree Hospital	12/7/2016 8:35:52 PM	11/2/2	018 7:08:02 PM	true			
		0	Healtsaver of IX	Hands-Off Flexible Clas	r eachtree riospitar	12/1/2010 0.33.321 14	11/2/2	0107.00.021 M	uue			_



HOW TO EDIT AN EVENT

With your record selected, click the **Edit** (pencil icon) as depicted in the <u>Using the Actions Buttons</u> topic. The selected event displays. The fields are similar to the **Create New** event screen. In order for this event to appear in the search filter options, ensure that the event is enabled, has a publish date and has at least one occurrence.

Si Si	ite Client V		
ľ	Event - AC	CLS Preparatory Course 2 Day Session	0
ail	For this event to appea Is Enabled Has a Publish D Has at least one	r in search, ensure that the event. ate Occurrence	
ŴĊŎ	Basic Fields		
¢.	Content	Registration Confirmation Template	
<u></u>	Event Topics	From Address	
Daw	Event Types	Subject	
犤	Prerequisites	Body Hide ∨	
	Occurrences	H1 H2 H3 H4 H5 H6 P pre 77 B I \cup \odot \equiv \equiv C	0 C
	Registration Form	Dear SFirstNameS.	
	Email Templates	Thank you for registering for the following events: SEventsInfoStart\$	
	Direct URL History	SEventTitleS SEventDateTimeS	
		PamekAnnitan 12	Cancel Save and Return to List Save
\mathbf{O}			
« »			

Tabs on the left update the Edit screen context.

- Basic Fields
- Content
- Event Topics
- Event Types
- Prerequisites
- Occurrences
- Registration Form
- Email Templates
- Direct URL History



Basic Fields

Basic fields create your **Registration Form**. A checkmark beside the field on the right indicates that the field is required. They are as follows:

- **ID** (This is system-generated when the event is created.)
- **External ID** (If an external ID exists, it will display here.)
- **Enabled** (Enable/deactivate the event using this checkbox. This field must be enabled for this event to appear in the search filter options)
- **Title** (This is the event title.)
- **Description** (Enter the description of the event.) (ü)
- Contact Name (Enter a contact name in this free-text field.)
- **Contact Phone** (Enter this information in contiguous numbers. The field auto-formats as a dash-delineated phone number, for example: 800-555-5555.)
- Extension (Enter the phone extension number, where applicable.)
- Contact Emails (Enter the contact emails for the event in email format.)
- Notify Contacts (Check this box to notify contacts.)
- **Notify Frequency** (Defaults to Immediately. Future functionality will include Weekly, Daily and Monthly.)
- **Publish Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the publish date. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection. This field must be completed in order for this event to appear in the search filter options.) (ü)
- **Unpublish Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the unpublish date. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection. Your event content will be removed from display on this date.)
- External URL (Enter the external URL.)
- **Direct URL** (Enter the direct URL.) (ü)
- Custom Keywords (These are keywords that will be associated with the event.)
- **Generated Keywords** (These are non-editable system-generated keywords that are related to the location.)
- SEO Page Title (This is found in the <head> element. Title tags are often used on Search Engine Results Pages (SERPs) to display preview snippets for a given page, and are important both for SEO and social sharing.
- **SEO Page Description** (Also found in the <head> element, this describes what a page is about in 150 characters or less. In search results, this returns as the main descriptive text.)
- SEO Custom Meta Tags (Use custom <meta> tags to provide search engines with additional information about your pages. Search engines use this information to create rich snippets, or enable sorting of search results.)
- **SEO H1** (This heading 1 tag element is used near the top of the page as the page version of the page title, or to describe the page's content and is important for optimal SEO.)
- SEO Primary Keyword (The primary keyword is the one searched most frequently.)
- **SEO Secondary Keyword** (The secondary keyword is the one searched the second-most frequently.)



- **SEO Canonical URL** (The tag attribute bears similarity to a 301 redirect, but it communicates to search engines that multiple pages should be considered as one, without actually redirecting visitors to the new URL, so that you can still track visitors separately to unique URL versions, such as: Payment Gateway (PayFlow Pro, Authorize.net). The term, canonical, refers to conforming to an accepted rule or procedure.)
- Registration Enabled (Check this box to enable registration for your event.)
- Include Guest Demographic Info (Check this box to include guest demographic information.)
- Maximum Attendees (Enter a number in this field by which to restrict the number of attendees.)
- Business Unit ID (Enter the business unit ID.)
- **Cost** (Enter the price of admission in this free-text field.)
- Location (Select the location of the event from the drop-down list options.)
- **Cost Center** (Enter the name of the department or other type of unit within your organization to which costs may be charged, for accounting purposes.)

Show

Click the **Show/Hide** button to reveal a contextual-content **WYSIWYG** editor for each of the below:

- Special Instructions / Show (Format your message as it will be viewed by users.)
- Custom Field 1-3 (Add your Custom Field content.)
- **Food Choice** (drop-down, select from the available options for your event, such as *Vegan, Non-Dairy*, etc.)
- Interested in Being Waitlisted (drop-down, select Yes or No.)
- Enable Add Registrant Button (This checkbox defaults to True, or enabled, meaning the Event Cart Add Additional Registrant label and button is available. Uncheck it to hide the Event Cart Add Additional Registrant label and button.)

Choose **Cancel** to return to the previous screen without saving any of your changes. Choose Save to commit your changes and remain in the edit screen. Choose **Save and Return to the List** to commit your changes and return to the list page.

Event Occurrences

To help **Events** Administrators run **Event Reports** more efficiently, display-only **Occurrence IDs** are now viewable in the **Active Occurrences** list, within **Events** admin.

How to Access Event Occurrences

To access **Occurrences**, go to **Content Apps** > **Events (Events List** in the default **Data** tab). Select an event and under the **Actions** tab, click the **Edit** (pencil) icon. When the **Edit** screen opens, in the left panel, choose the **Occurrences** tab. **Active Occurrences** display here.

For our example below, we chose an event named *Event - ACLS Preparatory Course 2 Day Session* with an **Active Occurrence (ID 495**). Table view, or grid fields are as follows:

• ID (This ID is system-generated when the event occurrence is created.)



- **Date & Time** (This is the date and time of the event occurrence.)
- Location (This is the location of the event occurrence, whether All, Enabled or Disabled.)
- Presenter (This field holds the name of the event occurrence presenter.)
- **Contact** (This field holds the name of the event occurrence contact.)
- Edit (Click the Edit pencil icon to edit this event occurrence record.)

Email Templates - Email Cancellation Template

Once a registrant has been removed from an event, a configurable cancellation email is generated and sent to the registrant. With this template, an administrator will be able to design a custom "Thank You" message for each event.

Locate the **Email Cancellation Template** tab in the left navigation of the edit screen for your selected event. The **Email Cancellation Template** has the same configuration fields, tokens, and functionality used in the **Email Confirmation Template**.

Note:

This is not the same as the email that is automatically generated when an event is cancelled.

- From Address (Enter a properly-formatted From email address (email@domain.com) in this free-text field.)
- **Subject** (Enter the subject of your email in this free-text field.)
- **Body** (The fields in this section comprise the body of your email. Use the formatting tools in the included **WYSIWYG** editor to style the text elements of your email. Use the tokens throughout (as listed) the body text where needed to personalize your message with existing data about the recipient and event.)
- Hide (Expand/contract this control to Show/Hide the Body section of this email template.)

Available Tokens

These tokens populate with information from the **Event Registration**.

- \$EventsInfoStart\$
- \$EventTitle\$
- SEventDateTime\$
- \$LocationName\$
- \$LocationAddress\$
- \$RegistrantFirstName\$
- \$RegistrantLastName\$
- \$DiscountCode\$
- \$RegistrantAddress\$
- \$RegistrantPhone\$
- \$RegistrantEmailAddress\$



- \$EventSpecialInstructions\$
- \$EventOccurrenceSpecialInstructions\$
- ScostOfEventOccurrence\$
- \$EventsInfoEnd\$

Registration Confirmation Template

Event - 3etter Bone Hea For this event to appear in search, ensure that the e • Is Enabled	alth went			
Has a Publish Date Has at least one Occurrence				
isic Fields				
ontent		Registration Confirmation Template		
vent Topics	From Address			
ent Types	Subject			
erequisites	Body	Hide 🗸		
numences		H1 H2 H3 H4 H5 H6 P pre 55 B I U S II C O O E 2 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5		
nistration Form		👳 🖀 🖀 Browse 🕱 🖬 Words: 0 Characters: 0		
giseaun rum		Dear SFirsTNameS, Thank work for mentations for the following execute:		
nail templates		SEventsinfoStanS		
rect URL History		Sevent nees SEventDateTimeS		
		SLocationAddress\$		
		Registrants \$RegistrantFirstName\$		
		\$RegistrantLastName\$ \$DiscountCode\$		
		\$RegistrantAddress\$ \$RegistrantPhone\$		
		\$RegistrantEmailAddress\$ \$EventSpecialInstructions\$		
		SEventOccurrenceSpecialInstructionsS Cost of Occurrence: \$CostOrEventOccurrence\$		
		SEventsinfoEndSPlease save this document for your records and future reference.		
		Registration Cancellation Template		
	From Address			
	Subject			
	Body	Hide 🗸		
		H1 H2 H3 H4 H5 H6 P pre 55 B I U S I C O O E ± 5 I I I I		
		07 😰 🖼 Browse 💊 🛛 Words: 0 Characters: 0		
		Dear \$FirstName\$,		
		This is to inform you that your registration for the following events has been cancelled: \$EventsinfoStart\$		
		\$EventTitle\$ \$EventDateTime\$		
		SLocationNameS SLocationAddressS		
		Registrants \$RegistrantFirstName5		
		SRegistrantLastNameS SDiscountCodeS		
		SRegistrantAddressS SRegistrantAddressS		
		\$RegistrantEmailAddress\$ \$FventSocialInstructions\$		
		SEventOccurrenceSpecialInstructions\$		
		Sevents in sevent server and a property interesting and a sevent server and a sevent serve		
		Canal	Save and Return to List	· Same



HOW TO CREATE A NEW EVENT

Click the Create New button from the lower right of the Event Data tab List screen.



The New Event screen displays, as shown below,

	Site Client •		Î
)	Home Data - Settings Dynamic Columns Reports		¢ ^
.1	ປີ Vew Event		- 11
(v) €	For this event to appear in search, ensure that the event: • Is Enabled • Has a Publish Date		- 11
ø	Has at least one Occurrence		
	Enabled		
DOM	Title	*	- 11
**	Description	*	- 11
¥	Event Topic	* *	- 11
	Event Type	*	- 11
0	Contact Name		
« »	Contact Phone		-

Complete the following fields to create a new **Event** record. These fields are similar to those in the screen that opens to edit an existing record. In order for this event to appear in the search filter options, ensure that the event is enabled, has a publish date and has at least one occurrence.

- **Enabled** (Enable/deactivate the event using this checkbox. This field must be enabled for this event to appear in the search filter options)
- **Title** (Enter the title of the event.) (*required)
- **Description** (Enter the description of the event.) (*required)
- Event Topic (Choose an event topic from the drop-down options.) (*required)
- **Event Type** (Choose an event type from the drop-down options.) (*required)
- **Contact Name** (Enter a contact name in this free-text field.)



- **Contact Phone** (Enter this information in contiguous numbers. The field auto-formats as a dash-delineated phone number, for example: 800-555-5555.)
- Extension (Enter the phone extension number, where applicable.)
- Contact Emails (Enter the contact emails for the event in email format.)
- Notify Contacts (Check this box to notify contacts.)
- **Notify Frequency** (Defaults to Immediately. Future functionality will include Weekly, Daily and Monthly.)
- **Publish Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the publish date. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection.) (*required)
- **Unpublish Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the unpublish date. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection. Your event content will be removed from display on this date.)
- External URL (Enter the external URL.)
- **Direct URL** (Enter the direct URL.) (*required)
- Internal Event (Checking this box indicates that the event is internal.)
- **Public Event** (Checking this box indicates that the event is external.)
- **Generated Keywords** (These are non-editable, system-generated keywords that are related to the location.)

The majority of consumers use search engines to make purchase decisions; therefore, top digital marketing organizations prioritize the practice of Search Engine Optimization (SEO). The following page elements are essential to SEO success, because combined, they communicate the essence of your message.



• **SEO Page Title** (This is found in the <head> element. Title tags are often used on search engine results pages (SERPs) to display preview snippets for a given page, and are important both for SEO and social sharing.

The title element of a web page should be a concise description of a page's content. Users see the title in two places: as the page's name in the browser tab and in search results.) **SEO Page Title** (This is found in the <head> element. Title tags are often used on search engine results pages (SERPs) to display preview snippets for a given page, and are important both for SEO and social sharing.

- **SEO Page Description** (Also found in the <head> element, this describes what a page is about in 150 characters or less. In search results, this returns as the main descriptive text.)
- SEO Custom Meta Tags (Use custom <meta> tags to provide search engines with additional information about your pages. Search engines use this information to create rich snippets, or enable sorting of search results.)



- **SEO H1** (This heading 1 tag element is used near the top of the page as the page version of the page title, or to describe the page's content and is important for optimal SEO.)
- SEO Primary Keyword (The primary keyword is the one searched most frequently.)
- **SEO Secondary Keyword** (The secondary keyword is the one searched the second-most frequently.)
- SEO Canonical URL (The tag attribute bears similarity to a 301 redirect, but it communicates to search engines that multiple pages should be considered as one, without redirecting visitors to the new URL, so that you can still track visitors separately to unique URL versions, such as: Payment Gateway (PayFlow Pro, Authorize.net). The term, canonical, refers to conforming to an accepted rule or procedure.)
- Registration Enabled (Check this box to enable registration for your event.)
- Include Guest Demographic Info (Check this box to include guest demographic information.)
- Maximum Attendees (Enter a number in this field by which to restrict the number of attendees.)
- **Business Unit ID** (Enter the business unit ID.)
- **Cost** (Enter the price of admission in this free-text field.)
- Location (Select the location of the event from the drop-down list options.)
- **Cost Center** (Enter the name of the department or other type of unit within your organization to which costs may be charged, for accounting purposes.)
- **Special Instructions** (Click the Show/Hide button to reveal a content WYSIWYG editor that allows you to format your message as it will be viewed by users.)
- **Custom Field 1-3** (Click the Show button to reveal a content WYSIWYG editor, so that you can create custom fields with rich-text formatted content, as it will be viewed by users.)



EVENT TOPICS

The **Event Topics** option allows you to add, edit and remove event topics. This page contains a filter to assist with locating event topics by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*).

Accessing and Editing the Event Topics Page

To access this page, choose the **Event Topics** link from the **Events Content App** menu, we discussed earlier, or from the **Data** drop-down option, within the **Events Content App**.



The Event Topics management page displays.

Home Data - Settings Dynamic Col	umns Reports		<
Event Topics			
View Event Topics in the System			
Status			
T Apply O Clear	Filter		
Name	Enabled	× Id	× Actions
Men's Health Education	true	1	10.000
	 items per page 		f 1 items
			Treate New



The **Event Topics** management columns are sortable, as described in the **Using the Column Sorting Options** topic.

- Name (This is the name of the event topic.)
- Enabled (*True* or *False*)
- ID (This is the system-generated Event Topic ID. It is non-editable.)
- Actions (Click the Edit pencil icon to revise any of these editable field values.)

Note:

Event Topics can also be added directly from a Location record.



HOW TO EDIT AN EVENT TOPIC

With your target row selected, click the **Edit** (pencil) icon under **Actions**. Make your edits using the available fields.

- ID (This is the system-generated Event Topic ID. It is non-editable.)
- **Name** (This is the name of the event topic.)
- Enabled (*True* or *False*)

۲Ì	Site CMS_	DOCS V		1 1 1
	Home	Data 👻 Se	ettings Dynamic Columns Reports	¢ ^
.11	Ev	ent Top	pic - Men's Health Education	
wco			ld 1	
ġ.		Nar	me Men's Health Education	~
<u>©</u> ∭		Enabl	led 🗷	
**				_
			Cancel Save and Return	n to List Save
\mathbf{O}				
, «	<u>۹</u> ۵	N 👔 🚺	📴 😰 💿 🛸 💐 🕖 🌣 🕅 🤮 🥃 🛴 🔤 🖻 🖻 🖻 🖉 🖾 🦉 🛅 🏠 Desktop » ∧ 🚍 🚎	ໄ 🕼 🧥 🔁 9:11 AM



HOW TO CREATE A NEW EVENT TOPIC

Click the **Create New** button from the lower right of the **Event Types** management page. The **New Event Topic** screen displays, as shown below,



Complete the following fields to create a new **Event Topic** record. These fields are similar to those in the screen that opens to edit an existing record.

- **Name** (Enter the name of the event.) (*required)
- **Enabled** (Enable/deactivate the event topic using this checkbox. This field must be enabled for this event topic to appear in the search filter options.)

Home Data • Settings Dynamic Columns Reports New Event Topic Name Enabled	*
III New Event Topic Image: Name Image: State of the state o	•
Name Image: Constraint of the second seco	*
Enabled 🗷	
**	
Cancel Save and Return to List Save	re and Continue
🚛 🔊 🔎 📲 🚳 🛤 📾 📴 😰 🧑 🛸 🦣 🥥 🌣 🔉 े 🧧 属 属 🖭 🖻 💌 🗔 🗶 💭 😂 👘 🖓 🕪	9:21 AM



ACCESSING AND EDITING EVENT TYPES

The **Event Types** option allows you to add, edit and remove event types. This page contains a filter to assist with locating event types by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*).

To access this page, choose the **Event Types** link from the **Events Data** tab menu.

The **Event Types** management page displays.



The columns are sortable, as described in the Using the Column Sorting Options topic.

- **Name** (This is the name of the event.)
- Enabled (*True* or *False*)
- ID (This is the system-generated Event Type ID. It is non-editable.)
- Actions (Click the Edit pencil icon to revise any of these editable field values.)



HOW TO CREATE A NEW EVENT TYPE

Click the Create New button from the lower right of the Event Types management page.



The New Event Type screen displays, as shown below.

Complete the following fields to create a new **Event Type** record. These fields are similar to those in the screen that opens to edit an existing record.

- **Name** (Enter the name of the event.) (*required)
- **Enabled** (Enable/deactivate the event using this checkbox. This field must be enabled for this event to appear in the search filter options.)

Ø	Site Client Home Data Settings	Dynamic Columns	Reports	¢ ^
.11	New Event Ty	pe		
wco	Name	•		*
ø	Enabled	Ø		
DOM				
쌞				
×				
() () ()			Cancel Save and Return to List	Save and Continue



REGISTRANT SEARCH

The **Registrant Search** option allows you to search and view event registrant information. This page contains a filter to assist with locating event registrants and events by name, with options to **Apply** (run the filter based on your selections), or to **Clear Filter**.

To Access the Registrant Search Page

To access this page, choose the **Registrant Search** link from the main **Content App Events** menu, or from the **Events Data** tab drop-down menu option.

The **Search Events Registrants** screen displays. Search filters at the top of the screen help refine your search, by **Select Registrant**, **Select Event** and **Select Event Occurrence**. To quickly locate registrants for a specific event, first make a selection from the **Select Event** drop-down options, then use the **Event Occurrence** filter. The type-ahead feature is available in both the **Select Registrant** and **Select Event** fields.

510	Client	•								
Ho	ome	Data - Settings	B Dynamic Columns Report	S						<
S	Sea	Events List Event Topics	Registrants	Begin						
Vi	iew Ev	Event Types		typing.						
	_	Registration Form								
Se	elect R	egistrant		Select Event		Sel	ect Event Occurrend	e		
	Select	an item to filter	•	bone		S	elect an item to filter.	T Apply	O Clear Filter	
				Better Bone Health						
N	lame	```	Event Title	Bone Density Screening Osteoporosis Prevention and Br	ne Health	~	Phone Number $\stackrel{\scriptstyle \scriptstyle \scriptstyle \scriptstyle \times}{}$	Occurrence Id	Date Time	Actions
J	lackie 9	10	Joint Pain Seminar	56/8@910.com	Santa Barbara, California 93	115	805-989-9999	387	05/08/18 8:00 AM	
J	lackie A	BC	Joint Pain Seminar	345@abc.com	Santa Barbara, California 93	115	805-989-9999	387	05/08/18 8:00 AM	1
C	Carter A	braham	ACLS Renewal Course	Lacota@Cum.edu	Birmingham, Alabama 35244	4	860-556-3675	3	06/26/17 8:35 PM	1
A	Ava Aim	iee	Women with Heart Disease Su.	Catherine@quam.gov	Birmingham, Alabama 35244	4	934-336-4585	121	06/26/17 8:35 PM	

Each registrant row, or record displays columns as listed below. The columns are sortable, as described in the <u>Using the Column Sorting Options</u> topic.

- Name
- Event Title
- Email Address
- Address
- Phone Number
- Occurrence ID
- Date Time
- Actions (View additional detail on a record.)

This information is for reference and is read only.



USING THE EVENT REGISTRANT EDIT SCREEN

From the **Registrant Search** screen, click the **Edit** pencil icon next to any record, or row to open that registrant's edit screen. The **Event Registrant** [*Registrant Name*] screen displays, with the following fields:

- **Registrant ID** (This field is system-generated and is not editable.)
- First Name (Edit the registrant's first name with this field.)
- Last Name (Edit the registrant's last name with this field.)
- Address 1 (Edit the registrant's street address with this field.)
- Address 2 (Edit the registrant's apartment number if applicable, with this field.)
- **City** (Edit the registrant's city with this field.)
- State (Select the name of the state in which the registrant resides from the drop-down menu.)
- **ZIP Code** (Edit the ZIP code in which the registrant resides in this field.)
- Email Address (This field is not editable.)
- **Phone Number** (Edit the registrant's phone number with this field.)
- **Notes** (Editable. Enter or edit notes regarding the registrant with this multi-line field. This field is now also a display field option within Event reporting.)
- **Event Title** (Non-editable link. The link displays the title of the event. For example: Joint Pain Seminar. Click this link to open the Event edit screen for that event.)
- **Date Registered** (Non-editable)
- Location (Non-editable This is the location of the event. For example: Peachtree Hospital.)
- **Presenter** (This field is system-generated and is not editable.)
- **Start Date** (Non-editable. This is the start date of the listed event.)
- Start Time (Non-editable. This is the start time of the listed event.)
- **Price** (Non-editable. This is the price of the listed event.)
- Transaction ID (This field is system-generated and is not editable.

At the bottom-right of the screen are four buttons.

- Cancel (Click this button to clear any changes you have made and close the screen.)
- Remove (Click this button to remove this event registrant from this event.)
- Save And Return To List (Click this button to commit any changes you have made and return to the Search Events Registrants screen.)
- Save (Click this button to commit any changes you have made.)



About Removing a Registrant from an Event

Clicking the **Remove** button removes a registrant from the event, the **Registrant Search** list and the emailed event roster. On removing a registrant, the available seat count for the event is updated and a cancellation notice is emailed to both the registrant and event contact email address.

	Site Client ▼ Home Data - Settings Dynam	nic Columns Reports
ľ	Event Registrant -	Jackie 910
al	Registrant Id:	456
wco	First Name:	Jackie
ø	Last Name:	910
~	Address 1:	2 South Shore Dr.
<u>ġ</u> ġM	Address 2:	
쌞	City:	Santa Barbara
	State	California
	ZIP Code:	93115
	Email Address:	5678@910.com
	Phone Number:	805-989-9999
	Notes:	
0		Cancel Remove Save and Return to List Save
«»		



HOW TO ENABLE OR DISABLE THE ADD ADDITIONAL REGISTRANT LABEL AND BUTTON

It is now possible to enable and disable the ability to add additional registrants for individual events, through the API.

In this release, the **Isaddregistrantbuttonenabled** field has been added to the **Event** table in the database. In the **Event** Administrative view, this field displays as a checkbox, labeled **Enable Add Registrant Button**, which is defaulted to *True*, or enabled, meaning the **Event Cart Add Additional Registrant** label and button is available.

When this checkbox is not checked, or is disabled, the **Add Additional Registrant** section and button will be hidden from the **Event Cart** page.

Problem Solved:

Many childbirth education classes have "per couple pricing" wherein two people (mother/partner) can attend for the cost of one registration fee. Users often add the spouse as an additional registrant, which previously resulted in double charging the user and occupying an additional seat in the class, unnecessarily.





How to Enable or Disable the Event Cart Add Additional Registrant Section and Button To access the configuration checkbox for this new feature, go to Content Apps > Events List. Add a new Event using the Create New button, or select your event from the list and choose Actions > Edit (pencil) icon.

Depending on your selection, the **New Event** displays, as shown below, or the **Event** edit screen displays, open at the **Basic Fields** tab. In either screen, scroll to the bottom of the page to enable (check) or disable (uncheck) the **Event Cart Add Additional Registrant** section and button with the **Enable Add Registrant Button** checkbox.

New Event	
For this event to appear in search, ensure i Is Enabled Max a Dublish Date	haff the event.
Has at least one Occurrence	
Enabled	
Title	
Description	
Event Topic	
Event Type	
Contact Name	
Contact Phone	
Extension	
Contrast Encode	
Consect Emans	
Notify Contacts	a
Notify Frequency	,
Publish Date	•
Unpublish Date	
External URL	
Direct URL	•
Custom Keywords	
Generated Keywords	
	h
SEO Page Title	
SEO Page Description	
SEO Custom Meta Tags	
	ĥ
SEO H1	
SEO Primary Keyword	
SEO Secondary Keyword	
SEO Canonical URL	
Registration Enabled	
Include Guest Demographic Info	
Maximum Attendees	Enable Add Registrant Button
Business Unit ID	
Cost	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Location	
Cost Center	
Special Instructions	Short
Custom Field 1	Show b
Custom Field 2	Show)
Custom Field 3	Sher)
Enable Add Registrant Button	F
	Cancel Save and Return to List Save and Com

This is how the **Event Cart** displays when the **Enable Add Registrant Button** checkbox is enabled (default setting).



JOIN OUR TALENTED TEAM	FOR PHYSICIANS	FOR NURSES	RESIDENCY PROGRAM	EVENT CART (1) SEL	ECT LANGUAGE 🗸
🎸 healthgrades.	FIND A DOCTOR - FIND	A LOCATION -	SERVICES - P	ATIENTS & VISITORS	MY PATIENT PORTAL
EVENT CART					
Registrant Information					
First Name Er First Name er Last Name Ph Last Name [12]	nail Address * nail@example.com ione Number * 23)456-7890	Address 1 * Address 1 Address 2 Address 2		City * City State * Select State ZIP Code * ZIP Code	
ACLS PREPARATORY COURSE 2 DAY	SESSION				Ô
Description A class that focuses on ACLS Preparatory	Course 1 Day Session	Start Date/ 7/2/18 8:00	Time AM		
Location Fairview Hospital		Available Se 8	eats		
Additional Registrants		Would you Select Wou	ike to be put on our wa Id you like to ▼	aitlist *	
Add Registrant					

Event Cart mailing address fields, which include: **Address1**, **City**, **State** and **ZIP Code** are no longer only required fields, although they are defaulted as such. These fields are now configurable by an Administrator within **Events** as *Required* or *Not Required*.

Note:

These fields will still be required for any paid events.



REGISTRATION FORM

The Registration Form allows you to create, edit or remove custom event registration form fields.

How to Access the Registration Form Page

To access this page, choose the **Registration Form** link from the main **Content Apps Events** menu, or from the **Data** tab drop-down menu option.

	Site Client 🔻	
	Home Data - Settings Dynamic Columns Reports	0
1	Events List	
ŵcò	View Re Registrant Search	Edit
	Registration Form	Luit
*	Template Name	✓ Actions
Q	V Waitlist	1
DOM	1 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	1 <u>-</u> 1 of 1 items
		
×		
×		
×		
	Remov	
×	Remov	ve A

The **Registration Form** page displays. Each row, or record displays columns as listed below. The columns are sortable, as described in the <u>Using the Column Sorting Options</u> topic.

- Template Name (This is the Registration Form template name.)
- Actions (Click the Edit (pencil) icon to revise the Template Name.)



HOW TO CREATE A REGISTRATION FORM

Click the Create New button from the lower right of the Registration Form screen.





The New Template screen displays, as shown below.

Create a **Registration Form** by defining a **Template Name** and building **Left** and **Right Columns**, as shown below.

	INFLUENCE File Edit	View	4 ?
ľ	Site Client Home Data Settings	Dynamic Columns Reports	¢ ^
11.	New Template		
ŵco	Basic Fields	Template Name	*
\$	Left Column		
GM	Right Column		
**			
×			
() () ()		Cancel Save and Return to List	Save and Continue


Enter a name for your template in the **Template Name** (*required) field, as shown above. Add columns, using the **Left** and **Right Column** buttons. Below, we clicked the **Left Column** button. You have options to add existing columns or create new ones.

	INFLUENCE File Edit View	▲ ↑ ○
ľ	Site Client Home Data Settings Dynamic Columns Reports	
11.	New Template	Add new column,
wco	Basic Fields	Select an item to add
ø	Left Column	waitlisted
b@M	Right Column	Select from
쌞		existing.
×		
0		Cancel Save and Return to List Save and Continue
« »		



ADDING A NEW LEFT OR RIGHT COLUMN TO YOUR REGISTRANT FORM

Click the **Add** button from the **New Template** screen view (see <u>How to Create a Registrant Form</u>) and the screen changes to provide entry fields:

- Field Name (Enter the name of your new column field.) (*required)
- Field Label (Enter the column field label name.) (*required)
- Is Required (Designate whether this is a required field by selecting or deselecting this checkbox.)
- Data Type (Define this field's data type as a *text*, *number*, *date* or *drop-down* field, using the drop-down options.) (*required)

	Site Client	rts	a ^
.11	New Template		
wco	Basic Fields	Add Existing	+ Create New
٩	Left Column Field Name		🛊 🛍 Delete
DOM	Field Label		*
**	Data Type	•	*
×			
0		Cancel Save and Return to List Save Save Save Save Save Save Save Save	ave and Continue
« »	l		

Choose **Cancel** to return to the previous screen without saving any of your changes. Choose **Save** to commit your changes and remain in the **Edit** screen. Choose **Save and Return to the List** to commit your changes and return to the list page. Click the **Delete** button to remove the **Left** or **Right** column, if desired and confirm the deletion in the confirmation message that follows by clicking **Ok**.

Are you sure you want to remove this record?	
Cancel	ок



SETTINGS

Choose the **Settings** link from the **Content App Events** menu, or from the **Events Settings** tab. The **Event Settings** management page displays.

	INFLUENCE File Edit	View	?	0
ľ	Site Client Home Data Settings	Dynamic Columns Reports	o	•
al	Event Setting			
wco	- Global Defaults -	T		
\$	Search Settings		~	
DQM	Search Results Page URL	/events/results		
-	Default Page Size	10		
	Pager Position	Тор 🔻		
×	Zip Code Search Radius Options	10 50 100 200		
		Refresh Site Search Index		-
	Detail Settings		>	-
« »			Save	•

Search Setting Options on This Page

- Search Results Page URL (Enter the URL of the referenced Search Results page.)
- Default Page Size (Enter the number of results to display from a search (defaults to 10).)
- **Pager Position** (Configure the placement of the pagination feature on the **Search Results** page. Available options are: Top and Bottom, Top, Bottom.)
- **ZIP Code Search Results Radius Options** (Set the default **ZIP Code** search radius (in miles) Options are: 10, 50, 100, 200)
- **Refresh Site Search Index** (Click this button to refresh site search after adding, editing or deleting records.)



Detail Settings Options on This Page

- **Detail Page URL** (This is the full URL to the **Events** public profile page.)
- **Direct URL Path** (Enter the direct URL path of the event.)

The majority of consumers use search engines to make purchase decisions; therefore, top digital marketing organizations prioritize the practice of Search Engine Optimization (SEO). The following page elements are essential to SEO success, because combined, they communicate the essence of your message.



SEO Settings Options on This Page

Tokens¹ comprise the formulas that create each element. Consider them as objects. A list of available tokens is provided for each section (see image below). Copy and paste them in the fields in the order the chosen elements should appear, being mindful of syntax.

You can also add static (non-dynamic) words around the tokens. The intent is to replace the contents of the token fields on the published page with data referenced from a list.

- Detail Page Formula (These tokens form the Events Detail page.)
- Search Results Page Keyword Formula (This formula comprises the keyword search on the Events page, for example: Find {KeywordSearched} Wellness Classes and Events, etc.)
- Search Results Page Event Name Formula (This formula comprises the Search Results page Event Name.)
- Search Results Page Event Topic Formula (This formula comprises the Search Results page Event Topic.)
- Search Results Page Event Type Formula (This formula comprises the Search Results page Event Type.)
- Search Results Page ZIP Code Formula (These tokens comprise the Events ZIP search. For example, in the field displayed below, we see: Find Wellness Classes and Events near {ZIPCodeSearched} Page {PageNum} {FacilityName}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev}.)

¹ A token, simply stated, is a symbolic representation of a larger piece of data.



- Search Results Page Base Formula (This is a standard formula for the page title on search results, for example: Find Wellness Classes and Events in {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) Page {PageNum} {FacilityName}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev}.)
- Below this area are additional entries for your use. Enter these as instructed, to clean up extra or empty separator values in the SEO titles. Use {sp} to denote spaces, as instructed.

	Site Client V				Av
	SEO Settings				
• •••		The following tokens may {TargetCity} {FacilityCity} {EventTopics}	be used for the detail page title be {TargetState} {FacilityState} {EventTypes}	low: {TargetStateAbbrev} {FacilityStateAbbrev}	{FacilityName} {EventTitle}
ð.	Detail Page Formula	{EventTitle} - {TargetCity}, {Ta	rgetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) - {F	acilityName}	
÷		The following tokens may	be used for the search results pag	je titles below:	
<u>@</u>		{TargetCity} {FacilityCity} {KeywordSearched} {ZinCodeSearched}	{TargetState} {FacilityState} {EventNameSearched}	{TargetStateAbbrev} {FacilityStateAbbrev} {TopicSearched}	{FacilityName} {PageNum} {TypeSearched}
싸	Soarob Bosults Bago	(KeywordSearched) Wellings	c Classes and Events in (TargetCity)	(TargetState) ((TargetStateAbbre	vi) Dage (DageNum) (EacilityNam
-	Keyword Formula	{ReywordSearched} - Weillies	s classes and Events in { rarge(city	, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAbbre	v}) - Faye {Fayerium} - {i aciiiyivam
	Search Results Page Event Name Formula	{EventNameSearched} - Well	ness Classes and Events in {TargetC	ity}, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAb	brev}) - Page {PageNum} - {FacilityNa
	Search Results Page Event Topic Formula	{TopicSearched} - Wellness C	lasses and Events in {TargetCity}, {T	argetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev})	- Page {PageNum} - {FacilityName}, {
	Search Results Page Event Type Formula	{TypeSearched} - Wellness C	lasses and Events in {TargetCity}, {T	argetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) ·	Page {PageNum} - {FacilityName}, {
)					
₩					



DYNAMIC COLUMNS

Choose the **Dynamic Columns** tab from within the **Events Content App**. The **Dynamic Columns – Events** page displays.

Site CMS_DOCS V							
Home Data 🔻 S	Settings Dynamic Colu	mns Reports				\$	-
Dynamic C	olumns - Ev	ents					
Manage dynamic colum	nns for events						
No records found							
					n Remove	+ Create New	•
	Site CMS_DOCS • Home Data • S Dynamic CC Manage dynamic colum No records found	Site CMS_DOCS Home Data Settings Dynamic Colu Dynamic Columns - Ev Manage dynamic columns for events No records found	Site CMS_DOCS • Home Data • Settings Dynamic Columns Reports Dynamic columns for events No records found	Site CMS_DOCS • Home Data • Settings Dynamic Columns Reports Dynamic Columns - Events Manage dynamic columns for events No records found	Site CMS_DOCS • Home Data • Settings Dynamic Columns Reports Dynamic Columns - Events Manage dynamic columns for events No records found	Site CMS_DOCS • Home Data ◆ Settings Dynamic Columns - Events Manage dynamic columns for events No records found No records found	Site CMS_DOCS • Home Data • Settings Dynamic Columns - Events Manage dynamic columns for events No records found No records found Image dynamic columns Process Process Image dynamic columns for events No records found Image dynamic columns for events Image dynamic columns for events



From the **Dynamic Columns – Events** page, you can create custom **Event** detail fields. To create a new field, click the **Create New** button. The **New Dynamic Column** screen displays.

		Provide the second s	
	Site CMS_DOCS V		
	Home Data - Settings	Dynamic Columns Reports	o ^
.11	New Dynamic	Column	
wco	Field Name]*
₿	Field Label]*
@M	Is Required	Dropdown	1
쌞	Dropdown Options		*
×		Dropdow	n
		Options	
() () ()		Cancel Save and Return to List	Save and Continue

Custom field options in the New Dynamic Column screen include the following:

- Field Name (This is the name of the custom field.) (*required)
- **Field Label** (This is the name that will display on the published page for the custom field.) (*required)
- Is Required (Check this box to indicate that the custom field is required.)
- **Data Type** (This is the type of data that will populate the custom field. Select the data type from this drop down, whether (*Text, Number, Date, Dropdown or Content Editor*).)
- Max Length (If Text is selected as the Data Type, enter the maximum number of characters to be allowed in the custom field.)
- Is Multiline (If Text is selected as the Data Type, check this box to designate the custom field as a multiline entry text box (only available for Text data type). Multiline text allows more than one line of text in the resulting text field, where applicable and supports word wrapping, vertical and horizontal scrolling.)
- **Dropdown Options** (A selection of *Dropdown* as the **Data Type** renders this additional contextual configuration field. This field allows free-text entry and comprises the list items of the drop-down field.)



Once you have made your selections and entered any needed information for your custom field, click **Save and Continue**.



If you have used spaces in the first field: **Field Name**, you will see an error message restricting you from saving your custom field. This will be the name of your custom field in for example: *My_Event*.

Replace any spaces with an underbar to meet this requirement.



If all information has been entered according to the restrictions for each of these fields, a confirmation message displays.





EVENTS REPORTING ENHANCEMENTS

Additional report filters and result columns have been added, as well as new standard reports and instructions on how to use **Event Reporting**. Additional enhancements are categorized below:

New headings:

• Two new headings have been added to classify report fields: Event and Occurrence.

Renamed:

- Status has been renamed to Event Status.
- Publish Date has been renamed to Event Publish Date.
- Unpublish Date has been renamed to Event Unpublish Date.
- Location has been renamed to Event Location.
- Contact Name has been renamed to Occurrence Contact Name.
- **Presenter** has been renamed to **Occurrence Presenter**.
- Sponsoring Location has been renamed to Occurrence/Sponsoring Location.
- Registration Start Date has been renamed to Occurrence Registration Start Date.
- Registration End Date has been renamed to Occurrence Registration End Date.

New filter options:

- Event Title (drop-down)
- Event Location (drop-down)
- Event ID
- Occurrence Custom Location (textbox)
- Occurrence Cost Center
- Occurrence ID
- Occurrence Status

New Available (Results) field options:

- Event ID (This ID is system-generated when the Event is created.)
- Event Status (This is the event status, whether All, Enabled or Disabled.)
- Event Seats Available (This is the number of event seats that are available.)
- **Occurrence Custom Location** (This is the location where the custom event occurrence will be/was held.)
- **Occurrence Cost Center** (This is the name of the department or other type of unit within your organization to which costs may be charged for the event occurrence, for accounting purposes.)
- Occurrence Seats Available (This is the number of event occurrence seats that are available.)
- Occurrence ID (This ID is system-generated when the Event Occurrence is created.)
- Occurrence Status (This is the event occurrence status, whether All, Enabled or Disabled.)
- Occurrence Business Unit ID (This ID is system-generated when the Event Occurrence is created.)



The following has been removed from the **Available** (**Results**) field options:

• Registrantdiscountcode

Other enhancements:

- Filter Criteria are now grouped together: (Events | Occurrences).
- Six new standard out-of-the-box reports are now available.
- Report data is now validated.
- Document reporting functionality has been modified, by adding and removing available field options for the report, affecting how the data is filtered.

Other modifications:

- Amount Paid now has two decimal places, instead of four.
- The
 tags within the Address field have been removed.



REPORTS

Events includes several reporting features. Choose the **Reports** tab from within the **Events Content App**. The **Reports** page displays.

HEA	File Edit	View			4	^
Site	e CMS_DOCS ▼					
Ho	lome Data - Settings	Dynamic Columr	is Reports			¢
F	Reports					
'	(oporto					
F	Filters					~
	Event Options			Event Occurrence Options		
	Keyword		Id	ld	Cost Center	
	Publish Date		Unpublish Date	Registration Start Date	Registration End Date	
	Title		Location	Start Date Range	End Date Range	
	Select an item to filter	•	Select an item to filter	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	Topic		Type	Contact Name	Presenter	
	Select an item to filter	•	Select an item to filter	▼ Select an item to filter ▼	Select an item to filter	
	Status			Location	Custom Location	
		•		Select an item to filter		
					Status	
					▼	
	O Clear Filter					

From the **Reports** page, you can search for **Event** reports, run existing event reports or create new **Event** reports, with options to **Run Report** or **Clear Filter**.



Report Search/Filter Options

The report filters are searchable from filters in two major categories: **Event Options** and **Event Occurrence Options**.

	FLUENCE	File	Edit	View				* ?	1
Sit	e CMS_DOCS	•							
Н	lome Data	• Se	tings	Dynamic C	olumns Reports				o
F	Reports	5							
	Filters							~	
	Event Opt	tions				Event Occurrence Options			
	Keyword				Id	ld	Cost Center		
		50	-						
	Publish Da	te			Unpublish Date	Registration Start Date	Registration End Date		
	Title				Location	Start Date Range	End Date Range		
	Select an	item to f	itter		Select an item to filter				
	Торіс				Туре	Contact Name	Presenter		
	Select an	item to t	iter	27	Select an item to filter	Select an item to titler.	Select an item to titler	•	
	Status					Location	Custom Location		
				*		Select an item to filter	* Ctatus		
							atatus 🔻		
	Ø Clear Filter								

Enter Your Criteria Using the Event Options

- **Keyword** (Enter a keyword on which to search for a report.)
- **ID** (This ID is system-generated when the event is created.)
- **Publish Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the **Publish Date**. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection.)
- **Unpublish Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the **Unpublish Date**. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection. This is the date when event content was removed from view.)
- **Title** (This is the event title.)
- Location (Enter the event location in the free-text field.)
- **Topic** (Select from **Event Topic** drop-down options, such as: ACLS CPR NRP COURSES, ACLS Topic, Bariatrics Weight Loss Surgery, Bone Health, Cancer, Cancer Support Groups to Transplant Organ, Weight Management, Wellness Programs, Women's Health Education)



- **Type** (Choose a report type from the drop-down options, listing topics such as: Childbirth Education, Class, Fair or Health Fair, Free, Health Education, Online Class, Online Gift Shop, Screening, Seminar and Webinar)
- Status (Make a selection from the drop-down: (All, Enabled, Disabled)

Event Occurrence Options

- **ID** (This ID is system-generated when the **Event** occurrence is created.)
- **Cost Center** (Enter the name of the department or other type of unit within your organization to which costs may be charged, for accounting purposes.)
- **Registration Start Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the **Registration Start Date**. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection.)
- **Registration End Date** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the **Registration End Date**. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection.)
- **Start Date Range** (Begin typing in this date field to enter the **Start Date Range**. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection.)
- End Date Range (Begin typing in this date field to enter the End Date Range. The calendar widget displays for formatted selection.)
- Contact Name (Select a contact name from the populated list.)
- Presenter (Select a name from the populated list.)
- **Location** (Select a location from the populated list.)
- **Custom Location** (Type in a location in this free-text field.)
- **Status** (Make a selection from the drop-down. Options are: (*All, Canceled, Active, Disabled or Expired*.)

Note:

The Event Occurrence Start Date and Event Occurrence Location are now sent to ULM when event registrations are captured. If a custom location is used on an event occurrence, the custom location is sent as the event occurrence location.



REPORT SETTINGS

The **Report Settings** section of this tab includes options to run **Existing Reports** or create **New Reports**.

To Run an Existing Report

Click the **Existing Report** tab, choose an existing report definition from the **Select Existing Report Definition** drop-down list and click the **Run Report** button. You can modify the report, by dragging fields into the **Report Fields** area from the **Available Fields** pane, and clicking **Run Report**. Save your modifications by clicking the **Save** button.

X		File	Edit	View	🔺 个	0
	Site CMS_DOCS	•			Status	
.al	Ø Clear Filter				x	
wco	Report Settin	ngs			~	
ġ.	Existing Re	port	New Re	port	Available Fields	11
	Select Exis	ting Re	port Defi	nition	EventTitle	ш
DQM	Save			v	EventStatus OccurrenceSeatsAvailable	н
**					EventDescription CccurrenceTotalRegistrants	ш
X					EventPublishDate	П
« »					Run Report	Ŧ

Available Fields

- EventId ID (This ID is system-generated when the report is created.)
- **EventTitle** (This is the title of the event)
- EventStatus (This is the event status, whether All, Enabled or Disabled.)
- EventDescription (This is the description of the event that was entered on creation.)
- EventCreatedDate (This is the date on which the event was created.)
- EventPublishDate (This is the date on which the event was published.)
- EventLocation (This is the location where the event will be / was held.)
- EventTotalRevenue (This is the total revenue for the event.)



- EventTotalRegistrants (This is the total number of event registrants.)
- EventSeatsAvailable (This is the number of event seats that are available.)
- **EventBusinessUnitId** (This is the business unit ID that was entered when the event was created.)
- **Occurrenceld[1]** (This is the system-generated event occurrence ID.)
- **OccurrenceStatus** (This is the status of the event occurrence, whether All, Enabled or Disabled.)
- **OccurrenceContactName** (This is the contact name that was entered for the event occurrence.)
- **OccurrenceContactPhone** (This is the contact phone number that was entered for the event occurrence.)
- **OccurrenceContactEmail** (This is the contact email address that was entered for the event occurrence.)
- **OccurrenceCostCenter** (This is the name of the department or other type of unit within your organization to which costs may be charged, for accounting purposes.)
- OccurrenceStartDate (This is the event occurrence start date.)
- OccurrencelsEnabled (This is the On state of the event occurrence status: Enabled.)
- **OccurrencePresenter** (This is the entered event occurrence presenter.)
- OccurrenceLocation (This is the location of the event occurrence.)
- OccurrenceCustomLocation (This is the event occurrence custom location.)
- **OccurrenceCapacity** (This is the seating capacity of the event occurrence. How many attendees can be accommodated at this location?)
- OccurrenceSeatsAvailable (This is the number of event occurrence seats available.)
- OccurrenceTotalRevenue (This is the total revenue from the event occurrence.)
- OccurrenceTotalRegistrants (This is the total number of event occurrence registrants.)
- **RegistrantName** (This is the event occurrence registrant name.)
- **RegistrantAddress** (This is the event occurrence registrant address.)
- **RegistrantEmail** (This is the event occurrence registrant email address.)
- **RegistrantPhone** (This is the event occurrence registrant phone number.)
- **RegistrantDateRegistered** (This is the date the registrant registered for the event occurrence.)
- **RegistrantAmountPaid** (This is the amount the registrant paid for the event occurrence.)
- **RegistrantTransactionId** (This is the system-generated transaction ID that was created, when the registrant paid for the event occurrence.)
- RegistrantAttended (This field indicates whether the registrant attended the event occurrence.)
- **RegistrantNotes** (This field holds the notes regarding the registrant that were entered in the Event Registrant Edit Screen.)



Custom Event Registration Fields

New custom **Event Registration** fields are now listed under **Available Fields** for **Event Reports**, easily identifiable by the presence of the word, *Custom* at the beginning of the field name.

- CustomCardioNewsletter
- Customwaitlisted
- Customdate_of_birth
- CustomFoodChoice
- CustomInsurance
- CustomEvent Title



HOW TO CREATE A NEW EVENT REPORT

To create a new **Event** report, click the **New Report** tab, enter your new report name into the **Enter Report Definition Name** free-text field, then drag and drop the desired report fields from the **Available Fields** pane into the **Report Fields** pane, as shown in the **Report Settings** topic.

Existing Report New Report	Available Fields		Report Fields	
Enter Report Definition Name	EventTitle	+ 🔨	EventTitle	± _
Save	EventDescription	+	EventDescription	+
Save	EventCreatedDate	+	EventLocation	+
	EventPublishDate	+	dth ا	
	EventLocation	÷	('2')	
	EventTotalRevenue	+ ~		~
				Run Report

Tip:

Once the fields are in the Report Fields column, you can also rearrange them using the drag and drop functionality.





THE PROVIDERS CONTENT APP

The published **Providers Content App** allows consumers to search for providers who are associated with a health care organization. Provider profiles, including content, can be customized based on the health care organization's preferences and include the following.

- Philosophy of Care
- Bio
- Specialty
- Locations
- Contact Information
- Provider Photo
- Appointment Requests

HOW TO ACCESS THE PROVIDER LIST

Access the **Providers Content App** via the **Content Apps** console. To access **Content App** components from anywhere within CMS, click the **Content Apps** option from within the **Apps** left menu. Click the **Provider List** link from the **Providers** menu.

From the **Content Apps** console, you can manage **Providers**, **Events**, **Locations**, **Services** and other configuration items. Each content app has its own menu of management items. The **Providers** content app, identified in red below, provides a search (filter) and the ability to edit or remove existing provider records, as well as to create new records. Click either the **Providers** image or the **Providers List** link.





SEARCHING FOR PROVIDERS

The **Providers** page displays. This page can also be accessed from the **Data** tab drop-down menu option of the at the top of the screen. From the **Providers** page, you can perform the following actions:

- Search for a provider record by Name, Status (All, Enabled, Disabled) and/or Specialty.
- Create New provider records.
- Edit provider records.
- **Remove** provider records.

	P	roviders w Providers in the Sy	/stem					Edit	
-t- Calling	Nai	me	Status	Specialty					
ata + Settings				Select a	in item to filter	· · · · ·	Apply Ø Clear Filter		
Providers List							_		Γ
	×	Last Name	First Name	Y Middle Name	Phone ~	Email	V Direct Url	✓ Is Enabled	Actions
Provider Types	~	Abbott	Bryar	к.	315-104-6577	rhoncus@Sednec.org	dr-bryar-k-abbott-sr-pdftest	true	1
Roard Certifications	~	Acevedo	Wilson	G.	2271353879	Integer.tincidunt.aliquam@dictumPhasellusin.org	dr-wilson-g-acevedo-jr-pediatric-critical-care	true	1
Joard Contineations	~	Acevedo	Murphy	В.	8594917721	nunc@sit.edu	dr-murphy-b-acevedo-sr-rheumatology	true	1
Clinical Interests	~	Acevedo	Rhiannon	A.	2014982746	ipsum.porta@eu.ca	dr-rhiannon-a-acevedo-iii-psychology	true	1
	~	Acosta	Chanda	х.	7707568761	bibendum.fermentum.metus@faucibusleoin.ca	dr-chanda-x-acosta-clinical-pathology	true	1
ducation Types	~	Adams	Regina	U.	8435484753	Nam@iaculis.org	dr-regina-u-adams-pediatric-endocrinology	false	1
enders	~	Adams	Brian		(555) 555-5	test@test.com	dr-brian-adams-family-practice	true	
	1 ~	Adkins	Hilda	V .	5729863102	erat.Sed@nibhAliquamornare.org	dr-hilda-adkins-pediatric-gastroenterology	true	
Foups	~	Adkins	Odysseus	В.	8126553001	velit@seddictumeleifend.edu	dr-odysseus-b-adkins-trauma-surgery	true	
	· ·	Aguirre	April	Υ.	9467510020	Morbi.accumsan.laoreet@faucibusorciluctus.ca	dr-april-y-aguirre-iii-nuclear-cardiloogy	true	1
isurances	~	Aguirre	Lara	D.	7003193711	diam.eu@augue.edu	dr-lara-d-aguirre-colonrectal-surgery	true	1
anguages	- ~	Aguirre	Leo	C.	9531042507	posuere@Maecenasornare.ca	dr-leo-c-aguirre-ili-pediatric-hematologyoncology	true	1
	3 ~	Albert	Magee	В.	6746809740	odio.vel@enimcondimentumeget.org	dr-magee-b-albert-pediatric-allergy	true	1
pecialties	~	Aldred	Logan				logan-aldred-anesthesiology	true	1
	-	Alexander	Chadwick	В.	3108267953	urna.Nunc.quis@elementumsemvitae.com	dr-chadwick-alexander-cardiology	true	1
	~	Alexander	Gabriel	W.	6236619331	sed.sem@primisin.com	dr-gabriel-alexander-womens-health	true	1
		Alexander	Peter	G.	4411623899	eget.dictum.placerat@risusDonecegestas.ca	dr-peter-alexander-pediatric-critical-care	true	ø
								# Remove	+ Create New

Create New



HOW TO CREATE A NEW PROVIDER

Clicking the **Create New** button from the lower right of the **Providers** page, opens the **New Provider** page. A red asterisk indicates that a field is required.

h

Create a new provide	in the system		
External Id			
NPI		This field is required.	
Enabled	V		_
Prefix			
First Name		*	
Middle Name			
Last Name		*	
Suffix			
Additional Suffix			
Gender		V	
Provider Group		V	
Date of Birth			
In Departure Diseas			



Scroll to the bottom of the page (image, below). The **Show** > link can be clicked on any applicable field to reveal a **WYSIWYG** editor. This is a field of the type, *Content Editor*.

Specialties and Conditions	Generated K	eywords al	ergy/immunolog es,runny nose,	gy,dna testing,f sinus infection,t	ever,headach eeth pain,xra	ne,imaging, iy	mmunology,le	oss of sense (of smell,mri	pain and p	pressure in fa	ice,pink eye	red				
Locations	Exclude	d Words															
Languages																	
Education	SEO F	age Title															
Clinical Interests	SEO Page De	scription															
Types		SEO H1															
Board Certifications	SEO Primary	Keyword	Shov	v >													
Direct URL History	SEO Secondary	Keyword															
	SEO Canor	ical URL															
	BI	og Posts Sho	w >														
	Blog Posts	Hide 🗸															
		H1 H2	H3	H4 H5	H6	P	pre 5	B	I	U	\$ ≣	}≡	C	0 0			
		E ±	=					Browse	90	0	Words	0	Charac	ters: 0			
		۰c	ooking for	a Diabetic		The t iı	WY: ext, nage	SIW text es, v	YG fori vide hun	edi mat o a nan	tor a tting nd H i-rea	allov , te: ITM dab	vs tł xt al L, w ole fo	ne a ignr hile orma	ddit nen you at.	ion d t, lin i edi	of rich ks, t in



HOW TO EDIT PROVIDERS

From the **Providers** page, click the **Edit** pencil icon for a record to revise information. The main (**Basic Fields**) screen displays. You can also navigate quickly to other available edit screens by topic, by clicking one of the selections from the left panel. **Basic Fields** allow you to add information for your provider by category. A checkmark on the right of a field indicates that the field is required. **Basic Fields** are as follows:

- Specialties and Conditions
- Locations
- Languages
- Education
- Clinical Interests
- Types
- Board Certifications
- Direct URL History

Basic Fields	ld External id	241	
Locations	NPI	1003807447	1
Languages	Enabled	2	
Education	Prefix	Dr	
Clinical Interests	First Name	Bryar	~
Types	Middle Name	Kent	
Board Certifications	Last Name	Abbott	~
« »		Cancel Save and Return	List



HOW TO ADD AND EDIT LOCATION CONTENT

This screen builds the **Location** content for the **Provider Profile** page. The fields of this screen are detailed below. The provider's designated **Primary Location** is displayed at the top of the list on the public-facing detail page. Any additional locations are listed alphabetically beneath the primary location.





Provider Profile Location Fields

- Location Name (This is the read-only display name of the location. To add an additional location, use the Add button and drop-down menu at the top-right of the page. To delete the location, use the Delete button from the same area and confirm your selection.)
- Is Primary (Check this box to designate this location as primary. The Primary Location is listed first on the Provider Profile page.)
- Phone Number (Enter the phone number to be used for this location.)
- Fax Number (Enter the fax number to be used for this location, if applicable)
- Is Accepting New Patients (Check this box if the provider is actively accepting new patients.)
- Allow Appointment Requests (Check this box to indicate that the provider allows appointment requests.)
- **Hide from Display** (Select the desired option from this drop-down field. Options are: (*No, Yes or Inherit from Location (Not Hidden)*).)
- **Insurances** (Expand this panel and use the drop-down list to select and display accepted insurances for this location. Click an insurance name from the list to highlight it and use the **Add Existing** button to add the insurance to the list of accepted insurances. Remove an insurance name from the list using the **Delete** button for that row and confirm your action in the box that displays.)
- Services (Expand this panel and use the drop-down list to select and display the services provided at this location. Click a service name from the list to highlight it and use the Add Existing button to add the service to the list of provided services. Remove a service name from the list using the Delete button for that row and confirm your action in the box that displays.)
- Hours (Expand this panel and click the Create New button to configure hours of operation for the location by **Day**, **Open Time** and **Close Time**. Remove hours from the list using the **Delete** button for that row and confirm your action in the box that displays.)



How to Exclude Specific Locations from Displaying on Provider List and Provider Detail Pages Admins can now exclude specific locations from displaying on **Provider List** and **Provider Detail** pages. From **Content Apps** > **Providers List**, select the **Edit** (pencil) icon for your provider. In the edit screen that displays, under the **Location** tab, select the desired option from the **Hide from Display** drop-down field, whether *No*, *Yes* or *Inherit from Location* (Not Hidden).

The Location and Provider APIs have also been updated with these new settings.

S	ite Client 🔻					
	Home Data - Settings Dyna	amic Columns			٥	•
				R Add Existing		
		Location Name	Nuvo Health	t Delete		
		Is Primary	8			
	Pasia Fielda	Phone Number	2059821234			
	Dasic Fields	Fax Number	2059821234			
	Specialties and Conditions	Is Accenting New				
	Locations	Patients				
	Languages	Allow Appointment Requests	8			
	Education	Hide From Display	No			
	Clinical Interests		Yes No	>		
	Types		Inherit from Location (Not Hidden)			
	Roard Cartifications		Services	>		
			Cancel Save and Retu	rn to List Sa	we	-

Note:

If this configuration is enabled on a specific Location record, that location will be inherited at the provider level. That location will be excluded from displaying on the list and detail pages for <u>all</u> providers that are associated to that location, <u>if</u> it is not the provider's primary location.

Locations that are configured to be hidden can be overridden within the individual provider record's configuration.

If this configuration is enabled on a specific Provider record, that location will be excluded from displaying on the list and detail pages for that specific provider, if it is not the provider's primary location.

Any location that is flagged as a Primary Location cannot be hidden.



THE DATA TAB DROP-DOWN MENU

The options that are available under the top **Data** tab drop down we displayed earlier, allow you to search, sort, add, edit or remove provider-related list data. They are:

- Providers List (Listed by: Last Name, First Name, Middle Name, Phone, Email, Direct List, Is Enabled, search by Name, Status (*All, Enabled, Disabled) and* Specialty.)
- **Provider Types** (Listed by: **Name** (Doctor, Facility, Nurse Practitioner, Professor, Researcher), **Is Enabled**, **ID**, search by **Status** (All, Enabled, Disabled).
- **Board Certifications** (Listed by: **Name** (AAPS, ABMX, ABPS, AMA, ADA, ADABS, Orthopedic Surgery), **Is Enabled**, **ID**, search by **Status** (All, Enabled, Disabled).
- **Clinical Interests** (Listed by: **Name** (Adult reconstruction of the hip and knee, Arthritis of the hand, shoulder, and elbow, Arthroscopy of the wrist, elbow, and shoulder, Cardiology, etc.), **Is Enabled**, **ID**, search by **Status** (All, Enabled, Disabled).
- Education Types (Listed by: Name (B. S. N Bachelor of Science in Nursing, D. C. M. Doctor of Chiropractic Medicine, etc.), Is Enabled, ID, search by Status (All, Enabled, Disabled.)
- Genders (Listed by: Name (*Female, Male, Unknown.*), Is Enabled, ID, search by Status (All, Enabled, Disabled.)
- **Groups** (Listed by: **Name** (Preferred, In Network, Out of Network or None), **Is Enabled, ID**, search by **Status** (All, Enabled, Disabled.)
- Insurances (Listed by: Name, Is Enabled, ID, search by Status (All, Enabled, Disabled.)
- Languages (Listed by: Name, Is Enabled, ID, search by Status (All, Enabled, Disabled.)
- **Specialties** (Listed by: **Name** (*Allergies, Immunology/Anesthesiology*, etc.), **Is Enabled, ID**, search by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled.*)

Each **Data** page option contains a filter to assist with locating records by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*).





Note:

Configurations in the screens of each of these data options appear as lists in a provider's record.

Genders Screen Example

Click the **Data** menu from the top bar and select **Genders** to view or configure options for the **Gender** drop down list options in the **New Provider** and **Edit Provider** screens.

Genders				
itatus Y Apply	O Clear Filter			
	V Is Enabled	~ Id	~ Actions	~
Name	in Lindbird			
Vame Female	true	2	1	
 Name Female Male 	true true	2	1	
Name Female Male Unknown	true true	2 1 3		



THE PROVIDER SETTINGS SCREEN

The **Provider Settings** screen provides configuration options for **Search Settings**, **Detail Settings** and **SEO Settings** that are related to the **Providers** content app.

Choose the **Settings** link from the **Providers** content app menu, or from the top **Provider** menu bar, as shown below. The **Provider Settings** management page displays.

Home Data - Settings Dynam	nic Columns	0
Provider Sett		
- Global Defaults -		
Search Settings		~
oouron ootungo		
Search Results Page URL	/websitefiles/dev/cbadger/cb-site/us-en/module-pages/cb-provider-search-results.aspx	
Default Page Size	5	
Pager Position	Bottom	
Zip Code Search Radius Options	1	
	5 10	
Randomize Search Results		
Sort By Provider Group		
Proximity Distances Based on Primary Location		
,	Refresh Site Search Index	
Detail Settings		>
SEO Settings		>
		Save

From here you can configure **Provider Search Settings** for the following:

- Search Results Page URL (This is the URL of the Providers Search Results (list) page.)
- Default Page Size (This is the number of results that will display on the Search Results page.)
- **Pager Position** (Configure the placement of the pagination feature on the **Search Results** page. Available options are: *Top and Bottom, Top, Bottom.*)
- ZIP Code Search Results Radius Options (Set the default ZIP Code search radius (in miles).)
- **Randomize Search Results** (Check this checkbox to enable random search results to be returned.)
- Sort by Provider Group (Check this checkbox to return search results sorted by provider group.)
- **Proximity Distances Based on Primary Location** (Check this checkbox to display the distance to the various primary locations within the search results.)
- **Refresh Site Search Index** (Click this button to refresh the site search index after adding, editing or deleting records.)



- •
- Configure Provider Detail Settings
- **Detail Page URL** (This is the full URL to the provider's public profile page.)
- Direct URL Path (This is the relative ²path to the provider's public profile page.)

The majority of consumers use search engines to make purchase decisions; therefore, top digital marketing organizations prioritize the practice of Search Engine Optimization (SEO). The following page elements are essential to SEO success, because combined, they communicate the essence of your message.



SEO Settings

- Tokens³ comprise the formulas that create each element. Consider them as objects. A list of available tokens is provided for each section. Copy and paste them in the fields in the order the chosen elements should appear, being mindful of syntax.
 You can also add static (non-dynamic) words around the tokens. The intent is to replace the contents of the token fields on the published page with data referenced from a list.
- Configure Provider SEO Settings
- **Detail Page Formula** (These tokens form the smart title that is displayed on the **Provider** detail page, for example: {ProviderName} {PrimarySpecialty} {PrimaryLocationCity}, {PrimaryLocationState} ({PrimaryLocationStateAbbrev}, or Dr. M. Welby, Internal Medicine, Birmingham, Alabama, AL))
- Search Results Page Keyword Formula (This formula comprises the keyword search on the **Provider** page, for example: Find {KeywordSearched}, etc.)
- Search Results Page Name Formula (This formula comprises the search results page name for searches on provider name, for example: Find Providers {ProviderNameSearched} in {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) Page {PageNum} {FacilityName}, etc.))
- Search Results Page Specialty Formula (This formula comprises the search results page title for searches on specialties, for example: Find {SpecialtySearched} Providers in {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) Page {PageNum} {FacilityName}, etc.)
- Search Results Page Base Formula (This is the standard formula for the page title on search results.

² A relative path defines the location of a directory in relation to another directory, only including the portion of the URL that describes the difference. For example, if a local Word document is in C:\Sample\Documents\local.docx and the index is in C:\Sample\Index.html, the relative path from the Index.html would be \Documents\local.docx, whereas the absolute path would be C:\Sample\Documents\local.docx, or the

entire path. ³ A token, simply stated, is a symbolic representation of a larger piece of data.



Provider Name Settings

Scroll further down in the screen, and below this area is **Provider Name Settings**. This allows you to determine how to display providers' names in search results. You can determine how providers' names display on detail and list pages while configuring those pages. Tokens that may be used for the custom display of **Provider** names are listed on the screen to guide you:

- {Nameprefix}
- {Firstname}
- {Middlename}
- {Lastname}
- {Namesuffix}
- {Additionalsuffix}

	The following tokens may be use	d for the detail page title below:		
	{TargetCity} {FacliityCity} {PrimarySpecialty} {PrimaryLocationState}	{TargetState} {FacilityState} {AllSpecialties} {PrimaryLocationStateAbbrev}	{TargetStateAbbrev} {FacilityStateAbbrev} {PrimaryLocationName}	{FaclilityName} {ProviderName} {PrimaryLocationCity}
Detail Page Formula	{ProviderName} - {PrimarySpecialty}	- {PrimaryLocationCity}, {PrimaryLocation	State} ({PrimaryLocationStateAbbrev})	
	The following tokens may be use {TargetCity} {FacilityCity} {ProviderNameSearched}	d for the search results page titles belo (TargetState) (FacilityState) {SpecialtySearched}	w: {TargetStateAbbrev} {FacilityStateAbbrev} {KeywordSearched}	(FacilityName) (PageNum)
Search Results Page Keyword Formula	Find Providers {KeywordSearched} in	n {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({TargetState	Abbrev}) - Page {PageNum} - {FacilityNam	ne}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev
Search Results Page Name Formula	Find Providers (ProviderNameSearch	ned} in {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({Targe	tStateAbbrev}) - Page {PageNum} - {Facilit	tyName}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateA
Search Results Page Specialty Formula	Find {SpecialtySearched} Providers in	n {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({TargetState	Abbrev}) - Page {PageNum} - {FacilityNan	ne}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbre
Search Results Page Base Formula	Find Medical Providers in {TargetCity	}, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) - F	age {PageNum} - {FacilityName}, {Facility0	City}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev})
	Enter values below to remove in the Use {sp} to denote spaces.	e SEO titles. This will primarily be used to	clean up extra or empty separator values.	
	-{sp}{sp}- ,{sp}{sp}()			



DYNAMIC COLUMNS - PROVIDERS

The **Dynamic Columns - Providers** screen allows you to create and manage *custom* fields for the **Providers** screen.

To Access Dynamic Columns

Click the **Dynamic Columns** link in the top menu of the **Content App**. The **Dynamic Columns** - **Providers** screen displays. Here, you can create, edit or remove dynamic columns (custom provider fields).

Name	Label	✓ Туре	✓ Size	* Required	~ Id	Actions Actions	~
Blog_Posts	Blog Posts	contentEditor	50	false	38	1	
4 1	/ 1 ▶ ▶ 25 ¥ items pe	er page	-				1 - 1 of 1 item
		Dat	a lype			Edit	
						Euit	

For our example, we will look at a new field that has been created, *Blog Posts*. Here are the field's properties and selected values. The **Type** property for this field displays *contentEditor*. Other available data types are: *Text, Number, Date and Dropdown*.

Name	Blog_Posts
Label	Blog Posts
Туре	contentEditor
Size	50
Required	False
Actions	Edit

If you click the **Edit** pencil icon, as shown above, you can see these options and make non-permission-restricted changes.



Site IH Demo ✓ Home Data → Settings Dyna	mic Columns	0
Dynamic Column	- Blog_Posts	
Id	38	
Field Name	Blog_Posts	
Field Label	Biog Posts	
Is Required		
Data Type	Content Editor	
	Data Type	
	Can Can Return	to List Save



TO CREATE A NEW CUSTOM FIELD

Click the **Cancel** button, as shown above, to return to the **Dynamic Columns - Providers** screen, or click the **Dynamic Columns** tab at the top left. From the **Dynamic Columns - Providers** screen, click the **Create New** button in the screen's lower right. The **New Dynamic Column** screen displays.



- Field Name (This will be the name of your custom field in the data base. For our example, this is *Blog_Posts.*)
- **Field Label** (This is the display name of the custom field. For our example, this is *Blog Posts.*)
- **Is Required** (Check this box to make this a required field. For our example, we left this property unchecked; therefore, completing the resulting custom field will not be required for the user.)
- Data Type (These are the data type selections that define what type of field you are creating, whether Text, Number, Date, Dropdown or Content Editor. Additional options display below, depending on the data type selection.)





Additional Contextual Configuration Fields

- Max Length (Enter the maximum number of characters allowed in this custom field. This does not apply to the *Content Editor* data type, so once the selection of *Content Editor* is made, there are no additional options displayed below. Max Length applies to the *Text* data type only.)
- Is Multiline (This data type property selection applies to the *Text* data type only. Check this box to allow more than one line of text in the resulting textfield, where applicable. Multiline text supports word wrapping, vertical and horizontal scrolling.)
- **Dropdown Options** (A selection of *Dropdown* as the **Data Type** renders this additional contextual configuration field. This field allows free text entry.)

Data Type	Dropdown	
Dropdown Options	option 3 option 4	0 ~
	Opnon 4	



Once you have made your selections and entered any needed information for your custom field, click **Save and Continue.**

If you have used spaces in the first field, **Field Name**, you will see an error message restricting you from saving your custom field. Remember, this will be the name of your custom field in the data base, which in our example, is *Blog_Posts*. Replace any spaces with an underbar to meet this requirement.



If all information has been entered according to the restrictions for each of these fields, a confirmation message displays.





HOW TO REMOVE A FIELD

Below, we have added an additional test field, in order to demonstrate how to remove one. Return to the **Dynamic Columns – Providers** screen and click the checkbox at the beginning of the row, or record you wish to delete, as shown below.

name dynamic columns for		,					
hage dynamic columns for							
Name	Label	~ Туре	ັ Size	* Required	~ Id	~ Actions	~
blog_post_test	blog_post_test	contentEditor	50	false	39	1	
Posts	Blog Posts	contentEditor	50	false	38	1	
2	▶ ▶ 25 ¥ items pe	r page					1 - 2 of 2 items

Then, at the bottom right of this page, click the **Remove** button.



A confirmation message displays. Click OK.



Your custom field has successfully been created.




THE BLOG POSTS FIELD

In the **Data > Providers List > Edit Provider Information** screen, is a custom **Blog Posts WYSIWYG** field we created, with the *Content Editor* data type.

The field is available in the **New Provider** screen, from which you can create new provider records, and upload or browse existing provider records.

pecialties and Conditions	Generated	Keywords	alle eye	gy/immuno s,runny no:	ology,dna te se,sinus infe	sting,feve	r,headach h pain,xra	he,imagin ay	g,immuno	logy,loss of	sense of	smell,m	ri,pain ar	nd pressu	e in face,	pink e	eye,red						
ocations	Exclud	ed Words																					
anguages																							
ducation	SEO	Page Title																					
linical Interests	SEO Page De	escription																					
/pes		SEO H1																					
oard Certifications	SEO Primary	Keyword		Sho	w >																		
irect URL History	SEO Secondary	Keyword																					
	SEO Cano	nical URL																					
	В	log Posts	Show	>																			
	Las	t Updated	2/9/17	5:49 AM																			
	Blog Posts	Hide 🗸																					
		H1	H2	H3	H4	H5	H6	Р	pre	99	В	I	U	s	:=	12		C	5	0			
				_	_	_																	
		=	=	=	-	-				Brov	wse	90	0	VV	ords: 0)	0	hara	acters	s: 0			
			• Co	oking f	or a Dia	betic																	



PROVIDER RATINGS

CMS recently introduced **Provider Ratings**, a feature which allows visitors/patient prospects to research and compare hospital providers, based on patient feedback.

Provider Ratings and **Reviews** are now an available layout configuration option for **Provider Detail** and **List** page layouts, including the **Compare List** view and **Refinement** panel on the **Provider List** page.

Rating Comments, Rating Details, and Ratings Image fields have also been added to the Provider Detail Available Fields.

How to Configure Provider Ratings for Your Page Navigate to your Site Root/_Widgets folder and your Providers Profile page and double click the directory name to load it. Our example uses the following path: .../Reference Sites/Sample/Site Root/_Widgets/Peachtree Widgets/Peachtree Providers/Providers Profile.

Our sample screen displays, with the new **Ratings and Comments** tab visible, mid screen. Click the **Form** view to edit.

Eilo View	<i>4</i> N =	Modical Exportico	Profile X Providers Profile X			-	
					Proview	nline Form 🚺 🕇 Save	Workflow -
🖌 🖉 🖉 💔 Peachtree B	Providers	La Configure	4.6 out of 5 stars	Noci Name	This is my video morna	non, or mixed my videoo.	Tronalow -
	Status		Allergy/Immuno	blogy		0""]	
Label	Status		My Hospital				
Location wap Only	^		,				
Locations_Profile			123 Main St. City ST 55555				
Mammography and Image	ging Res 📕		5., 51 0000		Ratings ar	nd	
🔂 Map			Phone 123-555-1234		Common		
Medical Expertise_Profil	e 🔳		120 000 1204		Comment		
Peachtree Refiner			Appointment Re	equest Link			
Peds Meet the Team							
Peds Provider Results		Locations	Specialties & Clinical Interests My I	Bio Ratings and Comments			
Peds Search Horizontal							
PedsProviderDetail		Baptist N	ledical Center				
Provider Results		123 Main St.					
Providers Profile	- 24	City, ST 55555					
		Enter Address	Get Directions				
		L					
1–17 of 17	Active -	4					•

From the form that loads, Click the **Web View** button to preview and configure this **Content App** instance. When the **Configure** button displays, click it to configure the page.



Fi	In Million							÷ ?
	le view		« »	= Pro	viders Pro	le x		
	L		• T	••• C	• Q	+ -	Preview Inline	Form 🖸 🖌 Save Workflow -
×	Label	htree Provi	ders Status	;	Main			Web View -
[Location Map Only	у		•	List: N	ain Content		-
	Locations_Profile							
[🔋 Mammography an	nd Imaging	Res 📕		+	Content App Instance		-
ŵco	📔 Map				Ê			
	Medical Expertise	_Profile			÷.	Click the "Save & Preview" button to switch to the Preview view and configure this Content A	App instance	
*	Peachtree Refiner	r				Instance ID		
	Peds Meet the Tea	am				6ffd70e1-b067-4e8e-bec3-52d384686b05		
\sim	Peds Provider Res	sults						
<u>Dow</u>	Peds Search Horiz	zontal						
	PedsProviderDeta	ail						
WH I	Provider Results							
8	Providers Profile		P 🔳	-				
*	•	1	•	₩				
« » 1-	-17 of 17		Active	-				

Configure	Configured Provider Name	This is my video information, or links to my videos.	
	Allergy/Immunology		
	My Hospital		
	123 Main St. City, ST 55555		
	Phone 123-555-1234		
	Appointment Request Link		
Eocutions operation of our	incar interests inty bio realings and confinents		
Baptist Medical Cent	ter		
Baptist Medical Cent	ter		
Baptist Medical Cent 123 Main St. City, ST 55555 2 Show Man	ter		
Baptist Medical Cent 123 Main St. City, ST 55555 Show Map Enter Address	ter Get Directions		
Baptist Medical Ceni 123 Main St. 21ty. ST 55555 Show Map Enter Address	ter Get Directions		
Baptist Medical Cent 123 Main St. City, ST 55555 Show Map Enter Address	ter Get Directions		
Baptist Medical Cen 123 Main St. 2lty, ST 5555 Show Map Enter Address	ter Get Directions		



When the next screen displays, drag **Raw Text with Tokens**⁴ from **Available Fields** to the desired **Column** on the right of the screen as shown below, then click the **Edit** (pencil) icon to access and apply the tokens, **{ProviderRatingsCount}** and **{ProviderCommentsCount}**.

Content App	view		Layout					
Providers	Deta	il View	Tab		•			
Collinson	Densis							
Layout Settings	Previe	~						
Controls		Header Zone						
wailable Fields		- + 3/12		010	- + 4/12	010	- + 5/12	
About Me	<u> </u>	Provider Image		1.0	Name O	/ 0	Videos	/ 1
Accepting New Patients		Ratings Image		1.0	Primary Specialty	/ 0		
Additional Info					Primary Location Name	/ 0		
Age		-	-		Primary Location Address	/ 0		
Appointment Request Link					Phone	10		
					Appointment Request Link	/ 0		
					Raw Text With Tokens 🚸	< 1		
					լայ			
						Eai		Save
								Close

Rating Comments, Rating Details, and Ratings Image fields have also been added to the Provider Detail Available Fields.

⁴ The **Raw Text** editor is an advanced feature intended for use by engineers who are aware of the risks of injecting code into pages. The CMS system does not validate code placed into this control. Healthgrades is not responsible for validating or debugging client code, or for triaging or correcting problems caused by client code. By using this control, you agree that Healthgrades is held harmless for any negative effect to your website caused by code placement within this control.



Expand the **Tokens** tab. Copy and paste these two token names (with their brackets) into the **Raw Text** area below, providing the desired labels where desired, using plain text.

Show Laber	2		
Label Text	Raw Text With Tokens		
Conditional Settin	gs		
okens			
(AcceptingNew (Age) (DateOfBirth) (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_ (dynamicCol_	Patients) Blog_Posts) clinicalTrials) conditions) ducationCertifications) EpicProviderID) EpicVisilTypes) featured) procedures) socialMediaBlogURL) socialMediaFacebookHandle}	(dynamicCol_socialMediaLinkedInHandle) (dynamicCol_socialMediaNewsURL) (dynamicCol_socialMediaYwiterHandle) (dynamicCol_socialMediaYvolTubeHandle) (dynamicCol_socialMediaYvolTubeHandle) (Experience) (Gender) (InPracticeSince) (NPI) (PrimaryEmail) (PrimaryEmail) (PrimaryEmail) (PrimaryLocationCompleteAddress) (PrimaryPhone)	(PrimarySpecially) (ProviderCommentsCount) (ProviderExtemalld) (ProviderExtemalld) (ProviderGroup) (ProviderMangeUt) (ProviderName.AdditionalSutfix) (ProviderName.AdditionalSutfix) (ProviderName.AdditionalSutfix) (ProviderName.LastName) (ProviderName.LastName) (ProviderName.MiddleName) (ProviderName.NamePrefix) (ProviderName.NameSutfix) (ProviderRatingsCount)
ław Text (EroxiderCommen (ProxiderRatingsC	ttsCount).Comments count} Ratings		
L			



The full list of tokens that are available from this modal are:

- AcceptingNewPatients}
- {Age}

{

- {DateOfBirth}
- {dynamicCol_Blog_Posts}
- {dynamicCol_clinicalTrials}
- {dynamicCol_conditions}
- {dynamicCol_educationCe rtifications}
- {dynamicCol_EpicProviderl
 D}
- {dynamicCol_EpicVisitType s}
- {dynamicCol_featured}
- {dynamicCol_patientStories }
- {dynamicCol_procedures}
- {dynamicCol_socialMediaB logURL}
- ProviderRatingsCount}

- {dynamicCol_socialMediaF acebookHandle}
- {dynamicCol_socialMediaLi nkedInHandle}
- {dynamicCol_socialMedia NewsURL}
- {dynamicCol_socialMediaT witterHandle}
- {dynamicCol_socialMediaY elpHandle}
- {dynamicCol_socialMediaY ouTubeHandle}
- Experience
- {Gender}
- InPracticeSince}
- {NPI}
- PrimaryEmail}
- PrimaryFax}
- {PrimaryLocationComplete Address}

- PrimaryLocationName}
- {PrimaryPhone}
- PrimarySpecialty
- ProviderCommentsCount}
- {ProviderDirectUrl}
- {ProviderExternalId}
- ProviderGroup}
- ProviderId
- ProviderImageUrl}
- {ProviderName.AdditionalS uffix}
- ProviderName.FirstName}
- ProviderName.LastName}
- {ProviderName.MiddleNam
 e}
- ProviderName.NamePrefix}
- ProviderName.NameSuffix}



Another published page sample Is provided below.

Provider Ratings - 164 ratings Responses are measured on a scale of 1 to 5, with 5 being the best score. For more information about the survey, please visit the About Our Survey page. Care provider's friendliness and courtesy 4.8 Care provider's explanation of condition/problem 4.7
Care provider's friendliness and courtesy 4.8 Care provider's explanation of condition/problem 4.7 ★ ★ ★ ★
Care provider's concern for questions and worries 4.8 Care provider's efforts to include me in decisions 4.7 Care provider's information about medications 4.7 Care provider's information about medications 4.7 Care provider's information about medications
✓ More
Provider Comments - 24 comments Provider comments are gathered from our Press Ganey patient surveys and displayed in their entirety. Patients are de-identified for confidentiality and patient privacy. For more information about the survey, please visit the About Our Survey page.
Overall my visit to this appointment was all i expected and glad for it. -October 22, 2017
all good July 24, 2017



THE LOCATIONS CONTENT APP

The **Locations** content app allows consumers to search for locations that associated with the health care organization. Here, services and associated content can be customized based on the health care organization's preferences.

HOW TO ACCESS THE LOCATIONS CONTENT APP

To access **Content App** components from anywhere within CMS, click the **Content Apps** option from within the **Apps** left menu, as shown in the screen image below.

The **Content Apps** console displays. From the **Content Apps** console, you can manage **Providers**, **Events**, **Locations**, **Services** and other configuration items. Each content app has its own menu of management items.

Click the **Locations** widget, as shown below, or the specific **Locations List** link from the **Locations** menu





The Locations List Page

Access the **Locations** list page displays. The **Locations** page provides functionality for you to search and filter, with options to **Apply** (run) or to **Clear Filter** and to edit or remove existing location records, as well as create new records.

From the **Location** page, you can perform the following actions:

- Search for a location record by Name, Keyword and Status (All, Enabled, Disabled).
- Create New location records.
- Edit location records.
- Remove location records.



The contents of this document are confidential and proprietary to Healthgrades and are meant for private circulation only. No part of this document may be disclosed, reproduced, transmitted or copied in any form or by any means without the express written permission of Healthgrades ©2019 HEALTHGRADES. All rights reserved.



HOW TO CREATE A NEW LOCATION

Click the **Create New** button, as shown above, from the lower right of the screen. The **New Location** screen displays, as shown below. Following, are the fields in the screen that you will use to create a new **Location** record.

- **External ID** (This is the system-generated record identification number that is used by the system for data association purposes.)
- Enabled (This checkbox, if enabled, displays the location record.)
- **Name** (Enter the name of the location.)
- Address 1 (Enter address line 1 of location, for example: 3000 Riverchase Galleria Parkway.)
- Address 2 (Enter address line 2 of location, for example: Suite 203.)
- **City** (Enter the city of the location.)
- **State** (Enter the state of the location.)
- **Postal Code** (Enter the ZIP code of the location.)
- **Country** (Enter the country of the location.)
- **Custom Coordinates** (Click this checkbox to enable the custom coordinates that you will enter below.)
- Latitude (Enter the latitude of the location. Latitude is the angular distance of a place north or south of the earth's equator, usually expressed in degrees, for example: 51° N. To find the latitude and longitude of a location, use a latitude and longitude finder such as Google Maps.)
- **Longitude** (Enter the longitude of the location. Longitude is the angular distance of a place west or east of the earth's equator, usually expressed in degrees, for example: 20° E.
- **Cost Center** (This is a free-entry text field.)
- **Phone** (Enter this information in contiguous numbers. The field auto-formats as a dashdelineated phone number, for example: 800-555-5555.)
- **Fax** (Enter this information in contiguous numbers. The field auto-formats as a dash-delineated phone number, for example: 800-555-5555.)
- Email (This is a free-entry text field.)
- Service Line URL (Enter the appropriate URL in this field.)
- **Potential Event Location** (Check this box if the location may be used as a potential event location. If left unchecked, then the location will not display as a location option when creating an event.)
- **Description** (Click the **Show** button to enable this field. When enabled, this field expands to reveal a WYSIWYG editor, so that you can create a rich-text formatted description of the location.)
- Custom Keywords (These are keywords that will be associated with the location.)
- **Generated Keywords** (These are system-generated keywords that are related to the location (non-editable).)
- **Custom Field 1-3** (Click the **Show** button to reveal a WYSIWYG editor, so that you can create custom fields with rich-text formatting.)



The majority of consumers use search engines to make purchase decisions; therefore, top digital marketing organizations prioritize the practice of Search Engine Optimization (SEO). The following page elements are essential to SEO success, because combined, they communicate the essence of your message.



- **SEO Page Title** (This is found in the <head> element. Title tags are often used on search engine results pages (SERPs) to display preview snippets for a given page, and are important both for SEO and social sharing.
- The title element of a web page should be a concise description of a page's content. Users see the title in two places: as the page's name in the browser tab and in search results.)
- **SEO Page Description** (Also found in the <head> element, this describes what a page is about in 150 characters or less. In search results, this returns as the main descriptive text.)
- **SEO Custom Metatags** (Use custom meta tags to provide search engines with additional information about your pages. Search engines use this information to create rich snippets or enable sorting of search results.)
- **SEO H1 Tag** (This Heading 1 tag element is used near the top of the page as the page version of the page title, or to describe the page's content.)
- **SEO Primary Keyword** (The primary keyword is the one searched most frequently.)
- **SEO Secondary Keyword** (The secondary keyword is the one searched the second-most frequently.)
- SEO Canonical URL (The SEO Canonical URL tag attribute bears similarity to a 301 redirect, but it communicates to search engines that multiple pages should be considered as one, without redirecting visitors to the new URL, so that you can still track visitors separately to unique URL versions such as Payment Gateway (PayFlow Pro, Authorize.net).)



The New Location Screen

External Id	
Enabled	8
Name	
Address1	
Address2	
City	
State	S
Postal Code	
Country	United States
	Geocode this Address
Custom Coordinates	
Latitude	
Longitude	
Cost Center	
Dhone	
Feione	
Fax	
Email	
Service Line URL	
Potential Event Location	
Description	Show >
Custom Keywords	
Generated Keywords	
Custom Field 1	Show >
Custom Field 2	Show >
Custom Field 3	Show >
SEO Page Title	
SEO Page Description	
8E0 H4	
SEO RE	
SEO Primary Keyword	
SEO Secondary Keyword	
SEO Canonical URL	
Payment Gateway	8



WORKING WITH LOCATION TYPES

The **Location Types** screen allows you to add, edit and remove location types. This page also contains a filter to assist with locating location types by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*), with options to **Apply** (run) or to **Clear Filter** and by locations outside of the organization (**Show Outside of Organization**: *Yes, No*).

To Access Location Types

To access this page, choose the **Location Types** link from the **Locations** content app menu, we described earlier, or from the top **Data** tab dropdown option).

The Location Types management page displays, with functionality as described earlier: Search, Edit, Remove and Create New. Click the checkbox at the beginning of a row, or record, to act on it. Fields may be sorted using the options in their drop downs, as shown below. The fields are:

- **Name** (This column displays the location type name, such as: Department, Emergency Room, Hospital, Printable Provider Directory, etc.)
- **Enabled** (Displayed values are True or False.)
- **Outside of Organization** (Displayed values are True or False.)
- **ID** (This is the system-generated number that is associated with the location type record.)
- Actions (Click the pencil icon beside a record to view and edit its properties.)

	View Location Types in the System					
ocations List	Status Show Outside of Organi	zation			Edit	
		T Apply O Clear f	iter			
ocation Types						
	Name	* Enabled	Outside Of Organization	~ Id	Actions	
nsurances	AutomationData20161010023514	true	true	21		
	AutomationData20161011023007	true	true	23	1	
Services	AutomationData20161012022702	true	true	26	1	
	Blank Location	true	false	29	1	
	Departments	true	false	6	1	
	Emergency Departments	true	true	9	1	
	Hospital	true	false	3	1	
All	Laboratory	true	true	12	1	
Enabled	Outpatient Centers	true	false	10	1	
Enabled	PrintableProviderDirectory	true	false	2	1	
Disabled	Regions	true	true	4	1	
	Satelite Walk In Clinics	true	true	7	1	
	Services	true	false	5	1	
	Site	true	false	1		
		items per page			1 - 14 of 14 items	iove o

Note:

Location Types can also be added directly from a location record.



WORKING WITH INSURANCES

The **Insurances** screen allows you to add, edit and remove the insurances that are associated with your locations. This page contains a filter to assist with locating insurances by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*), with options to **Apply** (run) or to **Clear Filter**.

To Access Insurances

To access this page, choose the **Insurances** link from the **Locations** content app menu, as we described earlier, or from the **Data** tab dropdown option. The **Insurances** management page displays. The fields are:

- **Name** (This is the name of the insurance.)
- Is Enabled (Displayed values are *True* or *False*.)
- **ID** (This number is associated with the location type record. It is system-generated.)
- Actions (Click the pencil icon beside a record to view and edit its properties.)



Note:

Insurances can also be added directly from a location record.



Services

The **Services** option allows you to add, edit and remove the services that are associated with your locations. This page contains a filter to assist with locating services by **Name** and by **Status** (*All, Enabled, Disabled*).

To access this page, choose the **Services** link from the **Locations** content app menu (or from the **Data** tab dropdown). The **Services** management page displays.



Note;

Services can also be added directly from a location record.



SETTINGS

The **Services Settings** page, available from the **Settings** tab, provides configuration options which are related to the **Locations** content app: **Search Settings**, **Detail Settings** and **SEO Settings**.

To Access Location Settings

Choose the **Settings** link from the **Locations** content app menu, as we described previously, or from the **Settings** tab. The **Settings** management page displays.

From here you can configure the following.

Search Settings:

- Search Results Page URL (Enter the URL of the Locations search results (list) page.)
- Default Page Size (Enter the number of results that will display on the Search Results page.)
- **Pager Position** (Configure the placement of the pagination feature on the **Search Results** page. Available options are: *Top and Bottom, Top, Bottom.*)
- **ZIP Code Search Results Radius Options** (Set the default **ZIP Code** search radius (in miles).)
- **Refresh Site Search Index** (Click this button to refresh the site search after adding, editing or deleting records.)

- Global Defaults -				
Search Settings				
Search Results Page URL	/websitefiles/dev/cbadger/cb-site/us-en/m	nodule-pages/cb-location-search-results.aspx		
Default Page Size	50			
Pager Position	Тор		▼	
Zip Code Search Radius Options	10 50 100 200		Ŷ	
	Refresh Site Search Index			
Detail Settings		Refresh Site		
SEO Settings		Search Index		
Lead Management Settings		button		
Mapping Settings				
CMS Integration Settings				

Detail Settings



Detail Page URL (This is the full URL to the Locations public profile page.)

Search Settings		,
Detail Settings		~
Detail Page URL	/websitefiles/dev/cbadger/cb-site/us-en/module-pages/cb-location-detail.aspx	
SEO Settings		>
Lead Management Settings		>
Mapping Settings		>
CMS Integration Settings		>

SEO Settings

- **Detail Page Formula** (These tokens⁵ in this formula comprise the smart title that is displayed on the **Locations** detail page.)
- Search Results Page Keyword Formula (This formula comprises the Keyword search on the Locations page: *Find {KeywordSearched}*, etc.)
- Search Results Page ZIP Code Formula (These tokens comprise the Locations ZIP search. As an example, in the field displayed, below we see: *Find Locations Near {ZipCodeSearched} - Page {PageNum} - {FacilityName}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev})*

This means: Find Search Type near ZIP Code – Page Number – Facility Name, Facility City, State (ST), for example: Find *Emergency Department* near 43257 – Page 2 – *Healthgrades*, *Birmingham*, Alabama (*AL*).)

• Search Results Page Base Formula

	The following tokens may be	used for the detail page title below:						
	{TargetCity} {FacilityCity} {LocationAddress} {LocationZip}	(TargetState) (FacilityState) (LocationCity) (LocationServices)	(TargetStateAbbrev) (FacilityStateAbbrev) (LocationState)	(FacilityName) (LocationName) (LocationStateAbbrev)				
Detail Page Formula	(LocationName) - (LocationServices) - (LocationAddress), (LocationCity), (LocationState) ((LocationStateAbbrev)), (LocationZip)							
	The following tokens may be	used for the search results page titles be	low:					
	(TargetCity) (FacilityCity) (KeywordSearched)	(TargetState) (FacilityState) (ZipCodeSearched)	(TargetStateAbbrev) (FacilityStateAbbrev)	(FacilityName) (PageNum)				
Search Results Page Keyword Formula	(KeywordSearched) Locations - F	Page {PageNum} - {FacilityName}, {FacilityC	ity), {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev})					
earch Results Page Zip Code Formula	Locations Near {ZipCodeSearche	d) - Page (PageNum) - (FacilityName), (Fac	:IlityCity), {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbre	4))				
Search Results Page Base Formula	Find Locations in {TargetCity}, {TargetCity}	argetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) - Page {P	ageNum} - {FacilityName}, {FacilityCity}, {Fa	cilityState) ((FacilityStateAbbrev})				
	Enter values below to remove in the SEO titles. This will primarily be used to clean up extra or empty separator values. Use (sp) to denote spaces.							
	-{sp}{sp}- ,(sp)(sp)()							

• Lead Management Settings

⁵ A token, simply stated, is a symbolic representation of a larger piece of data.



- Lead Submission Settings
- **Base URL** (This is the **Lead Submission Settings** base URL, or base location. Once specified, converts all relative URLs on that page to absolute URLs.)
- Client ID (Tier 2) (This is a free-entry text field.)
- Default Business Unit IDs (Tier 3)
- Event Registrations (This is a free-entry text field.)

	Lead Submission Settings	
Base URL	https://staging.brightwhistle.com/api/landing_page_submit	
Client ID (Tier 2)	13	
	Default Business Unit IDs (Tier 3)	
Event Registrations	59	
Provider Appointment Requests	59	

• **Provider Appointment Requests** (This is a free-entry text field.)

Mapping Settings

- Mapping Provider (Select your Locations map provider, for example: Google or Bing, from the provided drop down list.)
- Bing Maps Key (This is the key authentication code that you get when you register for Bing maps.)
- **Google Maps Key** (This is the key authentication code that you get when you register for Google maps.)

Bing Maps Key ArRB6PGGEh0k0pQoacjikz3k0pXVRkPC9QkEHq56bZXpkQuAkFkajo4los0v4o6w			
		Bing Maps Key ArRB6PGGEhOk0pQoacjikz3k0pXVRkPC9QkEHq56bZXpkQuAkFkajo4los0v4o6w	Bing Maps Key
Google Maps Key AlzaSyAZP_EXa1m51G7xJaWqeUN2YR2OQeOIRo		ogle Maps Key AlzaSyAZP_JEXa1m51G7xJaWqeUN2YRzOQeOIRo	Google Maps Key



CMS Integration Settings

- CMS Type (Make the CMS Type selection from this drop-down field.)
- Publish Site Root (Live) (Enter the Live Site Root URL.)
- Allow Non-SSL⁶ Sites
- Host URL (Enter the Host URL.)
- Instance Name (Enter the instance name for your site.)
- User Name (Enter a username.)
- **Password (**Enter a password.)
- **API Key** (Enter the application programming interface (API) key.)

Image Library Settings

- CMS Path (Enter the path to your CMS, for example: /Your Site/Site Root/Assets/Images.)
- Publish Server Path (Enter the path for your publish server, for example: /Assets/Images.)
- Workflow ID (This is a free-entry text field.)

Site Search Settings

- **Search G2 Instance Name** (Search G2 is based on industry standard crawling, indexing and querying components, maintained by Apache. Enter the instance name for your site.)
- User Name (Enter a username.)
- **Password** (Enter a password.)
- API Key (Enter the application programming interface (API) key.)

CMS Type	CrownPeak	•
Publish Site Root (Live)	http://cms-demo.influencehealth.com	
Allow Non SSL Sites	e	
	Access API	
Host URL	https://cms.crownpeak.net	
Instance Name	IH_Sales	
User Name	migration	
Password		
API Key	45323c580c484072b7e1	
		Save

DYNAMIC COLUMNS - LOCATIONS

6 Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) standard security technology encrypts Hypertext Transfer Protocol (HTTP) for secure communication over a computer network, resulting in a secure Hyper Text Transfer Protocol Secure (HTTPS) version, which is used to protect highly confidential online transactions like online banking and online shopping order forms. To be able to create an SSL connection a web server requires an SSL Certificate.



The **Dynamic Columns - Locations** screen allows you to create and manage *custom* fields for the **Locations** screen.

To Access Dynamic Columns

Click the **Dynamic Columns** tab. The **Dynamic Columns - Locations** screen displays. Here, you can create, edit or remove dynamic columns (custom location fields).

ome Data - Setting Dynamic Columns	° ^
Aanage dynamic columns for locations	
o records found	
	One of a Name
	Create New



TO CREATE A NEW DYNAMIC COLUMN

From the **Dynamic Columns - Locations** screen, click the **Create New** button in the lower right of the screen. The **New Dynamic Column** screen displays. The dynamic column we create here will create a field of the type we select.

namic Column				
Field Name				*
Field Label				*
Is Required				
Data Type Text				
Max Length 50				Tout
Is Multiline				Number
				Date Dropdown
				Content Ed
ial S				
	Field Name Field Label Is Required Data Type Text Max Length S0 Is Multiline	Field Name Field Label Is Required Data Type Text Max Length 50 Is Multiline	Field Name Field Label Is Required Data Type Text Max Length 50 Is Multiline	Field Name Field Label Is Required Data Type Text Max Length 50 is Multiline

Create Your Custom Field Using These Options:

- Field Name (This will be the name of your custom field in the data base.)
- Field Label (This is the display name of the custom field.)
- **Is Required** (Check this box to make this a required field. If this property is left unchecked, completing the resulting custom field will not be required for the user.)
- **Data Type** (These are the data type selections that define what type of field you are creating, whether *Text, Number, Date, Dropdown* or *Content Editor*. Additional options display below this field, depending on the data type selection.)

Additional Contextual Configuration Fields

• Max Length (Enter the maximum number of characters allowed in this custom field. This does not apply to the *Content Editor* data type. Max Length applies to the *Text* data type only.) Once a data type of *Content Editor* is made for example, there are no additional options displayed.



- **Is Multiline** (This data type property selection applies to the *Text* data type only. Check this box to allow more than one line of text in the resulting text field, where applicable. Multiline text supports word wrapping, vertical and horizontal scrolling.)
- **Dropdown Options** (A selection of *Dropdown* as the **Data Type** renders this additional contextual configuration field. This field allows free text entry.)

Data Type	Dropdown					~
Dropdown Options	option 3 option 4					\$
	[Cancel	Save and Return to List	Save and Continue	-	

Once you have made your selections and entered any needed information for your custom field, click **Save and Continue**.

If you have used spaces in the first field, **Field Name**, you will see an error message restricting you from saving your custom field. Remember, this will be the name of your custom field in the data base.



Replace any spaces with an underbar to meet this requirement.

If all information has been entered according to the restrictions for each of these fields, a confirmation message displays.





THE LOCATION DESCRIPTION FIELD

Here again, in the **Data > Locations List > Edit Location Information** screen, is a custom **Location Description** WYSIWYG field we created, with a *Content Editor* data type, in use.

The field is also available in the **New Location** screen.

SEO Primary Keyword	
SED Secondary Keyword	Show/Hide
SED Canonical URL	
Location Description	Here
	HI H2 H3 H4 H5 H5 P pm 19 B J U & II C D Ø R A B B G I
	0 📾 📾 Bernes 🗞 🖬 Works 8 Characters: 0
	of: rich text, text formatting, text alignment, links, images, video and



HOW TO REMOVE A FIELD

Above, we added an additional test field, in order to demonstrate how to remove one. Return to the **Dynamic Columns – Locations** screen and click the checkbox at the beginning of the row, or record you wish to delete, as shown below.

Dynamic Columns lanage dynamic columns for location							
V Name V	Label	Туре У	Size	Required	ld ~	Actions	×
Location_Description	Location Description	contentEditor	50	true	40	1	
2	▶ 25 💌 items per page						1 - 1 of 1 items

Then, at the bottom right of this page, click the **Remove** button.



A confirmation message displays. Click **OK**.



Your custom field has successfully been created.



How to Add Insurances and Services to the Locations Search, List and Detail Widgets



Previously, the Locations Widget was searchable by Keyword, Location Type and ZIP Code (with Radius). Services and Insurances have been added as drag-and-drop fields in the Locations Search, List and Detail Widget layouts.

To access the widget, go to your relative path using our sample path as a reference. For this demonstration, we used: *../Reference Sites/Sample/Site Root/_Widgets/*. Expand **Widgets**, then select **Locations** and a sample widget: **Location Results Test Content App Widget**.

Double-click your Content App Widget. Your widget opens in Preview mode. The preview page has a message button: Content App Instance not configured. Click this button to enable the Configure button, then click Configure to open the page. The first thing you will see is a drop-down list to Select a Content App. We selected Locations. With each selection, additional fields enable, to guide you through the process. We selected Detail View from View and Accordion from Layout.

As depicted in the image below, drag the new **Insurances** and/or **Services** fields from **Available Fields** to either the **Header** or **Accordion Zone** field area. Notice the hover-text information icon (①) on these fields. **Services** says: this is a complex field, which requires additional configuration prior to display. Click the **Preview Tab** in the current screen to view your results.



Remember, you can use Edit > Copy path to share,as well as Flag areas for quick access. You can also create a new widget here, from File > New > Model > Widget > Content App Widget.



UPDATED LOCATIONS LIST AND DETAIL WIDGET OPTIONS

Insurances, Services and *Location Type* are now available as selections in the **When Field** drop-down field, under the **Conditional Settings** section of the **Raw Text with Tokens Configuration** field edit screen, as well as within that of the standard **Conditional** field edit screen, in both the **Locations List** and **Detail Widgets**.

Insurances, Services and *Location Type* are also available as **Default Query** options in the **Locations** List and **Detail Widgets**.

Access to these screens are similar.

How to Access the Location Results Widget

To access this area, from the **Content** left panel icon, using a similar path to this one: *Your Site/Site Root/_Widgets/Locations/*, access the **Location Results** widget (also referred to as **List Widget**, or Search Results Widget). Double-click to open **Location Results**. **Providers**, **Locations** and **Events** each have a **List Widget**.





This is the **Preview** of a sample page. Hover over the top-left corner of the page. Click the **Configure** button that displays.



Here, you can create or revise your layout, with fields you want displayed. Notice the top section in the screen below, with drop-down selections: **Content App** = *Locations*, **View** = *List View*, **Layout** = *Search Results*. Just below this section, click the **Settings** tab.

	G * Q * Output *		Preview_ Inline Form C * Save Worl
Cocatione * *			
Label S	tatus Content App View	Layout	
Location Details	Locations List View	Search Results v	
Location Results			
Location Search	Layout Settings Preview		
	Augusta Fields	Header Zone	
	Available Fields	- + 1212	
	Address	Name Link 🖑	
	Address1	Location Types	/
	Address2	Location image	/
	City	Insurances	1
	Conditional Field		
	Custom Field 1		
	Custom Field 2	Conditional Field	
	Custom Field 3	4 Add Column	
	Description	Body Zone	
	Distance	- + 12/12	0
	Fac	Address	×
	Insurances	Cty.	/
	Location Image	State	/
	Location Types		1
	42 Name		
		Londsonal Field	



The **Settings** tab screen that opens has four sections, with fields in each section. Here, is where you can configure your **Default Query**. Each selection is restricted by the one above it.

- Basic Settings
- **Detail Page URL** (Enter the detail page link users will be redirected to if there are search results.)
- Blank Search Results Page URL (Enter the page link users will be redirected to if there are no search results.)

Default Query

- Locations Per Page (Enter a number of locations to display per page, if desired.)
- Location Type (Configurable drop-down options. See Working with Location Types. Sample selections shown further below are: *Departments, Locations, PrintableProviderDirectory, Provider Office, Regions, Services and Site.*)
- **ZIP Code** (Enter a ZIP code to narrow your **Location Type** selection to a specified geographical area.)
- Search Within
- **Insurance** (Refine your search to the configured health insurance drop-down options.)
- **Service** (Refine your search to the configured health insurance drop-down options. Sample selections may include provided services such as: *MRI, Surgery or Imaging.*)
- **Content Settings** (Note the screen reference: These settings are ignored if location settings are present in the page's query string.)
- Limit Results to Location (Make a selection here if you wish to restrict the display to a specific location.)
- Include Child Locations

a = + Lossions	and the second		
Label	Status Content App View	Layout	^
E Location Details	Locations List View	Search Results ·	
E Location Results			
Location Search	Layout Settings Preview		
	Basic Settings		
ofault	Detail Page URL	ntlps://tve-samplepage.com/locations/location-defails	
ciault	Blank Search Results Page URL	https://www.samplepage.com/providersimuli-results	
Query	Default Query		
	Locations Per Page		
	Location Type	Select an item to filter	
	Zip Code		
	Search Within		*
	Insurance	Select an item to filter	
		Extend on Read in films	
	SHUCE	Overal all sent of some	
	Location Settings		
		Note: These settings are ignored if location settings are present in the page's query string.	
	Limit Results to Location	Automatic -	•
	Include Child Locations	8	
	Search Settings		
			Sam
a 1 1	· · ·		Geo



Search Settings

There is a new field in the **Default Query** section, called **Location Type**. A typical scenario may be placing this widget on your home page with a selected location type of *Provider Office*, to display its guery results.

You can continue to refine your default query using the fields in this section. Restrict your selected

Select an item to filter	
Departments	
Locations	
PrintableProviderDirectory	
Provider Office	
Regions	
Services	
She	
Sho	

Location Type of *Provider Office* to an entered **ZIP Code**, for example, or select only *Provider Office* **Location Types** that accept a selected **Insurance**.

Select an item to filter	
Select an item to libor	
AARP	
Aotha	
Alistate	
American Family Insurance	
American Fidelity Insurance	
American National Insurance Company	
	Select an item to filter Select an item to filter Auto Auto Auto Afac Alatata American Family Insurance American National Insurance American National Insurance Company



Click the **Preview** tab to see what the selected data for your **Default Query** may look like on our sample published page.





You can control what elements *display* on your page in the **Layout** tab. Below, we are dragging the **Location Types** field off the **Header Zone**, back onto the **Available Fields** panel.

0 . Borne .	_		Proven inter som C
Content App	View	Layout	
locations	List View	Search Results	
Layout Settings	Preview		
ontrola		Header Zone	
rallable Fields		- C uu	
ddaen .	- C -	Name Link	
ddiase1		Localize Image	
Location Types		12/2/94	
Same 2	10	Lawers	
a.	- 0	Constrained Fairl	
indrienal Flerie	0		
untern Field 1		Add Column	
.ctom Field 2	9	Dody Zone	
aton Faid 3			
estrotion		Adves .	
dane	1	Cty	
		Then .	
numeros.	H	Deance	
varion Tunas	1	Conditional Paid	4
_		+ Aat Column	



Now, let's preview the page again. **Location Types** is gone (from view), but not forgotten (in your **Default Query**)!



Default Query enables you to pull and display a list of data on your page when it loads.



HOW TO USE THE CONDITIONAL FIELD

To demonstrate another recent feature enhancement, we dragged the **Conditional** field into our **Layout** and clicked the field to open it. The **When Field** drop-down options now include *Location Type*, *Insurances* and *Services*.

		Sour namous light P			
		CSS Class	1		
7	onditional	Show Label			
	field	Label free	Canditional Parts		
		When Field			
			Addam		
		Condition	Address1 Address2	and the second se	
		Condition Value	City Custom Pails 1	and the second distance in the second distanc	
		Show-Custom	Custom Field 2 Custom Field 3		
		Value	Description		
		Show	Fast		
			Location Process		
			Name Name Link		
			Ptore Paula Code		
			Darvises. State		
	THE PARTY AND INCOME.				



The **Conditional** dialog modifies the display of data based on conditional selections you make here, for example, the entries in the example below, create a condition of **When Field Location Types** = **Hospital**. If **Show Custom Value** is selected, the text or image you add in the **WYSIWYG Editor** will display *if* the condition is *True*.

	2																	
	_	Conditional Field																
Label Text	Conditional Field																	
When Field Location Types																		
Condition	Equ	Equals																
Condition Value	Hos	pital																
Show Custom Value																		
Show	H1	H2	H3	H4	H5	H6	Ρ	pre	55	B	I	U	\$	ш	j≡	c	С	0
	E	±	=	=	Œ		\$		8	0	Word	is: 0	С	haract	ers: 0			
	1																	



Similarly, dragging the **Raw Text with Tokens** field from here, then clicking the field opens the **Raw Text with Tokens** dialog, where you can set conditions.

Content App Vie	w	Layout				
Locations De	tal Vev	Accordion				
Layout Settings Pres	lieve .					
ontrols		1000		Accordion Zona		
vallable Fields		Pleader Zone		v Senices		
Address	Da.	CD au				
Addressed 1	10	Locator mage	E.C.L	 Cocation Details 	17	
Atomal	10	Para		-0.00		
City .	0	741		Name		
Canditional Face	õ	Devices from Pase Text with to		Description		
Color Pate 1	õ.	Traumous 10	200	Conditional Parlie		
Custom Pacit 2	0	Services @	100			
Custom Parie 3	0	+ Ant Column		Attrast		
Devergelar	D			+ Add Column		
·	0					
NUS .	10			A V Hours		1
neveroes	C			A V Map		
positive image	0					
Mag	10			Contact Information		
una .	73			+ Add Accordian		
	100					

The When Field drop-down options here also include *Location Type*, *Insurances* and *Services*. Similarly, List Details may be modified using this same set of functionality. Access List Details (named Location Details here) from Site Root/_Widgets/Locations/ and repeat the steps above.



Here, from the preview page, hover at its top left and click **Configure**. Expand **Location Details**, drag and open the **Conditional** field.

Location Details X Location Results X Location Results X		
C · Q · D output ·		Preview Inline Form
		Search this ato
Locations Location Search	Location Details	
Location Results LocationSearch	Services Services Services Services Service Service Description Cosmet: Service Description Cosmet: Service Description 123-555-1234 Services Location Details Location Details Location Name Location Name Location Name Location Name Location St; Elimingham; AL 35244 Hours Hours Hours Map 9 Show Map	

Content App Vie	ew	Layout						
Locations Li	st View	Search Results	Raw Text With	n Tokens Configuration				
Sattings Pre-	dog u	_	Raw Text Field W	arning				
Rav	v Te Tok	ext	The raw text editor COD10 system do downtime. Influenc by client code. By caused by code pl	Is an advanced feature intended for use by engineers aware of the risks of injecting code into pages. The es not validate code that is placed into this control, allowing for unintended negative consequences including plate a Health in on trapeniliable for validation of debugging duration code, or for training or converding problems caused using this control, you agree that Influence Health is held harmless for any negative effect to your website accement within this control.				
Custom Field 3	+	Location Image						
Description		haurances	CSS Class					
Distance		Services	Show Label					
Fax		Conditional Field	Show Laber	*				
Insurances		Raw Test With Toke	Label Text	Raw Text With Tokens				
.ocation Image		+ Add Column	Conditional Settings					
Location Types		Body Zone		g+				
Name			When Field					
Nama Link		Address	Condition	Address Address1				
Phone		CIN	Condition Value	Address2				
Postal Code		State		Conditional Field				
Raw Text With Tokens (0)		Calance	Tokens	Custom Field 1 Custom Field 2				
Services		Continenal Part	Raw Text	Custom Field 3 Description				
State				Distance				
		+ Add Column		Insurances				
				Location Image				
				Name Name Link - DD				
				Phone				


THE SERVICES CONTENT APP

The **Services** content app allows consumers to search for services that are associated with the health care organization. Here, services and associated content can be customized based on the health care organization's preferences.

To Access the Services Content App

To access **Content App** components from anywhere within CMS, click the **Content Apps** option from within the **Apps** left menu, as shown in the screen image below.





The **Content Apps** console displays. From the **Content Apps** console, you can manage **Providers**, **Events**, **Locations**, **Services** and other configuration items. Each content app has its own menu of management items.

Click the **Services** widget, identified in red below, or the specific **Service List** link from the **Services** menu.





The Services Page

The **Services** list page displays. The **Services** page provides functionality for you to search (filter), edit or remove existing **Service** records, as well as to create new records.

From the Services page, you can perform the following actions:

- Search for a service record by Name and Status (All, Enabled, Disabled).
- Create New service records.
- Edit service records.
- Remove service records.





To Create a New Service

Click the **Create New** button, as shown above. The **New Service** screen displays, as shown below, on the following page of this document. Directly below, are descriptions of the fields in the screen that are used to create a new **Service** record.

- **ID** (This is the record identification number that is used by the system for data association purposes.)
- **Name** (This is the name of the service.)
- **Enabled** (This checkbox, if enabled, displays the service record.)
- Description (This field has a WYSIWYG editor, used for a rich text description of the service.)
- Custom Keywords (These are the custom keywords associated with the service.)
- **Generated Keywords** (These are system-generated keywords that are related to the service (non-editable).)

The majority of consumers use search engines to make purchase decisions; therefore, top digital marketing organizations prioritize the practice of Search Engine Optimization (SEO). The following page elements are essential to SEO success, because combined, they communicate the essence of your message.



• **SEO Page Title** (This is in the <head> element. Title tags are often used on search engine results pages (SERPs) to display preview snippets for a given page, and are important both for SEO and social sharing.

The title element of a web page is a concise description of a page's content. Users can view the title in two places: as the page's name in the browser tab and in search results.)

- SEO Page Description (Also found in the <head> element, the SEO Page Description describes what a page is about in 150 characters or less. In search results, this returns as the main descriptive text.)
- **SEO Custom MetaTags** (Use custom meta tags to provide search engines with additional information about your pages that they use to create rich snippets or enable sorting of search results.)
- **SEO H1 Tag** (This Heading 1 tag element is used near the top of the page as the page version of the page title, or to describe the page's content.)
- SEO Primary Keyword (The primary keyword is the one searched most frequently.)
- **SEO Secondary Keyword** (The secondary keyword is the one searched the second-most frequently.)



• **SEO Canonical URL** (The SEO Canonical URL tag attribute bears similarity to a 301 redirect, but it communicates to search engines that multiple pages should be considered as one, without actually redirecting visitors to the new URL, so that you can still track visitors separately to unique URL versions, such as: Payment Gateway (PayFlow Pro, Authorize.net). The term, canonical, refers to conforming to an accepted rule or procedure.)

Required fields display an asterisk.

Site IH Demo	•
New Service	
Create a new service in the syst	tem
Name	•
PRAINS	
Show/Hide	
Description	
	This field is required.
Custom Keywords	3
Generated Keywords	The WYSIWYG editor allows the addition
	of rich text, text formatting, text
SEO Page Title	alignment links images video and
Seo PageDescription	HTML while you edit in human-readable
	format
SEO Custom MetaTags	, Iormat.
SEO H1 Tag	
SEO Primary Kanword	
Sec Philary Reywood	
SEO Secondary Keyword	
SEO Canonical URL	



Services Settings

The **Services Settings** page, available from the **Settings** tab, provides configuration options which are related to the **Services** content app: **Search Settings**, **Detail Settings** and **SEO Settings**.

me Data + Settings					0	
ervices Settings	-					
Global Defaults -	- Global Defaults Influence Healt	s - h Medical				
earch Settings					~	
Search Results Page URL						
Default Page Size	10					
Pager Position	Top and Bottom					
	Refresh Site Search Index	op and Bottom				
adail Cattings	TB	op ottom				
Jetan Settings						
Detail Page URL						
EO Settings					~	
	The following tokens may be used	d for the detail page title below:				
	{TargetCity} {FacilityCity}	{TargetState} {FacilityState}	{TargetStateAbbrev} {FacilityStateAbbrev}	{FacilityName} {ServiceName}		
Detail Page Formula	{ServiceName} - {TargetCity}, {Targ	getState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) - {Facilit	yName}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({Facility	StateAbbrev})		
	The following tokens may be used	d for the search results page titles bel	ow:			
	{TargetCity} {FacilityCity} {KeywordSearched}	{TargetState} {FacilityState} {ZipCodeSearched}	{TargetStateAbbrev} {FacilityStateAbbrev}	(FacilityName) (PageNum)		
Search Results Page Keyword	(KeywordSearched) - (TargetCity), (TargetState) ((TargetStateAbbrev)) - Page (PageNum) - (FacilityNiame), (FacilityCity), (FacilityState) ((FacilityStateAbbrev))					
Search Results Page Name Formula	Find Services Near (ZipCodeSearched) - Page (PageNum) - (FacilityCity), (FacilityCity), (FacilityState) ((FacilityStateAbbrev))					
Search Results Page Base Formula	Find Services - (TargetCity), (TargetState) ((TargetStateAbbrev)) - Page (PageHum) - (FacilityNtame), (FacilityCity), (FacilityState) ((FacilityStateAbbrev))					
	Enter values below to remove in the Use {sp} to denote spaces.	he SEO titles. This will primarily be used	to clean up extra or empty separator values.			
	-{sp}{sp}- ,{sp}{sp}()				0	

Services Settings Field Descriptions

From the **Search Settings** section, displayed above, complete the following fields:

- Search Results Page URL (Enter the URL of the Services search results page.)
- **Default page Size** (Enter the number of results records to display on the page.)
- **Pager Position** (Choose the page placement (*Top and Bottom, Top or Bottom*) of the pagination widget.)



Refresh Site Search Index (Click this button to refresh, or rerun the site search index. A
message displays indicating that the site search index is being updated in the background and
that changes should be visible in a few minutes.)

The Site Search index is being updated in the background. Changes should become visible within a few minutes.

From the **Detail Settings** section, displayed in the **Services Settings** image above, options are:

- **Detail Page URL** (Enter the full URL of the **Services** public page.)
- •

The majority of consumers use search engines to make purchase decisions; therefore, top digital marketing organizations prioritize the practice of Search Engine Optimization (SEO). The following page elements are essential to SEO success, because combined, they communicate the essence of your message.



SEO Settings

• Tokens⁷ comprise the formulas that create each element. Consider them as objects. A list of available tokens is provided for each section. Copy and paste them in the fields in the order the chosen elements should appear, being mindful of syntax.

You can also add static (non-dynamic) words around the tokens. The intent is to replace the contents of the token fields on the published page with data referenced from a list.

From the **SEO Settings** section, options are:

- Detail Page Formula (Add or remove, or change the order of these tokens to form the Services Detail Page.)
 - {TargetCity}
 - {TargetState}
 - {TargetStateAbbrev}
 - {FacilityName}
 - {FacilityCity}
 - {FacilityState}
 - {FacilityStateAbbrev}

⁷ A token, simply stated, is a symbolic representation of a larger piece of data.



- {ServiceName}
- Search Results Page Keyword Formula (This formula comprises the keyword search on the Services page, for example: Find {KeywordSearched}.)
- Search Results Page Name Formula (This formula comprises the Search Results page Service Name, for example: Find Services Near {ZipCodeSearched} Page {PageNum}, etc.)
- Search Results Page Base Formula (This is a standard formula for the page title on search results, for example: Find Services in {TargetCity}, {TargetState} ({TargetStateAbbrev}) Page {PageNum} {FacilityName}, {FacilityCity}, {FacilityState} ({FacilityStateAbbrev}.)



CONTENT APPS - API INTEGRATION – EVENTS, OVERVIEW

This document provides API Integration information for the Events Content App within CMS.

Note:

This document is intended for users who are skilled in consuming Web services and have access to an applicable software application that allows this capability.

The API is RESTful and all requests are made up of properly-formatted HTTP requests. Appropriate URLs are defined in each corresponding section of this guide for each Content App.

Request Method and Content-Type

All requests use the HTTP **POST** method.

Content-Type: For all requests where data is being sent to the system in the request body, the content-type of the request can either be **text/xml** or **application/xml**.

Common Response Codes

The most common response codes are explained in the table below:

HTTP Response Code	Description
200 - OK	The operation was successful.
400 - Bad Request	Client error. The information passed to the service method did not match what the server expected. This could be caused by XML passed to the method that did not match the schema for the method.
403 - Forbidden	Unauthorized. The credentials passed to the service method were incorrect or the account specified did not have the permissions to perform the action that was requested.
500 - Internal Server Error	Server error. The information passed to the service method matched what was expected syntactically, but the server was unable to process the request. This could be due to an invalid identifier passed within the XML to the method, an invalid value passed within the XML to the method, or the information specified an action that violated business rules for the method.



Working with XML in Request/Response Bodies

All data sent to the server and returned from the server will be sent as XML. This section describes several things to keep in mind while working with the request/response XML.

Request/Response NULL Fields

Fields in the request/response XML can be set to Null in 2 ways:

The field has been identified as Null by its "nil" attribute – When a field contains the attribute i:nil="true", then its value will be Null. In the example below, MiddleName has been defined as a null field while PictureId is an empty node. In any response from the server, all null fields will be represented in this way.

<OrgUnitId>501</OrgUnitId> <MiddleName i:nil="true"/> <PictureId/>

See the <u>Namespaces</u> section below, for the namespace needed when using this notation.

• The field has been omitted from the request – When a field is not present in the request, then that field value will be **Null**. The example below will be seen by the server exactly the same as method 1 above:

<OrgUnitId>501</OrgUnitId> <PictureId/>

Namespaces

In most cases, no XML Namespace is required when sending data to the server. The one exception is when using the **i:nil="true"** notation to represent null fields. In this case the following namespace should be included in the root node of the request.

xmlns:i=http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance



Null Fields vs. Empty Nodes When Updating Data

In order to simplify the process of updating data through the API, null fields and empty nodes are treated differently. It is important to realize these differences and understand how the server will treat these fields in a request.

See <u>Request/Response Null Fields</u> to see how null fields and empty nodes are defined differently.

- **Null Fields** When a null field is sent to the server during an "Update" request, the server ignores this field.
- **Empty Nodes** When an empty node is sent to the server, the server removes or deletes that value.

In the example below, **OrgUnitId** will be updated to the value 501, **MiddleName** will be ignored (i.e. it's previously existing value will not be altered), and **PictureId** will be deleted from the entity.

<OrgUnitId>501</OrgUnitId> <MiddleName i:nil="true"/> <PictureId/>



AUTHENTICATION

CMS now requires token-based authentication to utilize the API. Authentication is achieved by passing an Authorization Header Value, using the Authenticate method and retrieving the token that will be used in all subsequent API methods within a given time frame.

Several steps are involved in creating the Authorization Header Value.

- Work with Healthgradesth to receive an API user and password.
- Format a string in the following format:
- <Content Apps User>:<Content Apps Password> (example: APIUser:MyP@ssWord)
- Convert the string to binary.
- Base64 encode the string.
- Prepend the Base64 string with the text: "Basic ".
- •

Example authentication code: Basic ZnVsY3J1bwFkncbOkVBMV9xYWI=

To authenticate, create a request with the following URL (where Instance Name is the name of your instance) with a POST request type: https://contentapps.influencehealth.com/<instance name>/api/public/v1/authenticate/

Pass a header in the following format:

Authorization: < Authorization Header Value>

Example Header:

Authorization:Basic ZnVsY3J1bwFkncbOkVBMV9xYWI=

The response will include a token in JSON format that you will use to access the API for all subsequent methods.

```
{
"Token" : "221b2aad-ad56-4cd6-934d-233eb4970faf"
}
```

For each API request, include the token as a header in the following format: AuthorizationToken:<token>

Example Header:

AuthorizationToken:221b2aad-ad56-4cd6-934d-233eb4970faf

EVENTS

Endpoint URL

For all Events API requests, the service endpoint URL is shown below: http[s]://<host url>/_vti_bin/MEDSEEK/EventServiceV2.svc



Request URL: <endpoint URL>/events

Request Body: None

Paging (Optional)

We've now added Paging functionality in this request. Paging can be achieved by appending the page and **pageSize** parameters to the query string:

<endpoint URL>/events?page=3&pageSize=10



Response

The response XML will return an array of EventSearchResultPortalDto nodes. Each node represents an event in the system: <ArrayOfEventSearchResultPortalDto</pre> xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.Events.Common.S earch" xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"> <EventSearchResultPortalDto> <AllGroupDiscountDescriptions/> <Availability>29</Availability> <CancellationMessage i:nil="true"/> <CustomKeywords</pre> i:nil="true"/> <DirectUrl>2011-clinical-trials-administration</DirectUrl> <EffectiveCost>10.0000</EffectiveCost> <EffectiveLocationName>Lakeland Community Hospital</EffectiveLocationName> <ExternalUrl i:nil="true"/> <GroupDiscountDescriptions xmlns:a="http://schemas.microsoft.com/2003/10/Serialization/Arrays"/> <HasGroupDiscountCodes>false</HasGroupDiscountCodes> <HasMultipleOccurrences>false</HasMultipleOccurrences> <Id>39</Id> <ImagePath</pre> i:nil="true"/> <IsCanceled>false</IsCanceled> <IsNotificationListEnabled>true</IsNotificationListEnabled> <IsRegistrationEnabled>true</IsRegistrationEnabled> <Keywords i:nil="true"/> <MaximumAttendees>30</MaximumAttendees> <ShowExternalUrlWarning>true</ShowExternalUrlWarning> <singleOccurrenceId>39</SingleOccurrenceId> <StartDateFormatted>Sunday, June 08, 2014, 10:26 AM</StartDateFormatted> <Title>2011 Clinical Trials Administration</Title> <AllowEventCart>false</AllowEventCart> <CurrentlyInCart>false</CurrentlyInCart> <Custom1 i:nil="true"/> <Custom2 i:nil="true"/> <Custom3 i:nil="true"/> <DistanceUnit i:nil="true"/> <EffectiveAddress1>42024 Highway 195 E Post Office Box 780</EffectiveAddress1> <EffectiveAddress2/> <EffectiveCity>Haleyville</EffectiveCity> <EffectivePostalCode>35565</EffectivePostalCode> <EffectiveState>Alabama</EffectiveState> <EndDateFormatted>10:26 AM</EndDateFormatted> <EventTopicId>6</EventTopicId> <EventTypeId>1</EventTypeId> <ExternalId/> <ExternalUrl/> <MostProximateLocationCompleteAddress i:nil="true"/> <MostProximateLocationDistance i:nil="true"/> <MostProximateLocationName i:nil="true"/> <SpecialInstructions i:nil="true"/> <SummaryDescription>A class that focuses on 2012 Clinical Trials Administration</SummaryDescription> </EventSearchResultPortalDto> <EventSearchResultPortalDto> <...> </EventSearchResultPortalDto> <EventSearchResultPortalDto> <...> </EventSearchResultPortalDto> </ArrayOfEventSearchResultPortalDto



Get Specific Event Request

Request by Internal ID

Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/events/externalId/<externalId>

In the example above, <Id> should be replaced with the Event Id.

Request Body: None

Request by External ID

Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/events/externalId/<externalId>

In the example above, <externalId> should be replaced with the Event External Id.

Request Body: None

Response

The response XML will return an **EventDetailViewModelV2** node which contains a single **Event** node and also include all Event Occurrences inside the **Occurrences** node.

```
<Eventdetailviewmodelv2 Xmlns:I="Http://Www.W3.Org/2001/Xmlschema-Instance">
<Event>
<Title>ACLS Provider Course</Title>
<Directurl>Acls-Provider-Course</Directurl>
<Summarydescription>a Class That Focuses on ACLS Provider Course
</Summarydescription>
<Eventtopic>ACLS CPR NRP COURSES
</Eventtopic>
<Eventtype>Class</Eventtype>
<Eventcontent>A Class That Focuses On &Lt;B> ACLS Provider Course
≪/B>≪Br/>≪Br/></Eventcontent>
<Publishdate>03/11/2014 00:00:00</Publishdate>
<Unpublishdate>09/27/2014 00:00:00</Unpublishdate>
<Contactname>Bill Gates</Contactname> <Contactemail>Blah@Test.Com</Contactemail>
<Contactphone>205-555-1234</Contactphone> <Maximumattendees>30</Maximumattendees>
<Cost>0.0000</Cost> <Isenabled>True</Isenabled> <Externalurl/>
<Orgunitid I:Nil="True"/> <Imagepath I:Nil="True"/> <Pictureid I:Nil="True"/>
```



<Internalonly>False</Internalonly> <Publiconly>False</Publiconly> <Costcenter/> <Paymentprocessorconfigurationid I:Nil="True"/> <Isnotifycontactenabled>True</Isnotifycontactenabled> <Notificationfrequency>Immediately</Notificationfrequency> <Eventexternalid I:Nil="True"/> <Keywords>Acls Cpr Nrp Courses</Keywords> <Customkeywords I:Nil="True"/> <Isregistrationenabled>True</Isregistrationenabled> <Isnotificationlistenabled>True</Isnotificationlistenabled> <Discountcodes/> <Specialinstructions/> <Custom1/> <Custom2/> <Custom3/> <Eventid>2</Eventid> </Event> <Occurrences> <Eventoccurrence> <Credentials I:Nil="True"/> <Eventid>2</Eventid> <Eventexternalid I:Nil="True"/> <Isenabled>True</Isenabled> <Orgunitid>501</Orgunitid> <Orgunitexternalid I:Nil="True"/> <Locationorgunitid</pre> I:Nil="True"/> <Locationorgunitexternalid I:Nil="True"/> <Locationname I:Nil="True"/> <Address1>849 South Three Notch Street</Address1> <Address2/> <City>Andalusia</City> <State I:Nil="True"/> <Postalcode>36420</Postalcode> <Country I:Nil="True"/> <Latitude I:Nil="True"/> <Longitude I:Nil="True"/> <Contactname>James Mcgowers</Contactname> <Contactemail>Blah@Test.Com</Contactemail> <Contactphone>205-555-1234</Contactphone> <Maximumattendees>30</Maximumattendees> <Presenter>James Mcgowers</Presenter> <Cost>0.0000</Cost> <Costcenter I:Nil="True"/> <Registrationstartdate>03/11/2014 10:26:39</Registrationstartdate> <Registrationenddate>06/08/2014 10:26:39</Registrationenddate> <Ispricescheduleenabled>False</Ispricescheduleenabled> <Earlycost I:Nil="True"/> <Earlycostenddate I:Nil="True"/> <Earlycostenddays I:Nil="True"/> <Latecost I:Nil="True"/> <Latecoststartdate I:Nil="True"/> <Latecoststartdays I:Nil="True"/> <Paymentprocessorconfigurationid I:Nil="True"/> <Dynamicformsid I:Nil="True"/> <Publishorgunitentityassociations I:Nil="True"/> <Occurrenceexternalid I:Nil="True"/> <Isregistrationenabled>True</Isregistrationenabled> <Isnotificationlistenabled>True</Isnotificationlistenabled> <Isnotifycontactenabled>True</Isnotifycontactenabled> <Specialinstructions I:Nil="True"/> <Eventoccurrencedates> <Eventoccurrencedate> <Startdate>06/08/2014 10:26:39</Startdate> <Enddate>06/08/2014 10:26:39</Enddate> </Eventoccurrencedate> </Eventoccurrencedates> <0ccurrenceid>2</0ccurrenceid> </Eventoccurrence> </Occurrences> </Eventdetailviewmodelv2>

The **Event** node in this response is presented in the same format as the request body for the Add Event request (except for the **EventId** node) as well as the **Update Event** request.

Inside the **Occurrences** node, each **EventOccurrence** node is presented in the same format as the request body for the Add Event Occurrence request (except for the **OccurrenceId** node) as well as the **Update Event Occurrence** request.



Add Event Request

Request

Request URL: <endpoint URL>/Add Event

Request Body:

The request body is in the same format as the Event node from the response from the Get Specific Event Request, except for the Credentials and EventId .

The Credentials must be supplied as the first child node of the request.

The **EventId** will be generated when the event is added, and therefore cannot be specified when adding an event.

An **EventExternalld** may be specified in order to keep records in sync with an external system. Events can later be queried through this API via the **EventExternalld**.

```
<Event xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema - instance">
<Credentials>
```

<UserName>Username Goes Here</UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here</Password> </Credentials> <Title>ACLS Provider Course</Title> <DirectUrl>acls-providercourse</DirectUrl> <SummaryDescription>A class that focuses on ACLS Provider Course</SummaryDescription> <EventTopics> <EventTopic> <Name>ACLS CPR NRP COURSES</Name> </EventTopic> <EventTopic> <Name>Cancer Support</Name> </EventTopic> </EventTopics> <EventType> <Name>Class</Name> </EventType> <EventType> <Name>Presentation</Name> </EventType> </EventTypes <EventContent>A class that focuses on ACLS Provider Course

</EventContent> <PublishDate>03/11/2014 00:00:00</PublishDate> <UnpublishDate>09/27/2014 00:00:00</UnpublishDate> <ContactName>Bill Gates</ContactName> <ContactEmail>blah@test.com</ContactEmail> <ContactPhone>205-555-1234</ContactPhone> <MaximumAttendees>30</MaximumAttendees> <Cost>0.0000</Cost> <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled> <ExternalUrl/> <OrgUnitId i:nil="true"/> <ImagePath</pre> i:nil="true"/> <PictureId i:nil="true"/> <InternalOnly>false</InternalOnly> <PublicOnly>false</PublicOnly> <CostCenter/> <PaymentProcessorConfigurationId i:nil="true"/> <IsNotifyContactEnabled>true</IsNotifyContactEnabled> <NotificationFrequency>Immediately</NotificationFrequency> <EventExternalId i:nil="true"/> <Keywords>acls cpr nrp courses</Keywords> <CustomKeywords i:nil="true"/> <IsRegistrationEnabled>true</IsRegistrationEnabled> <IsNotificationListEnabled>true</IsNotificationListEnabled> <DiscountCodes/> <SpecialInstructions/> <Custom1/> <Custom2/> <Custom3/> </Event>



equired Fields

The following fields are required when adding an event:

- Title
- DirectUrl
- SummaryDescription
- Topic
- Type

Update Event Request

Request Request URL: <endpoint URL>/Update Event

Request Body:

The request body is in the same format as the Event node from the response from the Get Specific Event Request, except for the Credentials.

The Credentials must be supplied as the first child node of the request.

```
<Event xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"> <Credentials>
<UserName>Username Goes Here</UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here</Password>
</Credentials> <Title>ACLS Provider Course</Title> <DirectUrl>acls-provider-
course</DirectUrl> <SummaryDescription>A class that focuses on ACLS Provider
Course</SummaryDescription> <EventTopics> <EventTopic> <Name>ACLS CPR NRP
COURSES</Name> </EventTopic> <EventTopic> <Name>Cancer Support</Name> </EventTopic>
</EventTopics> <EventTypes>
<EventType> <Name>Class</Name> </EventType> <EventType> <Name>Presentation</Name>
</EventType> </EventTypes <EventContent>A class that focuses on &lt;b> ACLS
Provider Course </b>&lt;br/></EventContent> <PublishDate>03/11/2014
00:00:00</PublishDate> <UnpublishDate>09/27/2014 00:00:00</UnpublishDate>
<ContactName>Bill Gates</ContactName> <ContactEmail>blah@test.com</ContactEmail>
<ContactPhone>205-555-1234</ContactPhone> <MaximumAttendees>30</MaximumAttendees>
<Cost>0.0000</Cost> <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled> <ExternalUrl/> <OrgUnitId
i:nil="true"/> <ImagePath i:nil="true"/> <PictureId i:nil="true"/>
<InternalOnly>false</InternalOnly> <PublicOnly>false</PublicOnly> <CostCenter/>
<PaymentProcessorConfigurationId i:nil="true"/>
<IsNotifyContactEnabled>true</IsNotifyContactEnabled>
<NotificationFrequency>Immediately</NotificationFrequency> <EventExternalId
i:nil="true"/> <Keywords>acls cpr nrp courses</Keywords> <CustomKeywords
i:nil="true"/> <IsRegistrationEnabled>true</IsRegistrationEnabled>
```



<IsNotificationListEnabled>true</IsNotificationListEnabled> <DiscountCodes/> <SpecialInstructions/> <Custom1/> <Custom2/> <Custom3/> <EventId>2</EventId> </Event>

Get Specific Event Occurrence Request

Request By Internal Id Request URL: <endpoint URL>/occurrence/<Id >

In the example above, <Id> should be replaced with the OccurrenceId.

Request Body: None

Request by External ID Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/occurrence/externalId/<externalId>

In the example above, <externalId> should be replaced with the Occurrence External Id.

Request Body: None



Response

The response XML will return a single **EventOccurrence** node:

```
<EventOccurrence xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
<EventId>1</EventId> <EventExternalId i:nil="true"/> <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
<OrgUnitId>500</OrgUnitId> <OrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/> <LocationOrgUnitId</pre>
i:nil="true"/> <LocationOrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/> <LocationName>River Falls
Area Hospital</LocationName> <Address1>1629 E Division St</Address1> <Address2/>
<City>River Falls</City> <State>Wisconsin</State> <PostalCode>54022</PostalCode>
<Country i:nil="true"/> <Latitude i:nil="true"/> <Longitude i:nil="true"/>
<ContactName>Kiki Dee</ContactName>
<ContactEmail>kikidee@medseek.com</ContactEmail>
<ContactPhone>4068458569</ContactPhone> <MaximumAttendees>30</MaximumAttendees>
<Presenter>Kiki Dee</Presenter> <Cost>0.0000</Cost> <CostCenter i:nil="true"/>
<RegistrationStartDate>03/11/2014 16:08:06</RegistrationStartDate>
<RegistrationEndDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</RegistrationEndDate>
<IsPriceScheduleEnabled>false</IsPriceScheduleEnabled> <EarlyCost i:nil="true"/>
<EarlyCostEndDate i:nil="true"/> <EarlyCostEndDays i:nil="true"/>
<LateCost i:nil="true"/> <LateCostStartDate i:nil="true"/> <LateCostStartDays
i:nil="true"/> <PaymentProcessorConfigurationId i:nil="true"/> <DynamicFormsId
i:nil="true"/> <PublishOrgUnitEntityAssociations i:nil="true"/>
<OccurrenceExternalId i:nil="true"/>
<IsRegistrationEnabled>true</IsRegistrationEnabled>
<IsNotificationListEnabled>true</IsNotificationListEnabled>
<IsNotifyContactEnabled>true</IsNotifyContactEnabled> <SpecialInstructions
i:nil="true"/> <EventOccurrenceDates> <EventOccurrenceDate> <StartDate>06/08/2014
16:08:06</StartDate> <EndDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</EndDate> </EventOccurrenceDate>
</EventOccurrenceDates> <OccurrenceId>1</OccurrenceId> </EventOccurrence>
```

The **EventOccurrence** node is presented in the same format as the request body for the Add Event Occurrence request (except for the OccurrenceId node), as well as the Update Event Occurrence request.

Add Event Occurrence Request

Request Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/AddEventOccurrence

REQUEST BODY:

The request body is in the same format as the **EventOccurrence** node from the response from the Get Specific Event Occurrence Request, except for the **Credentials** and **OccurrenceId**.

The Credentials must be supplied as the first child node of the request.



The **Occurrenceld** will be generated when the event is added, and therefore cannot be specified when adding an event.

An **OccurrenceExternalId** may be specified in order to keep records in sync with an external system. Occurrences can later be queried through this API via the **OccurrenceExternalId**.

<EventOccurrence xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"> <Credentials> <UserName>Username Goes Here</UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here</Password> </Credentials> <EventId>1</EventId> <EventExternalId i:nil="true"/> <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled> <OrgUnitId>500</OrgUnitId> <OrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/> <LocationOrgUnitId i:nil="true"/> <LocationOrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/> <LocationName>River Falls Area Hospital</LocationName> <Address1>1629 E Division St</Address1> <Address2/> <City>River Falls</City> <State>Wisconsin</State> <PostalCode>54022</PostalCode> <Country i:nil="true"/> <Latitude i:nil="true"/> <Longitude i:nil="true"/> <ContactName>Kiki Dee</ContactName> <ContactEmail>kikidee@medseek.com</ContactEmail> <ContactPhone>4068458569</ContactPhone> <MaximumAttendees>30</MaximumAttendees> <Presenter>Kiki Dee</Presenter> <Cost>0.0000</Cost> <CostCenter i:nil="true"/> <RegistrationStartDate>03/11/2014 16:08:06</RegistrationStartDate> <RegistrationEndDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</RegistrationEndDate> <IsPriceScheduleEnabled>false</IsPriceScheduleEnabled> <EarlyCost i:nil="true"/> <EarlyCostEndDate i:nil="true"/> <EarlyCostEndDays i:nil="true"/> <LateCost i:nil="true"/> <LateCostStartDate i:nil="true"/> <LateCostStartDays i:nil="true"/> <PaymentProcessorConfigurationId i:nil="true"/> <DynamicFormsId i:nil="true"/> <PublishOrgUnitEntityAssociations i:nil="true"/> <OccurrenceExternalId i:nil="true"/> <IsRegistrationEnabled>true</IsRegistrationEnabled> <IsNotificationListEnabled>true</IsNotificationListEnabled> <IsNotifyContactEnabled>true</IsNotifyContactEnabled> <SpecialInstructions</pre> i:nil="true"/> <EventOccurrenceDates> <EventOccurrenceDate> <StartDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</StartDate> <EndDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</EndDate> </EventOccurrenceDate> </EventOccurrenceDates> </EventOccurrence>

Required Fields

The following fields are required when adding an event occurrence:

- EventId or EventExternalId
- ContactName
- ContactEmail
- At least 1 EventOccurrenceDate with StartDate and EndDate



Update Event Occurrence Request

Request Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/UpdateEventOccurrence

Request Body:

The Request Body is in the same format as the **EventOccurrence** node, from the response from the Get Specific Event Occurrence Request, except for the Credentials.

Credentials must be supplied as the first child node of the request.

```
<EventOccurrence xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"> <Credentials>
<UserName>Username Goes Here</UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here</Password>
</Credentials> <EventId>1</EventId> <EventExternalId i:nil="true"/>
<IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled> <OrgUnitId>500</OrgUnitId> <OrgUnitExternalId
i:nil="true"/> <LocationOrgUnitId i:nil="true"/> <LocationOrgUnitExternalId
i:nil="true"/> <LocationName>River Falls Area Hospital</LocationName>
<Address1>1629 E Division St</Address1> <Address2/> <City>River Falls</City>
<State>Wisconsin</State> <PostalCode>54022</PostalCode> <Country i:nil="true"/>
<Latitude i:nil="true"/> <Longitude i:nil="true"/> <ContactName>Kiki
Dee</ContactName>
<ContactEmail>kikidee@medseek.com</ContactEmail>
<ContactPhone>4068458569</ContactPhone> <MaximumAttendees>30</MaximumAttendees>
<Presenter>Kiki Dee</Presenter> <Cost>0.0000</Cost> <CostCenter i:nil="true"/>
<RegistrationStartDate>03/11/2014 16:08:06</RegistrationStartDate>
<RegistrationEndDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</RegistrationEndDate>
<IsPriceScheduleEnabled>false</IsPriceScheduleEnabled> <EarlyCost i:nil="true"/>
<EarlyCostEndDate i:nil="true"/> <EarlyCostEndDays i:nil="true"/> <LateCost
i:nil="true"/> <LateCostStartDate i:nil="true"/> <LateCostStartDays i:nil="true"/>
<PaymentProcessorConfigurationId i:nil="true"/> <DynamicFormsId i:nil="true"/>
<PublishOrgUnitEntityAssociations i:nil="true"/> <OccurrenceExternalId
i:nil="true"/> <IsRegistrationEnabled>true</IsRegistrationEnabled>
<IsNotificationListEnabled>true</IsNotificationListEnabled>
<IsNotifyContactEnabled>true</IsNotifyContactEnabled> <SpecialInstructions</pre>
i:nil="true"/> <EventOccurrenceDates> <EventOccurrenceDate> <StartDate>06/08/2014
16:08:06</StartDate> <EndDate>06/08/2014 16:08:06</EndDate> </EventOccurrenceDate>
</EventOccurrenceDates> <OccurrenceId>1</OccurrenceId> </EventOccurrence>
```



Get Event Registrants

Request Based on Start Date Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/OccurrenceRegistrants?startDate={startDate}

Retrieves all event occurrence registrants that were registered after the specified startDate.

Request Body:

```
<Credentials>
<UserName>Username Goes Here </UserName>
<Password>Password Goes Here </Password>
</Credentials>
```

Response

The response XML will return a collection of **EventDto** nodes that contain relevant information about each event, occurrence, and attendee.

```
<ArrayOfEventsDto
xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.Events.Common.A
dmin.Attendees" xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
<EventsDto>
<EventId>1</EventId>
<ExternalEventId i:nil="true"/>
<Occurrences>
<OccurrenceDto>
<Attendees>
<AttendeeDto>
<Address>85495 Spain Ct.</Address>
<AmountPaid>0.0000</AmountPaid>
<City>Birmingham</City>
<DidAttend i:nil="true"/>
<EmailAddress>Phyllis@hendrerit.us</EmailAddress>
<FirstName>Wylie</FirstName>
<Id>1</Id>
<LastName>Raja</LastName>
<Name>Wylie Raja</Name>
<Phone>271-118-0355</Phone>
<PostalCode>35244</PostalCode>
<RegistrationDate>2011-10-22T13:54:18.5</RegistrationDate>
<StateName>Alabama</StateName>
</AttendeeDto>
</Attendees>
```



<ExternalId i:nil="true"/> <Id>1</Id> </OccurrenceDto> </Occurrences> </EventsDto> <...> </EventsDto> <...> </EventsDto> <...> </EventsDto> <...> </EventsDto> </ArrayOfEventsDto>

Get Specific Event Occurrence Registrants

Request by Internal Id Request URL: <endpoint URL>/OccurrenceRegistrantsByOccurrenceId?eventOccurrenceId={eventOccurrenceId}

In the example above, eventOccurrenceId represents the internal id of the occurrence.

Request Body:

<Credentials> <UserName>*Username Goes Here* </UserName> <Password>*Password Goes Here* </Password> </Credentials>

Request by External ID Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/OccurrenceRegistrantsByExternalId?externalId={externalId}

In the example above, externalid represents the external id of the occurrence.

Request Body:

<Credentials> <UserName>Username Goes Here </UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here </Password> </Credentials>



Response

The response XML will return a single **EventOccurrenceAttendeesViewModel** node, which contains relevant information about all attendees for a specified event occurrence.

```
<EventOccurrenceAttendeesViewModel
xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.Events.SharePoi
nt.ViewModels" xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"> <Attendees
xmlns:a="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.Events.Common
.Admin.Attendees"> <a:AttendeeDto> <a:Address>85495 Spain Ct.</a:Address>
<a:AmountPaid>0.0000</a:AmountPaid> <a:City>Birmingham</a:City> <a:DidAttend</pre>
i:nil="true"/> <a:EmailAddress>Phyllis@hendrerit.us</a:EmailAddress>
<a:FirstName>Wylie</a:FirstName> <a:Id>0</a:Id> <a:LastName>Raja</a:LastName>
<a:Name i:nil="true"/>
<a: Phone>2711180355</a: Phone>
<a:PostalCode>35244</a:PostalCode>
<a:RegistrationDate>2011-10-22T13:54:18.5</a:RegistrationDate>
<a:StateName>Alabama</a:StateName>
</a:AttendeeDto>
<a:AttendeeDto>
<...>
</a:AttendeeDto>
<a:AttendeeDto>
<...>
</a:AttendeeDto>
</Attendees>
<EventId>1</EventId>
<EventOccurrenceId>1</EventOccurrenceId>
</EventOccurrenceAttendeesViewModel>
```

Get Event Registrant Changes

Request Based on Date Request URL:

<endpointURL>/GetEventOccurrenceRegistrantUpdates?changedSinceUtcDateTime={changedS inceUtcDateTime}

Retrieves all event occurrence registrants that were registered or cancelled after the specified date/time.

Request Body:

<Credentials> <Username>Username Goes Here </Username> <Password>Password Goes Here </Password> </Credentials>



Response

The response XML will return a single **EventOccurrenceAttendeeUpdatesDtoV2** node, which contains all newly registered and cancelled registrants for all events since the specified date/time.

```
<EventOccurrenceAttendeeUpdatesDtoV2
xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.Events.Common.A
pi.V2" xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
<EventInfo>
<EventsDtoV2>
<EventExternalId i:nil="true"/>
<EventId>1</EventId>
<Occurrences>
<OccurrenceDtoV2> <Attendees> <AttendeeDtoV2> <Address1>85495 Spain Ct.</Address1>
<Address2/> <AmountPaid>0.0000</AmountPaid> <City>Birmingham</City> <DidAttend</pre>
i:nil="true"/> <DynamicColumnData i:nil="true"/>
<EmailAddress>Phyllis@hendrerit.us</EmailAddress> <FirstName>Wylie</FirstName>
<Id>1</Id> <LastName>Raja</LastName> <Name i:nil="true"/> <Phone>271-118-
0355</Phone> <PostalCode>35244</PostalCode> <RegistrationDate>2011-10-
22T13:54:18.5</RegistrationDate> <StateName>Alabama</StateName> <UpdatedDate>2013-
05-01T00:00:00</UpdatedDate> </AttendeeDtoV2> </Attendees> <ExternalId
i:nil="true"/> <Id>1</Id> </OccurrenceDtoV2> </Occurrences> </EventsDtoV2>
<EventsDtoV2> <...> </EventsDtoV2> <EventsDtoV2> <...> </EventsDtoV2> </EventsDto
<EventOccurrenceAttendeeCancellations/> <ReguestReceivedDateTime>2014-03-
12T20:25:04.535278Z</RequestReceivedDateTime>
</EventOccurrenceAttendeeUpdatesDtoV2>
```



Add Event Occurrence Registrant Request

Add by Internal ID Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/AddRegistrant?eventOccurrenceId={eventOccurrenceId}

In the example above, {eventOccurrenceld} should be replaced with the Occurrenceld.

Request by External ID Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/AddRegistrantByExternalId?externalId={externalId}

In the example above, {externalId} should be replaced with the Occurrence External Id.

Request Body:

<Attendee> <Credentials> <UserName>Username Goes Here</UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here</Password> </Credentials> <FirstName>Bob</FirstName> <LastName>Barker</LastName> <Address1>200 Clinton Road</Address1> <Address2/> <City>Birmingham</City> <StateAbbreviation>AL</StateAbbreviation> <PostalCode>35244</PostalCode> <Phone>555-333-4567</Phone> <EmailAddress>blah@blah.com</EmailAddress> <AmoundPaid>0</AmoundPaid> <DidAttend>true</DidAttend> </Attendee>

Update Event Occurrence Registrant Request

Update by Internal ID

Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/UpdateRegistrant?eventOccurrenceId={eventOccurrenceId}

In the example above, {eventOccurrenceId} should be replaced with the OccurrenceId.



Request by External ID Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/UpdateRegistrantByExternalId?externalId={externalId}

In the example above, {externalId} should be replaced with the Occurrence External Id.

The attendee to modify will be looked up based on the FirstName, LastName and Email values.

Request Body:

<Attendee> <Credentials> <UserName>Username Goes Here</UserName> <Password>Password Goes Here</Password> </Credentials> <FirstName>Bob</FirstName> <LastName>Barker</LastName> <Address1>200 Clinton Road</Address1> <Address2/> <City>Birmingham</City> <StateAbbreviation>AL</StateAbbreviation> <PostalCode>35244</PostalCode> <Phone>555-333-4567</Phone> <EmailAddress>blah@blah.com</EmailAddress> <AmoundPaid>0</AmoundPaid> <DidAttend>true</DidAttend> </Attendee> 3.14

Delete Event Occurrence Registrant

Delete by Internal ID

Request URL:

<endpointURL>/DeleteRegistrant?eventOccurrenceId={eventOccurrenceId}&firstName={fir
stName}&lastName={lastName}&email={emailAddress}

Delete by External ID

Request URL:

<endpointURL>/DeleteRegistrantByExternalId?externalId={externalId}&firstName={first
Name}&lastName={lastName}&email={emailAddress}

Request Body:

<Credentials> <UserName>*Username Goes Here*</UserName> <Password>*Password Goes Here*</Password> </Credentials>



CONTENT APPS - API INTEGRATION - LOCATIONS, OVERVIEW

This document provides API Integration information for the Locations Content App within CMS.

The API is RESTful and all requests are made up of properly-formatted HTTP requests. Appropriate URLs are defined in each corresponding section of this guide for each **Content App**.

Note:

This document is intended for users who are skilled in consuming Web services and have access to an applicable software application that allows this capability.

Request Method and Content-Type

All requests use the HTTP **POST** method.

Content-Type: For all requests where data is being sent to the system in the request body, the content-type of the request can either be **text/xml** or **application/xml**.

Common Response Codes

The most common response codes are explained in the table below:

HTTP Response Code	Description
200 - OK	The operation was successful.
400 - Bad Request	Client error. The information passed to the service method did not match what the server expected. This could be caused by XML passed to the method that did not match the schema for the method.
403 - Forbidden	Unauthorized. The credentials passed to the service method were incorrect or the account specified did not have the permissions to perform the action that was requested.
500 - Internal Server Error	Server error. The information passed to the service method matched what was expected syntactically, but the server was unable to process the request. This could be due to an invalid identifier passed within the XML to the method, an invalid value passed within the XML to the method, or the information specified an action that violated business rules for the method.



Working with XML in Request/Response Bodies

All data sent to the server and returned from the server will be sent as XML. This section describes several things to keep in mind while working with the request/response XML.

References to **Org Unit** are synonymous with **Location** throughout this document.

Request/Response NULL Fields

Fields in the request/response XML can be set to Null in 2 ways:

The field has been identified as Null by its "nil" attribute – When a field contains the attribute i:nil="true", then its value will be Null. In the example below, MiddleName has been defined as a null field while PictureId is an empty node. In any response from the server, all null fields will be represented in this way.

<OrgUnitId>501</OrgUnitId> <MiddleName i:nil="true"/> <PictureId/>

See the <u>Namespaces</u> section below, for the namespace needed when using this notation.

• The field has been omitted from the request – When a field is not present in the request, then that field value will be **Null**. The example below will be seen by the server exactly the same as method 1 above:

<OrgUnitId>501</OrgUnitId> <PictureId/>

Namespaces

In most cases, no XML Namespace is required when sending data to the server. The one exception is when using the **i:nil="true"** notation to represent null fields. In this case the following namespace should be included in the root node of the request.

xmlns:i=http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance



Null Fields vs. Empty Nodes When Updating Data

In order to simplify the process of updating data through the API, null fields and empty nodes are treated differently. It is important to realize these differences and understand how the server will treat these fields in a request.

See <u>Request/Response Null Fields</u> to see how null fields and empty nodes are defined differently.

- **Null Fields** When a null field is sent to the server during an "Update" request, the server ignores this field.
- **Empty Nodes** When an empty node is sent to the server, the server removes or deletes that value.

In the example below, **OrgUnitId** will be updated to the value 501, **MiddleName** will be ignored (i.e. its previously existing value will not be altered), and **PictureId** will be deleted from the entity.

<OrgUnitId>501</OrgUnitId> <MiddleName i:nil="true"/> <PictureId/>



AUTHENTICATION

CMS now requires token-based authentication to utilize the API. Authentication is achieved by passing an Authorization Header Value, using the Authenticate method and retrieving the token that will be used in all subsequent API methods within a given time frame.

Several steps are involved in creating the Authorization Header Value.

- Work with Healthgradesth to receive an API user and password.
- Format a string in the following format: <Content Apps User>:<Content Apps Password> (example: APIUser:MyP@ssWord)
- Convert the string to binary.
- Base64 encode the string.
- Prepend the Base64 string with the text: "Basic ".

```
Example authentication code: Basic ZnVsY3J1bwFkncbOkVBMV9xYWI=
```

To authenticate, create a request with the following URL (where Instance Name is the name of your instance) with a POST request type: https://contentapps.influencehealth.com/<instance name>/api/public/v1/authenticate

https://contentapps.influencehealth.com/<instance name>/api/public/v1/authent

Pass a header in the following format:

Authorization:<Authorization Header Value>

Example Header:

Authorization:Basic ZnVsY3J1bWFkncbOkVBMV9xYWI=

The response will include a token in JSON format that you will use to access the API for all subsequent methods:

```
{
"Token" : "221b2aad-ad56-4cd6-934d-233eb4970faf"
}
```

For each API request, include the token as a header in the following format: AuthorizationToken: <token>

Example Header:

AuthorizationToken:221b2aad-ad56-4cd6-934d-233eb4970faf



LOCATIONS

For all Locations API requests, the base service endpoint URL is shown below: https://contentapps.influencehealth.com/<instance name>/api/admin/v1/api/location

In the example above, <instance name> should be replaced with the instance name associated with the target instance.

Get All Locations Request

Request Request URL: <endpoint URL>/locations

Request Body: None

Paging (Optional)

Paging can be achieved by appending the pageNumber and pageSize parameters to the query string: <endpoint URL>/locations?pageNumber=3&pageSize=10

Response

The response XML will return an array of **OrgUnitSearchResultDto** nodes. Each node represents an organizational unit in the system:

```
<ArrayOfOrgUnitSearchResultDto
xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.OrgUnits.Common
    xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
    <OrgUnitSearchResultDto>
        <Address1>849 South Three Notch Street</Address1>
        <Address2/>
        <City>Andalusia</City>
        <CompleteAddress>849 South Three Notch Street Andalusia, Alabama
36420</CompleteAddress>
        <Custom1 i:nil="true"/>
        <Custom2 i:nil="true"/>
        <Custom3 i:nil="true"/>
        <CustomKeywords i:nil="true"/>
        <Description i:nil="true"/>
        <DirectUrl/>
        <DistanceUnit i:nil="true"/>
        <Fax>2059822345</Fax>
```



Get Specific Location Request

Request by Internal Id Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/locations?id=<Id>

In the example above, <Id> should be replaced with the Location Id.

Request Body: None

Request by External Id Request URL: <endpoint URL>/locations?externalId=<externalId>

In the example above, <externalId> should be replaced with the Location External Id.

Request Body: None

Response

The response XML will return a single OrgUnit node.



```
<OrgUnit
    xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
    <OrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <Name>Andalusia Regional Hospital</Name>
    <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
    <Address1>849 South Three Notch Street</Address1>
    <Address2/>
    <City>Andalusia</City>
    <State>Alabama</State>
    <PostalCode i:nil="true"/>
    <Country>United States</Country>
    <Latitude>31.297980844974500</Latitude>
    <Longitude>-86.494771912694000</Longitude>
    <Phone>3342228466</Phone>
    <Fax>2059822345</Fax>
    <Email i:nil="true"/>
    <CustomUrl/>
    <Description i:nil="true"/>
    <ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>
    <PictureId i:nil="true"/>
    <OrgUnitTypes>
        <OrgUnitType>
            <Name>Departments</Name>
            <IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>false</IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>
        </OrgUnitType>
        <OrgUnitType>
            <Name>Locations</Name>
            <IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>true</IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>
        </OrgUnitType>
    </OrgUnitTypes>
    <OrgUnitInsurances>
        <OrgUnitInsurance>
            <Name>American Family Insurance</Name>
        </OrgUnitInsurance>
        <OrgUnitInsurance>
            <Name>Aetna</Name>
        </OrgUnitInsurance>
        <OrgUnitInsurance>
            <Name>Aflac</Name>
        </OrgUnitInsurance>
    </OrgUnitInsurances>
    <OrgUnitServices>
```



```
<OrgUnitService>
        <Name>Cosmetic Services</Name>
    </OrgUnitService>
    <OrgUnitService>
        <Name>DNA Testing</Name>
    </OrgUnitService>
</OrgUnitServices>
<OrgUnitHours>
    <WeekDayHours>
        <DayOfWeek>Tuesday</DayOfWeek>
        <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
        <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
    </weekDayHours>
    <WeekDayHours>
        <DayOfweek>wednesday</DayOfweek>
        <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
        <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
    </WeekDayHours>
    <WeekDayHours>
        <DayOfWeek>Thursday</DayOfWeek>
        <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
        <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
    </WeekDayHours>
    <WeekDayHours>
        <DayOfWeek>Friday</DayOfWeek>
        <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
        <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
    </weekDayHours>
    <WeekDayHours>
        <DayOfWeek>Saturday</DayOfWeek>
        <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
        <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
    </WeekDayHours>
</OrgUnitHours>
<OrgUnitDiscountCodes/>
<ParentInternalId>2</ParentInternalId>
<ParentExternalId i:nil="true"/>
<CopiedInternalId i:nil="true"/>
<CopiedExternalId i:nil="true"/>
<CostCenter i:nil="true"/>
<Keywords i:nil="true"/>
<CustomKeywords i:nil="true"/>
<Custom1 i:nil="true"/>
```


```
<Custom2 i:nil="true"/>
<Custom3 i:nil="true"/>
<OrgUnitInternalId>501</OrgUnitInternalId>
</OrgUnit>
```

The response returned by this request is presented in the same format as the request body for the Add Location request (except for the OrgUnitInternalId node) as well as the Update Location request.

Add Location Request

Request Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/addlocation

Request Body:

The request body is in the same format as the response from the Get Specific Location Request, except for OrgUnitInternalId . The Credentials section can be ignored.

The OrgUnitInternalId will be generated when the location is added, and therefore cannot be specified when adding a location.

An OrgUnitExternalId may be specified in order to keep records in sync with an external system. Locations can later be queried through this API via the OrgUnitExternalId.

```
<OrgUnit
   xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
    <Credentials>
        <UserName></UserName>
        <Password></Password>
   </Credentials>
    <OrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <Name>My Test Hospital</Name>
   <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
    <Address1>849 South Three Notch Street</Address1>
   <Address2/>
   <City>Andalusia</City>
    <State>Alabama</State>
   <PostalCode i:nil="true"/>
    <Country>United States</Country>
    <Latitude>31.297980844974500</Latitude>
   <Longitude>-86.494771912694000</Longitude>
    <Phone>3342228466</Phone>
    <Fax>2059822345</Fax>
    <Email i:nil="true"/>
```



```
<CustomUrl/>
<Description i:nil="true"/>
<ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>
<PictureId i:nil="true"/>
<OrgUnitTypes>
    <OrgUnitType>
        <Name>Departments</Name>
        <IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>false</IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>
    </OrgUnitType>
    <OrgUnitType>
        <Name>Locations</Name>
        <IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>true</IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>
    </OrgUnitType>
</OrgUnitTypes>
<OrgUnitInsurances>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>American Family Insurance</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>Aetna</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>Aflac</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>Allstate</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>American Fidelity Insurance</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>American National Insurance Company</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
    <OrgUnitInsurance>
        <Name>Amerigroup</Name>
    </OrgUnitInsurance>
</OrgUnitInsurances>
<OrgUnitServices>
    <OrgUnitService>
        <Name>Cosmetic Services</Name>
    </OrgUnitService>
    <OrgUnitService>
        <Name>DNA Testing</Name>
```



```
</OrgUnitService>
    </OrgUnitServices>
    <OrgUnitHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Tuesday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </weekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Wednesday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </weekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Thursday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </WeekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Friday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </WeekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Saturday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </WeekDayHours>
    </OrgUnitHours>
    <OrgUnitDiscountCodes/>
    <ParentInternalId>2</ParentInternalId>
    <ParentExternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <CopiedInternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <CopiedExternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <CostCenter i:nil="true"/>
    <Keywords>cosmetic services, departments, dna testing, locations</Keywords>
    <CustomKeywords i:nil="true"/>
    <Custom1 i:nil="true"/>
    <Custom2 i:nil="true"/>
    <Custom3 i:nil="true"/>
</OrgUnit>
```



Required Fields

The following fields are required when adding a location:

Name

Update Location Request

Request

Request URL:

<endpoint URL>/updatelocation

Request Body:

The request body is in the same format as the response from the Get Specific Location Request. The Credentials section can be ignored.

<OrgUnit

```
xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
<Credentials>
    <UserName></UserName>
    <Password></Password>
</Credentials>
<OrgUnitExternalId i:nil="true"/>
<Name>My Test Hospital</Name>
<IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
<Address1>849 South Three Notch Street</Address1>
<Address2/>
<City>Andalusia</City>
<State>Alabama</State>
<PostalCode i:nil="true"/>
<Country>United States</Country>
<Latitude>31.297980844974500</Latitude>
<Longitude>-86.494771912694000</Longitude>
<Phone>3342228466</Phone>
<Fax>2059822345</Fax>
<Email i:nil="true"/>
<CustomUrl/>
<Description i:nil="true"/>
<ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>
<PictureId i:nil="true"/>
<OrgUnitTypes>
    <OrgUnitType>
        <Name>Departments</Name>
        <IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>false</IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>
    </OrgUnitType>
```



<OrgUnitType> <Name>Locations</Name> <IsPrimaryOrgUnitType>true</IsPrimaryOrgUnitType> </OrgUnitType> </OrgUnitTypes> <OrgUnitInsurances> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>American Family Insurance</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>Aetna</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>Aflac</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>Allstate</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>American Fidelity Insurance</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>American National Insurance Company</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> <OrgUnitInsurance> <Name>Amerigroup</Name> </OrgUnitInsurance> </OrgUnitInsurances> <OrgUnitServices> <OrgUnitService> <Name>Cosmetic Services</Name> </OrgUnitService> <OrgUnitService> <Name>DNA Testing</Name> </OrgUnitService> </OrgUnitServices> <OrgUnitHours> <WeekDayHours> <DayOfWeek>Tuesday</DayOfWeek> <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime> <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime> </WeekDayHours> <WeekDayHours>



```
<DayOfWeek>Wednesday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </weekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Thursday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </WeekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Friday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </WeekDayHours>
        <WeekDayHours>
            <DayOfWeek>Saturday</DayOfWeek>
            <OpenTime>8:00 AM</OpenTime>
            <CloseTime>5:00 PM</CloseTime>
        </weekDayHours>
    </OrgUnitHours>
    <OrgUnitDiscountCodes/>
    <ParentInternalId>2</ParentInternalId>
    <ParentExternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <CopiedInternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <CopiedExternalId i:nil="true"/>
    <CostCenter i:nil="true"/>
    <Keywords>cosmetic services, departments, dna testing, locations</Keywords>
    <CustomKeywords i:nil="true"/>
    <Custom1 i:nil="true"/>
    <Custom2 i:nil="true"/>
    <Custom3 i:nil="true"/>
    <OrgUnitInternalId>501</OrgUnitInternalId>
</OrgUnit>
```

Get All Location Types Request

Request URL: <code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"><code color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"></color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"</color="block"></color="block"</color="block"</color="block"</color="block"></col

Request Body: None



Response

The response XML will return an array of OrgUnitTypeDto nodes. Each node represents an organizational unit type in the system.

```
<ArrayOfOrgUnitTypeDto
```

```
xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.OrgUnits.Common
    xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">
    <OrgUnitTypeDto>
        <Id>5</Id>
        <ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>
        <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
        <IsOutsideOfOrganization>false</IsOutsideOfOrganization>
        <Name>Departments</Name>
        <SiteIndicator>false</SiteIndicator>
    </OrgUnitTypeDto>
    <OrgUnitTypeDto>
        <Id>2</Id>
        <ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>
        <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
        <IsOutsideOfOrganization>false</IsOutsideOfOrganization>
        <Name>Locations</Name>
        <SiteIndicator>false</SiteIndicator>
    </OrgUnitTypeDto>
    <OrgUnitTypeDto>
        <Id>3</Id>
        <ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>
        <IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>
        <IsOutsideOfOrganization>false</IsOutsideOfOrganization>
        <Name>Regions</Name>
        <SiteIndicator>false</SiteIndicator>
    </OrgUnitTypeDto>
</ArrayOfOrgUnitTypeDto>
```

Get Location Type by Id Request

Request

Request URL:

<Endpoint URL>/types?id={Id}

In the example above, Id is the location type id.



Request Body: None

Response

The response XML will return a single OrgUnitTypeDto node with the Id specified.

```
<OrgUnitTypeDto

xmlns="http://schemas.datacontract.org/2004/07/MEDSEEK.eHealth.Apps.OrgUnits.Common

"

xmlns:i="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance">

<Id>1</Id>

<Id>1</Id>

<ImageUrl i:nil="true"/>

<IsEnabled>true</IsEnabled>

<IsOutsideOfOrganization>false</IsOutsideOfOrganization>

<Name>Site</Name>

<SiteIndicator>true</SiteIndicator>

</OrgUnitTypeDto>
```

•



CUSTOM CONTENT - BASIC CONFIGURATION, CREATING CUSTOM FIELDS

Custom Fields are created at the site root level and can be used across the entire site.

- From the Site Root folder, open the _Configuration folder:
- Open the **_Custom Content** folder.
- Open the **Custom Fields** folder.
- Click New from the top menu and select Custom Field.

	New 🔻	Action 🔻	Workflow 🔻
	Applies	to: Custom	Fields
	Folder		
	File		
	Upload		
1	Project		
	Convert	to Project (I	BETA)
	Models		
Γ	Cus	tom Field	

• Name the new field and click **OK**.





To Complete Custom Field Configuration:

- Select the Field Type (This is currently either Text or WYS/WYG.)
- Enter a Field Label (This value defaults to [Field Name].)
- Enter Maximum Length (This is the length of the field. It defaults to 255 characters.)
- Provide a Default Value if desired (This value will display as the default on the Admin Input Form.)
- Provide **Field Width**, if desired.
- Provide Field Height, if desired.
- Provide **Preview Value**, if desired. (This value will display on the layout preview. It defaults to [*Field Name*].)
- Click **Save** or **Save & Preview**. (You can verify that the new custom field has now been added within the **Custom Fields** folder.)

Field Tonet	
Select ?	
Field Label [*]	
Description	6
Maximum Length [*]	
255	6
Default Value	
	6
Field Width	
	6
Field Height	
	6
Preview Value	
Description	6

•

Custom Fields have no viewable output, so a preview is not available for them.



CREATING CUSTOM CONTENT TYPES AND LAYOUTS

Custom Types are created at the site root level and can be used across the entire site.

- From the Site Root folder, open the _Configuration folder.
- Open the **_Custom Content** folder.
- Double-click the **Content Types** folder.
- Click File > New from the top menu and select Custom Content Type. (Your path would look something like this: .. /Reference Sites/Sample/Site Root/_Configuration/_Custom Content/Content Types

	File	Edit	View		
File View Q File Wiew Contemport	New Open Open	Recent		Alt+O	Applies to: Content Types
Label	Open	Flagged	Assets	•	File Folder
Blog	Close			Alt+S Alt+W	Upload
COD10 Producti	Searc	h			Project
VCO Condition					Model
 Current Event 					Туре 🍈

•

• Name the new Custom Content Type and click Create.

Create Asset	×
Create new Custom Content Type folder	
Custom Content Type	
	Cancel Create



- A new folder is created, with the name you entered in the step above for the new **Custom Content Type**, which contains a **_Content Type Configuration** file and a **Layouts** folder.
- The **_Content Type Configuration** form view has a dropdown option which allows you to set the **Default Layout** for the content type.
- The **_Content Type Configuration** form view also has a side-by-side multi-select box which allows you to select which **Content Type Fields** will be available as tokens when building a page of this custom content type.



Custom Content Type Configurations have no viewable output, therefore nothing will appear in Preview mode.

Important:

The Default Layout option has no correlation to the Content Type Field selection.

• The Layouts folder contains a Default Layout, or "out-of-the-box", basic layout.



- A **Custom Layout** can be created by clicking **New** from the top menu and selecting *Custom Layout*.
- Name the new **Custom Layout** and click **OK**. A new layout file is created for the content type. You will notice that the **Content Type** is pre-populated.

Create new Custom Layout File	×
Enter new File name	
Custom Layout	
	OK Cancel

- Check the **Default Layout for [***Content Type***]** box to use this new layout for the content type.
- The Markup area is used to drop any HTML markup you want to use for the layout.
- Available Tokens pull in data for custom fields, as well as for standard available fields. Highlight a token using your pointer, then copy/paste the token into the Markup area, as needed.







BASIC EXAMPLE OF HTML MARKUP WITH TOKENS:

Following, is a basic example of HTML markup with tokens:

 Clinical Trial ID: {ClinicalTrialID}
 Clinical Trial Name: {ClinicalTrialName}
 Clinical Trial Description:
 {ClinicalTrialDescription}
 Contact Name: {ContactName}



Tabs Layout

• Click **Save** or **Save & Preview**. The preview renders⁸ the layout of the HTML markup with token placeholder descriptions.

Content Type		
Clinical Trials	0	
Default Layout for Clinical Trials		
Markup	Available Tokens	Collapse
<pre><body> Clinical Trial ID: </body></pre>	ClinicalTrialDescription}	
<pre>contrainty = cp> contrainty = contrainty = contrain</pre>	{ClinicalTrialID}	
<pre> <br <="" td=""/><td>{ClinicalTrialName}</td><td></td></pre>	{ClinicalTrialName}	
<pre></pre>	{ClinicalTrialType}	
 Contact Name: {ContactName}	{ContactName}	
 	{PageTitle}	
	{ContentType}	
	{Excerpt}	
	{BannerImage}	

Result on publish:



CREATING CUSTOM CONTENT PAGES

⁸ In software, rendering is the process of generating an image from a model by means of computer software.



Custom Content Pages can be built to render the custom fields and layouts as configured.

• From the **_Pages** folder (or from a folder within the **_Pages** folder), click **New** from the top menu and select **Content Page**.

New 🔻	Action 🔻	Workflow 🔻
Applies	to: Clinical	Trials
Folder		
File		
Upload		
Project		
Convert	to Project (I	BETA)
Models		
📄 Fold	der	
Arti	cle	
Arti	cle - List	
Cor	ntent Apps	
Cor	ntent Page	
Inte	rnal-Externa	al Link
Sta	tic Page	

• Enter the new content page file name and click **OK**.





- A new **Content Page** is created, with the name you entered in the step above.
- Expand the Tabs: Main Content, Additional Content, Page Properties... accordion.



• Select the Drop Down: Content Type option.

	Main Content Additional Content Page Properties Navigation Page Meta Snippets & Links	
D	rop Down: Content Type	Expand
В	anner Image Configuration	Expand
С	ontent Excerpt	Expand

• Choose a **Content Type** from the drop-down menu.

Content Type		
		~
Blog		
Clinical	Trials	
Game F	Review	
News		
Patient	Story	
Test Cu	stom Content Typ	be



Tabs: Main Content, Additional Content, Page Properties, Navigation, Page Meta, Snippets and Links

You will notice that all the custom fields that were added for the **Content Type** are now available for selection.

Main Content	Additional Content	Page Properties	Navigation	Page Meta	Snippets & Links			
Drop Down: Cont	ent Type							Collapse
Content Type								
Clinical Trials	~							
Layout								
Clinical Trials La	yout ~							
Clinical Trial Des	cription				_			
Clinical Trial ID					_			
Clinical Trial Nar	ne							
Clinical Trial Typ	e							
Contact Name								
Banner Image Co	nfiguration							Expand
Content Excerpt								Expand



- Enter all appropriate information in the fields provided.
- Click **Save & Preview** to see the preview.





Preview Page



If this describes any of your symptoms, then you could qualify for a migraine headache clinical trial at our clinic.

Contact Name: Jack Sampson



CREATING CUSTOM LIST WIDGETS

Custom List Widgets can be built to render the custom fields within a list widget for a static page.

• From the **Site Root** folder, go into the **_Widgets** folder.



- Click New from the top menu and select Custom List Widget.
- Name the new Custom List Widget and click OK. The new widget is created.

Create new Custom List Widget File	×
inter new File name	
Custom List Widget	
	OK Cancel

• Expand the **Content App** instance.



• Initially, there is no Instance ID, so click Save & Preview to view and configure the Content

st Panel: Main Content		Colla
Content App Instance		Collapse
Click the "Save & Preview" b	utton to switch to the Preview view and configure this Content App instance	
Instance ID		

App instance.

From the **Preview**, hover over the **Content Query Placeholder** text and click the **Configure** button when it appears.

Z	Configure	Placeholder	
	l,	ΰŋ	
	C		



The Content Query Content App Configuration page displays.

Content App	View	
Content Query	Content Query View	
Settings		
Basic Settings		
Content Type	Select an item to filter	×
Layout	Default	\checkmark
Max Results	10	
Sort Fields	None	Y
	None	
Query Definition		
Query Mode	Simple	Y
Query Criteria	O Add Group	
		Sav
		Clos



From the **Basic Settings** section, the following options can be configured:

- Content Type
- **Layout** (Currently, the only option is *Default*. The next release should include additional layouts.)
- Maximum # of Results
- Sort Fields

oonanii App	view	
Content Query	Content Query View	
Settings		
Basic Settings		
Content Type	Select an item to filter	•
Layout	Blog	
Max Deputte	Clinical Trials	
Max Results	Event	
Sort Fields	Game Review	
	Location	
	Patient Story	
Query Definition	Provider	*
Query Mode	Simple	
Query Criteria		
query ontent	O Add Group	



From the Query Definition section, the following options can be configured:

- **Query Mode** (*Simple* or *Advanced*)
- Query Criteria

Drop the widget on a page to see the list results. Don't forget to publish the widget!

	View	
Content Query	Content Query View	
Settings		
Basic Settings		
Content Type	Clinical Trials	× -
Layout	Default	\sim
Max Results	10	
Sort Fields	None	~
	- None	\checkmark
Query Definition	Simple	
Query Criteria	O Add Group	
	Add Condition Croup	
	WHERE Asset ID 💟 = 💟	
		Savo

Note: G2 must be set up in order for the Custom List Widget to query the results.



CUSTOM LIST QUERY CONFIGURATION

Hospital Administrator users can now dynamically display related providers and services on the **Locations Detail** page.

Configuration for this display is available within **Custom Lists**, where users can reference these **Page Meta Tag** values:

- Location IDs,
- Provider IDs and
- Event IDs,

as well as the Query String Param value, in the Query Criteria area of the Query Definition panel.

Custom Lists display the correct list results based on the Meta Tag values on a page.

Example: Accessing Locations List Widget Content Query Definition within Providers From the **Content** icon, access the **Locations List Widget** within **Providers** (sample path: ../Site Root/_Widgets/Providers).

From the **File View** panel, double-click the **Locations List Widget** asset. When the page displays, hover over the **Content Query Placeholder**. Click the **Configure** button that displays.

Scroll down to view the Query Definition panel. There are two fields:

- **Query Mode** (This drop-down menu has two options: *Advanced* (default) and *Simple*. For our example, we chose *Simple*.)
- Query Criteria (This area populates with contextual button, drag and drop and drop-down controls, based on your Query Mode selection, with which to define your query criteria. We clicked Add Group and in the WHERE drop-down, selected Services. (Operators are: =, !=, <, <=, >, >=, Contains, Contains, Not Contains, Starts With, Ends With, In, Not In) and selected Location IDs.
- Page Meta Tags drop-down menu.



		File Viev	v		« »	≡	Search	× Co	ontent App W	/idget - EM T	eat 🗙 Co	ontent App	Widget 🗙	Location	s List Widg	et 🗙					
ontent		Q			•	Y	G -	₽ •	🖽 Output 🕇	-						Preview	Inline	Form	🖸 🔨 Sav	we Workflo	w 🕶
			S 📢 Pr	oviders				1	inciuae												
		Lat	bel			Status		Ai	rchived												
		🕨 🚞 Tra	ining				0		ofinition												
		📔 Ca	rdiologists				Qu	ery D	ennition												
		🛐 De	tail					Quer	y Mode	Simple)								•		
	ŵco	🛐 Fa	culty by Prog	gram				Querv	Criteria												
		📑 Ho	spital Video							€A	dd Group										
	ð	🗟 Lef	't Nav Conte	nt Widget							Add Co	ondition	B Domovia	Group							
	*	👔 Lo	cations List	Widget							• Add Cd	JICHIOT	- Kelliove	soloup							ш
	nom	🔋 Pri	nt Providers								WHER	E Ser	vices		٣	=		•			ш
	5	🔋 Re	finer											<u> </u>							ш
		🛐 Re	sults									Page Me	ta Tags								ш
	11	👔 Se	arch								Loc	cation IDs	5								ш
		🔋 Sei	arch - Top N	avigation							Ser	vice IDs	,							_	
	â										Qu	Other erv Strind	Param							Save	.
	$\mathbf{\mathbf{U}}$	« •		1	•	₩															- 1



G2 SEARCH

All custom content fields and types are indexed by G2⁹, therefore the **Site Search** and **Custom List Widget** return results for the custom content.

Site Search refiners also display and filter search results by Content Type.

Content App-Specific Search G2 Index Additions

All available **Content App** fields are now in o the **Search G2** Index. This includes all **Providers**, **Events** and **Locations** fields that are not currently indexed. For example, **Phone Numbers** for **Locations** is now indexed in **Search G2**, thus will now display in **Site Search** and **Content Query** search results.

Additional fields have also been added.

Site Search Examples

Provider	49	
Clinical Trials	2	Results 1 - 10 of 60 for clinical trials
Event Health Content Location Webpage Service	2 2 2 1	Arthritis Support Group East County (Event) /events/arthritis-support-group-east-county Arthritis Support Group East County
		2011 Clinical Trials Administration (Event) /events/2011-clinical-trials-administration Image: String and Str

⁹ Search G2 is Crownpeak's industry standard indexing and cloud-based query platform, built for speed, fault tolerance and scalability.



REFINE SEARCH		Search by keyword clinical trials Q Search Again
Provider	49	
🗷 Clinical Trials	2	Results 1 - 2 of 2 for clinical trials
Event	2	
Health Content	2	Bone & Joint Health (Clinical Trials)
Location	2	dev-inealth.cphostaccess.com/websitentes/dev/qa-test/site-one/pages/cunical-trials/bone-joint-nealth.aspx
Webpage	2	Migraine Headache (Clinical Trials)
Service	1	dev-ihealth.cphostaccess.com/websitefiles/dev/ga-test/site-one/pages/clinical-trials/migraine-headache.aspx





Custom List Widget Example

		Site Configuration Right Content
Clinical Trials	CLINICAL TRIALS STATIC PAGE	_one configuration right content
Bone & Joint Health	David O taket the state	
Migraine Headache	Bone & Joint Health	
Clinical Trials Static Page	Migraine Headache	
Site Configuration Left Content THIS IS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Site Configuration Bottom Content		



CONTENT APPS CONFIGURATION FOR CUSTOM CONTENT

For **Custom Content Types** to appear as options in the **Content Type** dropdowns, the **CMS Path** must be configured to point to the proper *_Custom Content* folder.

To Configure the CMS Path

- Navigate to Locations Settings within Content Apps,
- Expand CMS Integration Settings,
- Scroll down to the Custom Content CMS Path,
- Paste the path of the Custom Content folder into the CMS Path and click Save.

Content Apps – Location Settings

Location Settings	
- Global Defaults -	
Search Settings	>
Detail Settings	>
SEO Settings	>
Lead Management Settings	>
Mapping Settings	>
CMS Integration Settings	>



Custom Content Folder Path

CMS Path	/Influence Health/_Internal/Development/QA Test/Site One/Site Root/_Assets/Images
Publish Server Path	/websitefiles/dev/QA Test/Site One/Site Root/_Assets/Images
Workflow ID	26
	Custom Content
CMS Path	/Influence Health/Site One/Site Root/_Configuration/_Custom Content
	Site Search
SearchG2 Instance Name	ih-crownpeak-dev
User Name	single-doc-updater-influencehealth
Password	••••••
	Sav

▲ ▶ Q GoTo N	New 🔻 Action 🔻	Workflow 🔻				
Influence Health 🕨	Site One ト Site Root ト	Configuration)	_Custom Content			
[Root Folder]		Status Ch	nanged By	Changed On	Size	1
Influence Health _Internal		н	001891	5/16/2017 4:16:05 PM	6	
Development		Cro	ownPeak Admin	5/19/2017 2:28:11 PM	20	
QA Test				2.20.1111		
Site One						
Sile Rool						
Сору						
Copy Path						
Copy Asset Id						
Flagged Assets						
L]						



CREATING SUB-SITES IN CMS AND FILTERING CONTENT APPS DATA SPECIFIC TO SUB-SITE

• Create a new folder within the **Site Root/_Pages** folder.



Note A sub-site must be under the main/parent site domain and will use the main site publishing rules.

• Name the folder the name of the Sub-Site. Note that the name will be used in the URL of the site.

Create new Sub-site Root Folder Folder		×
Enter new Folder name		
Sub-site Root Folder		
	ОК	Cancel



- The sub-site folder will contain the following sub-folders specific to the sub-site:
- **_Assets** (This option is used for digital asset management for this specific sub-site. Note that the main site assets may be used within the sub-site as well.)
- **_Configuration** (This option is used to configure the sub-site logo, site properties, utilities, top and footer navigation, SEO parameters, Google Analytics code and default content zones.)
- **_Pages** (This option Houses all the content pages for the sub-site.)

Note:

Sub-sites use their own master pages, so you will need to publish the sub-site master page (found in the Assets folder of the Sub-site).

- Configure the sub-site to filter **Content Apps** data specific to the sub-sites as follows:
- Associate a location to the sub-site by opening the **Locations Content App**, editing the desired location, and selecting the **Site Association** option from the **Location's** left menu.

Home Data - Settings Dyna Location - Edit Location Informa	Cherokee Medica	al Center
Basic Fields		
Hours		When associating this location to a site, only content app data (providers, events, etc.) related to this location or a child location will be visible on pages within that site.
Services	Enable Site Association	
Insurances	Public Domain URL	
Location Types	Internal Live URL	Enable Site
Site Association	Internal Stage URL	Association
Direct URL History		checkbox

The Site Association configuration will allow you the ability to break inheritance of the content apps from the Global (Site) level to the Sub-site level.

- Check the **Enable Site Association** checkbox to enable the **Public Domain URL**, **Internal Live URL** and **Internal Stage URL** fields.
- Enter fully qualified URLs¹⁰ for the Public Domain URL, the Internal Live URL and the Internal Stage URL to include the <u>http://</u> and the domain. However, if default is in the URL,

¹⁰ A fully qualified URL contains "http://" (or "https://www").



you will want to remove **default**. **Example**: <u>http://www.healthsystem.com/sub-site-name</u>


 When associating a location to a site or sub-site, only the Content App data (Providers, Events, etc.) related to the location will be visible on pages and Content App searches within the site / sub-site.

Edit Location Informa	ation		
Basic Fields			
Hours		When associating this location to a site, only content app data (providers, events, etc.) related to this location or a child location will be visible on pages within that site.	
Services	Enable Site Association	×.	
Insurances	Public Domain URL	http://dev-ihealth.cphostaccess.com/websitefiles/dev/qa-test/site-one/pages/cherokee-medical-center/	
Location Types	Internal Live URL	http://dev-ihealth.cphostaccess.com/websitefiles/dev/qa-test/site-one/pages/cherokee-medical-center/	
Site Association	Internal Stage URL	http://dev-lhealth.cphostaccess.com/websitefiles/dev/qa-test/site-one/pages/cherokee-medical-center/	
Direct URL History			

Site Search from the sub-site will still perform a global site search (not just a sub-site search).

- Save the configuration.
- Go to the **Providers Content App**, choose **Settings** from the top menu. At the top-left corner of the **Provider Settings** page, change the drop-down value from **Global Defaults** to the desired location (i.e. sub-site) value.

Home	Data 👻	Settings	Dynamic Columns
Prov	/ider	Setting	js
- Globa	I Defaults -		
Searc	h Setting	S	
	Contab I	Deculto Dece	



• Click Break Inheritance and then click Save.



To un-break inheritance, simply click the Inherit from Parent button and then click Save.





 Ensure that the Content App Search Results Page URL and Detail Page URL point to the correct Detail page.

ublic > Brookwood Medical Center > C	Cherokee Medical Center
earch Settings	
Search Results Page URL	/websitefiles/dev/cbadger/cb-site/us-en/module-pages/cb-provider-search-results.aspx
Default Page Size	4
Pager Position	Bottom
Zip Code Search Radius Options	1 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Randomize Search Results	
Sort By Provider Group	
Proximity Distances Based on Primary Location	
	Refresh Site Search Index
etail Settings	
Detail Page URL	Avebsitefiles/dev/qa-test/site-one/pages/cherokee-medical-center/providers/provider-detail
Direct URL Path	/websitefiles/dev/ga-lest/site-one/pages/cherokee-medical-center/provider/

- If they do not already exist, create the **Content Apps** pages (**Provider List**, **Provider Detail**, etc.) within the sub-site folder structure. For example: Domain Name/Site Root/_Pages/Sub-Site Name/_Pages/Providers/.
- Configure the **Content App** page URLs (**Provider List**, **Provider Detail** pages), so that they include the relative sub-site URL. To do so, preview the page within the sub-site.



Hover over the content area and click Configure.



• Choose the **Settings** tab at the top of the window and then change the **Detail Page URL** to use the relative path of the sub-site, as in the example below:

е

Basic S	ettings	
	Detail Page URL	/websitefiles/dev/qa-test/site-one/pages/cherokee-medical-center/providers/provider-detail.asp

 Sub-sites additionally allow different styling than the main site. These settings can be changed by navigating to the sub-site within the folder structure, choosing the **_Assets** folder, then the CSS folder to reveal the configurable CSS. For example: subsiteClient.css.







PERSONALIZATION SETUP INSTRUCTIONS, WHAT IS WCO?

The **Web Content Optimizer (WCO)** is the ideal Personalization platform. It is a robust content delivery engine that provides testing and targeting capabilities at run-time, all on the client-side. **WCO** gives clients all the power they need to quickly and easily deliver and test content, capture form data and target content to specific users, with real-time reports and analytics.

WCO TARGETING GROUPS

Targeting Groups are used to help website visitors focus on items of interest, for example displaying an East Coast conference to a website visitor from Vermont. This feature enables editors to easily create targeting groups using drag-and-drop technology. The ability to use drag and drop has made using this feature more intuitive and allows much quicker building of **Targeting Groups**.

Targeting Groups describe which visitors can see your content, based on a set of **Targeting Rules** or conditions that you specify and whether or not they match these conditions.

For example, you can deliver optimized and personalized content to visitors who:

- Visit your site on a specific date or at a specific time of day.
- Visit your site on certain devices or browsers.
- Visit your site from certain sources (search engine, social media sites) or geolocations (regions, states, countries and ZIP codes).
- Have viewed or interacted with certain parts of your site.
- Have filled out a form and entered or selected certain field values.
- Have a profile in your backend systems or any third-party CRM or Marketing Automation platform.

WCO Targeting offers the best experience to manage, optimize and personalize your visitors' web experience, directly in the CMS, since it:

- Is fully and directly integrated in the CMS authoring experience.
- Leverages a simple drag-and-drop user interface to ensure ease of use.
- Requires *no* reading, editing, or copying of code.
- Is designed to integrate with third party systems such as CRM's and Marketing Automation systems.
- Contains many the most popular Targeting Group examples to get you started.
- Offers a large number of **Targeting Rules** to choose from including **Time**, **Date**, **Geolocation**, **Browser**, **Device**, **Form** fields, query-string parameters, page views and conversions, back office and 3rd-party attributes, and more.
- Can store hundreds of custom Targeting Groups and Targeting Rules combinations.
- Measures your marketing campaign success via the Analytics and Optimization Dashboards.



HOW TO USE TARGETING GROUPS

CMS allows authors and editors to vary the content of **WCO Snippets** which can be applied to text and WYSIWYG controls, directly within your CMS pages.

Creating and managing a targeting campaign within the CMS is done by defining your content variants in a **WCO Snippet**, and the associated **Targeting Groups** that describe the visitors you want to target. Both new and existing **Targeting Groups** can easily be managed via a new drag-and-drop user interface, allowing the author to select from a number of **Targeting Rules** to define the audience or persona they want to target.

Targeting Rules fall into the following categories:

- **Ambient** (Data or attributes that are readily available for all visitors including anonymous visitors.)
- Source (This data describes how the visitor arrived at your site.)
- **Demographic** (This data shows what is known about the user from their web connection.)
- **Behavioral** (This data describes the visitor's interactions and engagement level on your site by tracking page views, and conversions.)
- Form (This data is collected from any form on your site.)
- Integration (This data is retrieved from your backend system, or any 3rd party system via WCO's connectors.)



TARGETING RULES

Use the following Targeting Rules to create your Targeting Groups:

RULE TYPE	USE CASE	EXAMPLE
Time	Target users based on time of day they visit the site.	Target "at word" visitors if they visit during the day and "at home" if they visit in the evening.
Date	Target users based on date or date-range they visit the site.	Deliver content at beginning, before, after or during a campaign.
Device	Target user based on device and browser, or on a custom condition in their browser agent.	Deliver relevant content to iPhone or Safari users or based on their specific Operating System.
Referrer	Target users based on the previous site they were on prior to arriving at yours.	Identify users from search engines, social media sites or partner sites.
Location	Identify and target users from specific regions, states, countries or zip code ranges.	Target users in Texas.
Snippet	Target users who view any snippet on any page in your site.	Track user interest based on pages viewed.
DemandBase*	Target users with specific DemandBase attributes based on their IP address.	Identify competitors, partners, and/or potential customers in various industry segments.
Marketo*	Target users based on their Marketo profile.	Optimize your visitor's site experience with data from Marketo.

* Require third party integration



STEP-BY-STEP WORKFLOW TO SUCCESSFUL TESTING AND TARGETING

The workflow diagram below, illustrates the steps involved in setting up variants of content for your site.

- Assign to any WYSIWYG on a page.
- Create a **Snippet**.
- Set up a Testing or Targeting Variant.
- Set up a Targeting Group with rule set, if targeted content.
- Add content to your Testing or Targeting Variants in the WYSIWYG editor.
- Set up **Conversion** links to track.
- Assign your Snippet to Collection for analytics.





ADD TARGETING GROUPS TO PAGE ELEMENT

In Edit mode:

- Navigate to the page where you want to set up a variant of content, i.e. Personalization or a **Testing Variant**.
- Open the selected asset in **Inline** edit mode by clicking the **Inline** tab, as shown below, then hovering over the specific page element until you see the **Settings** tool wheel icon.
- Click the **Settings** icon that displays at the top-left of that element on hover.
- Select any **WCO** control on the page
- A set of actions will appear in the white menu bar just above the editor
- If you already have a snippet, skip to the next stop, otherwise click on **Create Snippet** to create a new snippet. Enter the snippet name when prompted.
- Click on Add Targeting Variant to define a new content variant.
- Enter a name for your new variant.
- Associate the variant with a **Targeting Group**, either by selecting one from the dropdown, or by clicking on **Create Targeting Group**, which will launch **WCO's Targeting Groups** interface.
- Refer to the <u>Creating or Editing a Targeting Group</u> section below for detailed instructions on how to create a new **Targeting Group**. Once created, the **Targeting Group** will now be available for selection from the **Targeting Group** drop-down menu.
- Enter your optimized content for your newly created and/or selected **Targeting Group**.





CREATE A SNIPPET

- Click on the Clone menu item or the Create Snippet icon. The Create Snippet dialog displays.
- Enter the name for your **Snippet**. It is recommended that you use a naming convention for example, {Facility}_{Location on Page}_{Type of Element}_{Element Description}: Home_CTA_Health Action.

Create Snippet		×
New snippet name		
	OK	Cancel

VCO Control					Create Snippet of	or Select snip
ile ▼ Edit ▼ Insert ▼ View ▼	Format • Table • Tool	s 🕶				
K ↔ 🖩 🖬 🗶 ြ í) 🖻 🖌 <u>I</u> x 🥎	1 8 8 A	$H \Omega$ H B	<i>I</i> ⊻ S	X _z X ^z	
<u>A • A</u> • E Ξ Ξ Ξ		🛋 💞 🕶 Formate	• Paragraph •	Font Family 🔹	Font Sizes 🔹	
						Manda.



ADD VARIANTS INTO YOUR SNIPPET

- Select Add Variant.
- Name your variant (You will see your variants in the dropdown as you create them.)
- Start adding content into each variant. Toggle between variants, by selecting each from the drop-down menu.
- Variants of content can be deleted via the **Delete Variant** button or menu item.
- As an example, the snippet might be *Orthopedics*, with Variants: *Location A, Location B,* and *Location C*.

@ WCO Con	trol AB Testing	Variant	Detach Snippet
Testing Variant	AB Testing -	Add Variant Variant	
Clone Form	AB Testing	Settings Delete Variant Also Used By	
File Edit	Test B ■ Insert ■ View ■	Format Table Tools	
₩ ↔ B <i>I</i> <u></u>	I III 🗶 D I S ×₂ ײ I Formats - Paragrap	© ⑮ ✓ J _x ち ┍ ∂ 次 □ Η Ω H · A · E E E E E E E I I I · X · Font Family · Font Sizes ·	



ADD TESTING OR TARGETING VARIANTS MENU

Depending on your **Zoom** level, you may see a menu or menu with icons.

wco:	-
WCO Control Patient Stories A/B Test	Detach Snippet
Testing Variant Patient Storie Add Variant	
Clone Form Insert Conversion Link Settings Delete Variant Also Used By	
WCO:	-
<u>e</u>	
WCO Control Patient Stories A/B Test	ac Delete Variant
Testing Variant Patient Storie 🔹 Add Variant 📑 🎢 🗞	¢ 💼
Build a Testin	g Also used
Form Setting	gs by
File ▼ Edit ▼ Insert ▼ View ▼ Format ▼ Table ▼ Tools ▼	
Formats	izes 💌



OVERVIEW OF STEPS

Key Concept

Always set **Snippets** and **Targeting Variants** on the page element itself. Make your configuration changes, then save and publish.

On Page: Set up snippet, variant, conversion, etc.

Save & Publish: This action "deploys" the personalization to WCO



CREATING OR EDITING A TARGETING GROUP

- Launch the WCO Targeting Groups interface from the left navigation WCO icon.
- To create a new **Targeting Group**, select the **New Group** button.
- To edit an existing **Targeting Group**, click the **Edit** link next to one of the pre-existing forms in the table.
- The WCO drag-and-drop Targeting Group window will appear.
- Enter a name in the **Group Name** field at the top of the page.
- Add a **Description** (field has a character limit of 150).
- (Optional) Add an image for the Targeting Group.
- Click Profile Photo.
- In the Upload Photo window, select Browse.
- Select an image from your hard drive and click **Open**.
- In the Upload Photo window click Upload.
- The selected image will be displayed for your **Targeting Group**.
- Select from the list of 11 New Rule or custom Existing rule types.
- Drag the desired rules(s) into the Targeting Group.
- Click Edit next to each new rule and enter the rule criteria.
- Save the **Targeting Group** by clicking the **Save** button.
- The Group Saved Message displays. Your Targeting Group is now ready to use within WCO.

Web	O Content Optimizer					
	arch	Targeting	Groups			
Dynam	nic Content 👻	This report dis	splays WCO content from dynamic co	ntent targeting groups created in your CMS instance.		
• Target	ting Groups	Targeti	ng Group			
Forms	s	New Group			Search:	Exclude
		Picture	Targeting Group Name	ID	Date Created	Action
**		٠	Cardiology	c430673f-fed2-498e-abeb-097b58191085	Mar 13, 2017 9:12:29 AM	Edit Delete Copy
10:		1	Demo Ortho Left Rail	fb998639-20a9-4393-bdf8-f36cff08d03d	May 14, 2018 7:54:09 PM	Edit Delete Copy



ADDING SNIPPET TO TARGETING GROUP, OR ASSOCIATING EXISTING SNIPPET

Drag the **Snippet Rule** item into the main **Rules Entered** area of the **Targeting Group** edit screen. Click the **Edit** button for the **Snippet Rule** to display its edit dialog. In the **Snippet** dialog that displays (below), when you click **Edit**, you can associate and configure your **Snippet** with **Variant** and **Links** from the drop-down lists.

Do you want to count **Views** or **Conversions**? Select your chosen option from these two radio buttons. Enter the number of hits (**# of Hits**) to count, for the page assessed from (**Assessed from Page**), in the free-text entry fields.

• The number of hits (**# of Hits**) entered tells CMS that if the consumer goes to this page, or section of your site and hits the page that number of times, that this is an interested consumer and will serve up the variant you want them to see. These stats will show up in your **Dashboard Analytics**.

HEALTH File Edit	View 2	Ŷ
Web Content Optimizer		
Q Search	Targeting Group	
Dynamic Content 🔹	Targeting Group List > Targeting Group	
Targeting Groups	Profile Photo: Name: Peachtree North Peachtree North	
Forms	Description:	
	New larger uroup besonption	
	New Field Existing Rules Entered	
	Lead_location_id FormField is equal to 194 and Edit Delete	
	4- Date Viewed Snippet 2 times from referrer crownpeak.com Ect1 Date	
	+ Referrer	
	+ Keyword	
	4. Form Field	Х
	4 Snippets: Variants: Links:	
	4. Demandoase Patient Stories A/B Test Variant B ClwfG26Mx - https://www.infl	-
	Views O Conversions # of Hits Accessed from page:	_
	2 crownpeak.com	
	Need Help? Cancel Save	e



HOW TO SET UP A TESTING VARIANT

The **WCO** testing panels allow you to see the results of your testing variants in one chart. The panel displays **Testing Variants** with the following information:

- Variant Name
- Distribution Percentage
- Number of Visits
- Conversions
- Conversion Rate

The data can be displayed based on a rolling number of days (*7, 14, 30* or *90*), or according to a timeframe: *This Month, This Quarter, Last Month or Last Quarter.* Additionally, the default display will show the **Conversion Rate** winner from your testing variants.

- Click the Add Variant menu item to add a Testing Variant.
- In the **Add Testing Variant** dialog that displays, give your variant a meaningful name, specific to what you are targeting, for example: *Heart Risk Assessment.*

WCO Control Patient Stories A/B Test
Testing Variant Patient Storie Add Variant
esting Variant X
Name
OK Cancel
Cancer



You can delete a variant, if needed using the icon or menu item.





SETTING UP CONVERSIONS

Click on the **Insert Conversion Link** menu item or icon. The **Insert Conversion Link** dialog displays. Enter the requested information in the fields of the dialog as follows:

- What is the address of the conversion link? (Enter the URL of where the call-to-action should go, or use the **Browse** button.)
- Please enter the link text. (Enter the name of the link the consumer will click on, for example: <u>Take Free Assessment</u>.)
- Select the target attribute for this conversion link. (How do you want this conversion link to open? Options are: _self, _blank, _top, _parent
- _*blank* opens the linked document in a new window or tab.
- _self (default) opens the linked document in the same frame where it was clicked.
- _top opens the linked document in the full body of the window.
- _*parent* opens the linked document in the parent frame.)
- Optional: Receive email notifications when a conversion is made. (Enter a correctly-formatted email address here; then click the Add button, if and where you want to receive an email each time a consumer clicks on the link on the website.
- Click Insert Converion Link to save your selections.



lnsert Conversion Link		×
What is the web site address of the conversi	ion link?	
	Brow	/se
Please enter the link text.		
Select the target attribute for this conversion	link.	_
		•
Optional: Receive email notifications when a	I conversion is made.	dd
	Cancel Insert Conversion Lir	k



You will see a line of code now displayed under **HTML Code** that you've created with your selections. The purpose of this conversion code is for tracking how many people click on the personalization element, or call to action (CTA).

1 2	<div class="cta-inform Current
<div class=" image"=""><ir live<br="">src="/IH_FMOL/cpt_inte</ir></div>	
3	<pre><div class="content"> @ Include Dependencies</div></pre>	
4 5	<h4>Around-the-Clock F From chest pain to need us. Now get faste in</h4>	70 :k
6	<a class="btn btn-q Live
ReDeploy to Live
href=" target="_self" tracking.omm.d="">CHECK IN	
	HERE	
7		
8		

Save and publish your page via the Workflow to take your changes live.



WHAT ARE SNIPPETS?

A snippet is a piece of code which is used by WCO. The snippet is the backbone to creating a testing/targeting piece on your webpage. Within a snippet you can:

- Insert a **Form**.
- Insert a Conversion Link.
- Target your content to offer slightly different content based on information, such as the web visitor's location.
- Change the text or image based off a **Testing Variant**.



HOW TO BUILD A FORM

See the first few steps of <u>Add Targeting Groups to Page Element</u> for additional navigation tips. After selecting your asset, in **Inline** mode, in the **Settings** > **WCO** control view, click the **Build a Form** icon or menu item.

S								
festing Variant	Patient Storie	 Add Variant 	🖪 🧨 🗞 🏟 🚥					
			Ruild a Form					
File - Ed	it_ lesst_ \6	u Format Table - T	Build a Point					
File • Ed	iit ◆ Inseit ◆ Viev		ools •					
\mathfrak{X} \diamond) 🖻 🖻 🖌 🖊	本 Q ※ Q 本					
ΩΗ	BI⊻S	$+ x_z \times^2 \underline{A} \cdot \underline{A} \cdot \underline{A}$						
<u> </u>	×		2					
	• Formats • Para	graph 🝷 Font Family	✓ Font Sizes ▼					
	-	LAR I						
	1 million (1							



The **Build a Form** edit screen displays.

∦ в	Build a Form		×
Ê	WCO Form List		
New	Form		Search: Exclude
	Form Name	ID	Action
Ê	Apt Request V2	8ec263c8-2bc9-4b4d-ab92-6ebb4fc05b32	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
4	Ask A Question	35165a46-29a1-484a-b9ee-0b8194ec4a4f	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
4	Bariatric Campaign	c41cd95f-53a8-4152-a588-fee5bd73a1f3	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
â	Cardio Risk Assessment	b66a4a2e-8ea1-4681-8a56-69a00866a48c	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
Â	Clear Cookies	43ed2ffe-1a1b-4871-9966-1b1802032159	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
¢	I AM A	fd9b97e7-4907-4bc5-a9c1-46c348829152	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
¢III.	Lee Ortho Form	df304263-1d2a-442f-8b3a-406e18c134cf	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
¢	Online Billpay	5f1b15e9-1fcf-4363-a2b0-081497a8ecb6	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
4	Pediatric Campaign	e79131d3-e96e-439c-9f09-73081e7ad3e3	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
4	Pediatric Form	238cfc92-5d7b-406b-a624-3a3248984f90	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
Â	Profile Selector	6592b056-6f7f-4f3d-9083-c0d06b097515	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
4	Request an Appointment	be58368a-381e-456b-acc7-b9320dcfed5f	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
4	Request an Appointment 7_24_17	feb62f97-dd2e-4bfd-9fdb-e588d9707da9	Insert a Form Edit Delete Copy
Nee	d Help?	First Previous 1 Next Last	
	Autor		



Actions

In the Build a Form edit screen, the familiar Actions section contains four options:

- **Insert a Form** (Click this option to insert the existing form below your selected asset.)
- Edit (Click this option to edit the existing form. This opens the WCO Form Builder screen. Any revisions saved here will overwrite the data on your existing form.)
- **Delete** (Click this option to delete the existing form. A confirmation dialog will display prior to deletion, for you to confirm deletion.)
- **Copy** (Click this option to copy the existing form. This opens the **WCO Form Builder** screen, with existing data from the copied form populated in the fields, so that you can edit it and save your changes, to create a similar form, without affecting the original form.)

Buttons

- Create a New Form (This opens the WCO Form Builder screen, with no data, so that you can create a new form.)
- **Cancel** (Click this button to cancel your changes and return to the previous screen.)
- Next Step (Click this button to proceed to the next step in building the form.)

•

Tabs

Drag any of the fields listed below onto the form and use their **Edit** control at the far right to configure contextual fields. Information icons () provide additional information on each field of the dialog. Below is the edit screen for the **Date of Birth** field. After entering required data, click the **Next Step** button to configure additional options, as described in <u>Next Step</u>, <u>Tabs</u>, <u>WCO Form Builder</u>.

- Textbox
- Text Area
- Dropdown List
- Radio Buttons
- Checkboxes
- Hidden Field
- US Phone Number
- Intl Phone Number
- US Currency
- EU Currency
- US Date
- EU Date
- Email
- URL
- reCAPTCHA

- Existing
- Accepted Insurance
- Account Number
- Address
- Amount
- Best Way to Contact Me
- City
- Date of Birth
- email2
- Facility
- First Name
- first_name
- Gender
- Hidden Field
- Hidden Field

- Hidden Field
- Hidden Field
- Hidden Field
- Hidden Field
- Interest Area
- last_name_baria tric
- Patient First Name
- Patient Information
- Patient Last Name
- phone_number
 - Please send me periodic updates about Women's

- Health related topics.
- Preferred Location
- Profile Selector
- Provider
- Reason for Visit
- Specialty
- State
- Take a FREE Risk Assessment
- Take a FREE
 Risk
 Assessment
- Test Snippet
- Would you like a free Fitness
 Pass?



- Yes Add Me to Your Mailing List
- Your Age:
- Your Question
- ZIP



Date Input Settings

DateInput Settings				×
Label 1 Date of Birth	Is This a Required Field? Yes No	0		
Field Placeholder 1]			
Field Name* (1) date_of_birth	Initial Field Value 1 DOB			
Validation Pattern 3 [01]?[0-9]/[0-3]?[0-9]/[0-9]{4}				
Need Help?		Cancel	Save	

Placement

Click one of these options to position your form relative to your asset's placement on the page.

- None
- Top
- Right
- Left

Next Step, Tabs, WCO Form Builder

See the image below, to view the **WCO Form Builder** tabs, as described here. Navigate to each step using **WCO Form Builder's** intuitive features. Simply click on each tab to configure and continue. Buttons are: **Cancel**, **Previous Step**, **Save As**, **Save Form** and **Save and Insert Form**.

- General (In this tab screen, enter your Form Name and select Yes or No to the question, Transmit form via HTTPS connection?)
- **Notifications** (Answer the questions in this tab screen to indicate:
- What do you want this Form to do? Send an Email in your selected format: XML or Text.
- Add Recipient Email Address (Enter a valid email address and click the Add button.
- Select the checkbox to Validate custom email recipients against above list.
- Select your Sender Email Address from the drop-down options.
- The Email Subject is added for you.
- A standard message is entered for you under **Email Body**. For example: Your request is being processed and we will be contacting you within 24 hours. You can delete this message or append it with any text you want.)



- **Rules** (Answer the questions in this tab screen to indicate:
- What is the redirect URL? * (Required field, use the document icon to select your asset URL.)
- Select where to post data to, in addition to storing it directly in **Web Content Optimizer.** Use the checkbox to indicate: **Do not store form submission data**.
- Select a connector from the drop-down options (example: *Bariatric Campaign, Cardio Risk Assessment, etc.*) and click the **Add Connector** button.
- Connectors displays any previously added connector. Click the x icon to delete, if desired.)
- Auto-Reply (You have the option here to Clear Auto-Reply Settings.
- **Recipient Addresses Field:** * (Required field. Select from the drop-down options: for example *Patient Last Name, Date of Birth, Patient First Name.*)
- Sender Email Address: * (Required field. Select from the drop-down options.)
- Email Subject: * (Required field. Enter the subject of your email.)
- Email Body: * (Required field. Enter the content of your email.)
- Email HTML Body: (Enter the formatted content of your email.)
- **BCC Recipients:** (Add (or delete) any recipients for this field. Use the **Add** button after entering a valid email address.)
- Add BCC Email Address: (Add (or delete) any recipients for this field. Use the Add button after entering a valid email address.)
- **Embed Code** (In this tab screen under the **Code** tab (default) you can view the embed code of your form (once you have saved it) that has been created from your selections.)
- Advanced (If you select this tab, you can use your own form with WCO, by simply adding the following two form attributes to your own custom form:
- Form Action: Replace your current Form Action property with the following: (See screen.)
- Select Variant Form ID: Add the following Hidden Form Field to your existing form: (See screen.)

See the next page for sample screens of the above.



				>
tings				WCO
 Rules 	Auto-Reply	Embed Co	de 🔸	Form
				Buildor
				tabs
				labs
d				
above list				
		Cancel Prev	vious Step Save As	Save Form Save and Insert Form
	tings TRUIes	tings Rules Auto-Reply	tings Rules Auto-Reply Embed Co above list	tings Rules Auto-Reply Embed Code above list





SOME TIPS FOR EDITING WCO FORMS

Here are some tips on what to expect when editing WCO forms snippets, for admins and developers about editing WCO form snippets through CMS.

Body

- If you make an update to the **Form** settings itself (**Redirect URLs**, **Autoreply**, **Connectors**, etc.) it will be reflected automatically if your HTML forms use that **WCOFormID**.
- If the snippet *containing* your form is managed by a CMS asset, then it is not recommended to change it directly in the **WCO**, it will be overridden next time the asset with the **Snippet** is republished.
- Direct **WCO Snippet** changes are committed *immediately*, but do *not* update the asset's content *automatically* and are applicable only until the original page is redeployed (which will override your direct changes).

A Note about Updating Snippet Content after Editing

The actual HTML of the form is added to the **Snippet** content manually, or by selecting **Insert HTML Code at End of Snippet** when inserting a form, so:

- If you add or remove fields from the **Form** you will need to update the **Snippet** content, even if you make the edits directly in the **WCO Form** editor.
- In other words, if **Snippet** *X* uses **Form** *A*, and you edit **Form** *A directly*, by adding new fields, the form HTML in **Snippet** *X won't be updated automatically*, so it won't include those new fields.
- If you add or remove **Form** fields *directly* through **WCO** the **Snippet** content won't be updated automatically.



REPORTING

Access **Reports** via the **Dashboard** to see high-level results. To drill down into specific variants, select either **Analytics** or **Optimization** in the **Dashboard** dropdown.

- Collection
- Content Snippets
- Target
- Website
- Website Page
- Date Range

HEALTH	Dashboard: Optimization	-	Add Widget				2		
WCO Analyt	Demo Dashboard ★	¢							
Collection	Collection Default Dashboard Image: Collection of the second sec		Target	Target Website					
ALL			✓ ALL ▼	demoam-ih-Live 👻	ALL	Last 7 Days			
Targeting	Optimization	¢							
Apt Reque	Add Dashboard			Snippet Visi					
Total Visits:	0 Total Conversions: 0			Name: Apt Request Thank You Page: Thank You Apt Request		0 0 0 t 0 t	0% 0% 1		
0.8				Name: Hospital Locations Page: root	0 0 0 t 0 t	0% 0% 1			
0.4				Name: Find a Location Page: root	0 0 0 t 0 t	0% 0% 1			
Visit and Conversio			sion Comparison	Name: ER Locations Page: root	0 0 0 t 0 t	0% 0% 1			
Testing				<u>n o si n</u>		· · ·			
Homepage	e B Patient Stories A/B Test 📕 Va	iant B		Snippet	visits Conversions	Rate			
Total Visits:	0 Total Conversions: 0			Name: Homepage B Patient Stories A/B Tr Page: Home Page B	0 0 0 t 0 t	0% 0% 1			
0.8				Name: Homepage B Women's Health Test	ing	0 0 0 t 0 t	0% 0% 1		



LUENCE	Dashboard: Analytics	-	🕀 Add Widge	et								3	
WCO Analyt	ics Filter												
Collection		Content Snippets			Target		Website		Website Page		Date Range		
Demo_Refere	ence Site -	ALL	•		ALL	•	salesreference-ih-live -		ALL	•	Last 90 Days		÷
Traffic Source	ces					¢	Content						1
All	Dashboard: Analytics						● Visits ○ Conversions						
• Visits	visits © Conversions												
launchpad	i.influencehealth.com 📒 cm: isreference-ih.cphostaccess	s-demo.influencehe	alth.com	iown			http://	/cms-der	mo influencehealth.com/peac	ntree-hospita	al/cardiology/		
Grid View							Grid View						
Analytics Ch	narts					¢	Audience						
Visits: 396	(A71% since previous 90)	days)					Browser • Visits O Conversions		•				



TARGETING GROUPS FAQ Question: Does WCO support AND / OR logical operations?

Answer:

WCO automatically inserts an "AND" after every **Targeting Rule**. This allows you to create target audiences that are as specific as your business requirements dictate.

In cases where you need to deliver the same content to different target audiences, **WCO** provides a number of techniques to facilitate this requirement

- Most **WCO Targeting Rules** support an **Is Contained in** and **Is Not Contained in** logical operations which allow you to define any number of values you would like to match against.
- These values should be clearly delimited by a space, comma, or a pipe.

Examples:

- Demographic: Geo-Location: State is contained in "CA", "NY", "TX".
- Form: Field Value: JobTitle is contained in "Marketer", "Project Manager", "IT Developer".

Certain ambient attributes such as Browser and Device provide checkboxes to select from. You may choose one or more checkboxes with an implied OR.

Examples:

- Ambient: Browser: Chrome, Safari, IE
- Ambient: Device: iPhone, Android, Blackberry
- •
- Behavioral attributes natively support OR operations, due to the parent/child relationship between Snippets and their variants, as well as between Variants and embedded Conversion Links
- Selecting the parent Snippet reports on all embedded Variant views and is essentially an OR between the Variants.
- Selecting a **Variant** reports on all embedded conversion links and is essentially an **OR** between the **Conversion Links**.

Examples:

- Behavioral: Views: All Variants of a particular Snippet (essentially an OR between the Variants)
- Behavioral: Conversions: All conversions of a particular Variant or Snippet (essentially an OR between all the Conversion Links)



• WCO also allows you to repeat the same Variant, as many times as you like within a Snippet. These identical Variants can be associated with any Targeting Group, allowing you to deliver the same content to different target audiences.



Question:

How do I pass custom parameters or values to a WCO Snippet for targeting purposes?

Answer:

WCO recognizes any custom parameters included in the **Snippet's** JavaScript call, and exposes these parameters for targeting purposes as **Form** field values.

This capability is extremely useful in instances where you need to pass user profile-specific attributes to **WCO** in real-time, or asset specific parameters to the **WCO Snippet**.

This data is not stored in WCO and will not impact your conversion counts.

Let's say for example, that we need to pass the label or the page that is delivering the **WCO Snippet**. To add this custom real-time attribute to **WCO**, add the following code to your **Output Template**.

<%= asset["wco_snippet"].Replace("\" ></script>", "?asset =" + asset.Label + "\"
></script>")%>

This code will produce the following output:

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="//snippet.omm.crownpeak.com/s/2c4764a1-b91d-
4d37-9aeb-eaabecfa2fc2?asset=Homepage" ></script>
```

The custom attribute will now be targetable in **WCO** as a **Form** field value.

Question:

How can I preview my optimized experiences in the CMS?

The CMS provides an intuitive interface directly within the authoring experience to preview your content variations for each of the **Targeting Groups** you've defined. While previewing and/or editing an asset, the **View** tab > **WCO Targeting** opens a **WCO** panel which lists all of the **Targeting Groups** used on the page. Clicking on any **Profile** (which is the same as a **Targeting Group**), will result in re-rending the page in real-time, reflecting what the targeted audience would see.



WCO TERMINOLOGY

- **Browser Cookie** (Information and behavior stored in a user's web browser that can later be used to personalize digital experiences.)
- **Browser Session** (Information about a web visitor's session (i.e., location, device type, time) based on IP address.)
- **Business Logic** (Using targeting rules to identify web visitors. When the rules are triggered, personalized content is then displayed.)
- **Collection** (Collections are a group of **Snippets**. Group **Snippets** for targeting purposes, or to funnel a web visitor to a specific item, such as a white paper.)
- **Persona** (A semi-fictional representation of a type of buyer or customer that helps companies better understand and communicate to their audiences. Personas are useful in crafting marketing messages, campaigns and digital marketing experiences tailored to a specific audience segment.)
- **Snippet** (A **Snippet** is a piece of code which is used by **WCO**. The **Snippet** is the backbone to creating a testing/targeting piece on your webpage. Within a **Snippet** you can:
- Insert a Form,
- Insert a Conversion Link,
- Target your content to offer slightly different content based on information, such as the web visitor's location,
- Change the text or image based off a **Testing Variant**.)
- **Targeting Group** (**Targeting Groups** describe which visitors can see your content, based on a set of **Targeting Rules** or conditions that you specify and whether or not they match these conditions.)
- **Targeting Rules** (Targeting Rules fall into the following categories:
- **Ambient** (Data or attributes that are readily available for all visitors including anonymous visitors)
- **Source** (This data describes how the visitor arrived at your site.)
- Demographic (This data shows what is known about the user from their web connection.)
- **Behavioral** (This data describes the visitor's interactions and engagement level on your site by tracking page views, and conversions.)
- Form (This data is collected from any form on your site.)
- Integration (This data is retrieved from your backend system, or any 3rd party system via WCO's connectors.))
- Variant (Each Variant defines a test or target associated with a given Snippet. After creating a Snippet, authors select the variant type, whether testing or targeting. Multiple variants of the same type can be added to a Snippet. Content Variant refers to a specific set of text or images that are displayed for each Target Group.)



GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT COOKIES STORED BY WCO

The following contains a listing and general information about cookies stored by WCO.

- Cookie Name: a
- Cookie Domain: snippet.omm.crownpeak.com
- The *a* cookie keeps track of IP address recorded for this client's OmmAnonId.
- Cookie Name: OmmAnonId
- Cookie Domain: .omm.crownpeak.com
- The OmmAnonId is a GUID used as the key to the user's identity
- Cookie Name: ASP.NET_SessionId
- Cookie Domain: snippet.omm.crownpeak.com
- The ASP.NET_SessionId is the session cookie used by WCO.
- Cookie Name: OmmValues80112474-504a-4bcb-9f86-e212c0b0039a
- Cookie Domain: <u>.omm.crownpeak.com</u>
- The OmmValues(key) is a unique identifier to the specific **Snippet** to which the cookie is related.


WHAT IS DQM?

Digital Quality Management (DQM) is a platform that provides reporting, by a library of continually updated digital technical and legal specification standards on all issues detected on your site, whether your site is **Live**, in development or in **Staging**.

DQM Capabilities

CMS provides the only automated digital governance solution that integrates *directly* with your healthcare web Content Management Solution (CMS), assuring a high quality, consistent customer experience across every page and asset of your site.

With DQM, you can:

- View a consolidated analysis of error classifications on *all* your web pages from a central dashboard, with links to make corrections on the fly.
- Ensure Web Content Guidelines (WCAG) 1.0 and 2.0 and Section 508 accessibility standardscompliant content. For more information see <u>Accessibility in DQM</u>.
- Easily correct details such as broken links, orphaned pages, readability and misspellings (in multiple languages), which can have a strong impact on public perception.
- Quickly target and resolve Search Engine Optimization (SEO) issues, which can affect how easily your pages are found, and ultimately conversion rates, using included best practices and rule customization.
- Quickly target and resolve URL structure and code issues, as well as privacy and cookie policy inclusion and mobile device optimization.
- Automatically monitor your digital properties 24/7, by crawling your sites, regardless of channel, with configurable frequency.
- Protect your brand with reporting for brand violations, such as usage of an incorrect logo or color palette, incorrect font, punctuation or image assets, consistent use of terminology, language clarity, use of prohibited terms, etc., across all digital experiences.
- Detect and track key digital assets across all of your sites, making it easy to review and replace files.

Take your web presence to the next level by proactively detecting and resolving all major digital presence issues.



ACCESSIBILITY IN DQM, DEFINITIONS

Providing a good user experience is crucial for the success of any website. For users with limited abilities, browsing a website can be difficult. Improving your website so that it is easy to navigate for all users increases your range of potential customers and improves your SEO¹¹.

What is WCAG?

The word Wide Web Consortium (W3C) has published Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) in order to help businesses make their websites accessible for users with disabilities, or users with limited devices (such as mobile phone and tablets). The latest guidelines released are the WCAG 2.0 on which DQM bases their checkpoints.

What are Accessibility Levels A, AA and AAA?

These levels indicate the degree of compliance. While level A covers the basic needs of a website to be easily accessible, level AA and AAA are based on higher standards. Most businesses aim to achieve a level of at least AA.

What is a Benchmarking Score?

The **Benchmarking Score** will give you an indication of how compliant your website is to WCAG standards. The score ranks form 1 (low) to 10 (high). However, please note that the level AA and AAA contain checkpoints that cannot be tested by scanning your website. For those, you will need to check your pages manually. An example for a manual checkpoint would be, whether your website has supporting audio or whether the colors used in the design are easy to see for a person with impaired vision.

Why Is One Checkpoint Flagged for A Lot of My Pages?

There are a number of reasons why one checkpoint exists on many pages. The first reason could be that the flagged item is a part of your website's template and is shown incorrectly on every page. In this case, fixing the issue in one place will resolve many of your checkpoints at once. Another possible reason could be images without **alt** tags.

What are Alt Tags and Why are They Important?

The alt tag is contained within the image tag ****. Although alt and title are commonly *referred to* as alt tag or alt text and title tag, they are *not* actually tags. Alt and title are *attributes* of the HTML image **** tag.

A complete HTML image **alt** tag is written as follows: The **alt** text (**alt=**") should describe the image and its purpose.

¹¹ The object of Search Engine Optimization (SEO) is increasing targeted internet traffic and ultimately your Return on Investment (ROI). This is best achieved by improving your search rankings, by optimizing your pages, so that search engines can find them.



Images without **alt** tags are highlighted as checkpoints for a few important reasons. In fact, you cannot save changes to your page without an **alt** tag for all of your images.

Alt tags are important for 508 compliance screen readers, such as Job Access with Speech (JAWS), which generates audial speech and Braille output for users with vision impairment.

Images whose intent is strictly design-based, that are in the HTML of your page rather than in the preferred CSS, should have an *empty* alt tag attribute, for example: , so that screen readers will skip over that image.

Alt tags are also important for SEO. The **title** attribute is displayed as a tooltip when a site visitor hovers over the image. It can even be used as an additional call-to-action (CTA), for example: "This service is now offered at a reduced price!"

Alt tags with a **title** attribute also provide a text alternative for search engine crawlers and robots such as Googlebot and can positively impact search engine rankings. Images with correctly-formatted **alt** tag attribute titles influence both indexing and ranking of the page. They also enrich the user experience for those using browsers that cannot process images.

Another reason to use the **title** attribute: Firefox, Chrome, and other HTML W3C standard-compliant browsers won't display hover text for images if the **title** attribute is not present or is empty.

Other Common Compliance Errors

A warning for meaningless phrases such as "Click here." used for link text may seem trivial, but there is an important reason for this compliance flag. The intent is that link phrases should make sense when read out of context, for screen readers.

JAWS has an option to display a list of links on the page to the user. Along with this, JAWS has an option to list all headings on a page, and is a popular way for visually-impaired users to orient themselves and more quickly discover what they're looking for in a document.

The Priority Flag

Issues with priorities are flagged as displayed below.

3.1 All images should specify an "alt" attribute 🏳 580

Non-compliance can be a costly mistake for websites that do not provide accessibility to all.



Where Can I Find Help Understanding a Checkpoint?

At the end of each checkpoint is an information **Why?** icon. Hover over this icon for a quick view of additional information regarding why resolution of this checkpoint is important. Click on the issue itself, and the **Source** tab to directly access the problem area in the code.



12 issues four	ld:				
CONTENT PRESENTATION					
1.10 Use correctly nested headings	(j)				
LINKS		Why?			
2.2 Do not have links without content	()	The "alt" attribute is designed to provide a short text			
IMAGES		description that can be used in place of the image. If the			
3.1 All images 🟳 should specify an "alt" attribute	ن ال	image does not convey any meaning, the "alt" attribute should be left empty.			
TITLE & METADATA	9	This indicates to assistive			
5.6 Pages 🟳 should contain metadata	()	be safely ignored.			

12 issues found:	Source Issues are highlighted Can't see them?
12 135065 100110.	lb-
	Previous Next
1 10 Use correctly	<pre>154. Click the Locations widget, as shown below, or the specific Locations List link from the Locations menu</pre>
nested headings	155.
LINKS	<pre>●156. <pre><pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<pre>\$<</pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre>
2.2 Do not have (i) links without content	<pre>gin-right: auto;"/> 157. 158.</pre>
IMAGES	159. <script type="text/javascript">var hierarchalData = "243300";</script>
24 All images 📴 🔅	160.
should energify an "alt"	161.
attributeo	162.
h	163.
TITLE	164. <div class="row ih-footer-row"></div>
E & Dance	165. <div class="col-xs-12 ih-footer-column"></div>
should contain metadata	166. <div id="ih-page-footer"></div>
description	167.



HOW DOES THE DQM PLATFORM WORK?

The **DQM** platform works on three levels. The **DQM** platform routinely crawls your websites and monitors for any violations based on the rules and priorities in place, *without affecting performance*. Crawl frequency can be adjusted to requirements. Priority issues are flagged for immediate attention.

This information is analyzed, organized and presented in an intuitive and comprehensive online dashboard, known as the **Website Dashboard**, to ensure quality and compliance for your live web presence.

Once installed, the **DQM Page Checker** tab validates any selected website with one click, for these same brand, code, compliance, SEO and compliance risks, using the rules and priorities you have set.

As you are building your site's pages, the **DQM** report accordion validates against all of these configured rules in place, so that you can address any issues prior to publishing.



How Does the Influence Health CrownPeak Digital Quality Management (DQM) Platform Work?



ACCESSING THE DQM PANEL

Let's start at the ground level, the authoring environment for your website. To analyze and correct an individual page in your site, you can use the dockable **Digital Quality Management** panel. With your page open in **Inline** view, you can see problem areas highlighted in yellow. Open the **DQM** panel by clicking **View** > **Digital Quality Management**.

The pie chart shows your **Pass/Fail** statistics visually and in percentages. The blue area and coordinating blue bullets below it, indicate compliant (**Pass**) items. The red chart percentage and bullets are your problem (**Fail**) areas. Use the drop-down menu to view **Pass/Fail** information by category.

Categories are: *All Topics, Accessibility, Brand, Legal, SEO* and *Usability*. The pie chart and bullets update accordingly. Errors and their solutions are defined in readable language with **View More** links for additional information, with **Web Content Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0** section references.



ACCESSING THE DQM WEBSITE DASHBOARD FROM THE CMS APPLICATION

You can view **DQM** information from a couple of places in the CMS application. To quickly overview problem pages in your site and address them from one source, use the **DQM Website Dashboard**.

 To access the DQM Website Dashboard, click the DQM icon from the left-hand panel. This is a link to the dashboard view. Log in with the username and password provided to you by your administrator.





INSTALLING THE DQM PAGE CHECKER IN CHROME

When you receive your **DQM** user account and log in to the platform, you will notice an orange button at the top-center of the **Website Dashboard Overview** page.

If you are in Chrome, first be sure the bookmarks bar is displaying (**Ctrl + Shift + B**). Click the **Install DQM Page Checker** button.



The instruction screen displays. Drag the orange box to the browser bookmarks bar, as shown below, in Chrome. You will see a "+" sign in a white box when you are over the correct area of the bar. Release the mouse button. The install is instantaneous. Click the **Got it!** button to close the instruction screen.



Once you have installed the **DQM Page Checker**, your browser view should have a bookmark, as shown below.





INSTALLING PAGE CHECKER IN IE11

Installing the DQM Page Checker in IE11 involves the same steps, with one exception.

You must first display the IE11 **Favorites** bar, by if you have not already, by right-clicking to the right of the address bar and selecting *Favorites Bar*. This will provide space under the address bar for bookmarks.

Continue, as above using the Install DQM Page Checker button.

	neak.com/siteOverview.vhtr	nl2divisionSafeId=be468c024ae	O z Či 📕 Oversiev for Influence Han	~	Menu bar
	ipeaceon, sice over new and	110111310113011301140-004000024001	Overview for influence rea		Favorites bar
ile Edit View Favorites To	ols Help				Command bar
🖕 Ġ Google				~	Status bar
			Install DOM Page Checker		Snagit
	crownpeak			Hel 🗸	WebEx Productivity Tools
	OVERVIEW ISSUES	SPELLING CONTENT	151		Adobe Acrobat Create PDF Toolbar
				~	Lock the toolbars

This is the **DQM Page Checker installed** in IE11. Go to a site and click it for an instant evaluation, based on the currently configured rules in place.

← → Mttp://dqm.crownpeak.com/siteOverview.xhtml?divisionSafeId=be468c024aet 🔎 ▾ ở
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
👍 G Google 🧟 DQM Page Checker



USING THE DQM PAGE CHECKER

You can now use the **DQM Page Checker** on any site. Go to any site, then click the **DQM Page Checker** bookmark we just created. You can view the issues on that site listed, and highlighted as demonstrated on our demo site, for whichever issue you click.

🖹 DQM Page Checker

You can check any site to compare how your site rates against competitors, without having access to the CMS.

Assists your site editors in both pre and post publication mode.

VIEWING A SINGLE PAGE IN THE DQM DASHBOARD FROM THE CMS AUTHORING ENVIRONMENT

You can also open a single page in the **DQM Website Dashboard** from within the CMS application. From an open page, whether in **Preview**, **Inline** or **Form** view, go to the **Last Published Link** icon and select an option. For our demonstration, we chose **Live**. For an example, see **Where Can I Find Help Understanding a Checkpoint?** under <u>Accessibility in DQM, Definitions</u>.





ANOTHER POINT OF VIEW, THE WEBSITE DASHBOARD OVERVIEW

The online **DQM Website Dashboard** is also known as **The Analyzer**. There are four tabs: **Overview**, **Issues** (with options: *Priority issues, All issues, Issues by topic, Worst pages*), **Spelling**, (with options: *Misspellings by word, Misspellings by page*) **Inventory** and **Accessibility**. You can tackle the largest issues first, by selecting **Worst pages** from the **Issues** tab menu.





Much of your time will be spent within **Issues**. **Issues** can be designated as prioritized. Standards can range from content presentation, links and images to URL structure and cookies. You can view the full list of **Issues**, as shown.

Working with these tools empowers your content management team, by reducing the chance of compliance issues that can be created, so they can focus on creating conversion-centric content for your organization.

You can have as many websites in the platform as desired and administer each one on a separate dashboard.

The following table lists all the rules from this page.

Category	Rule
Content	All pages should contain headings.
Content	All pages should contain an <h1> heading.</h1>
Content	Do not use underlining to highlight text.
Content	Large blocks of content should be broken up using subheadings.
Content	Do not artificially create bullet lists.
Content	Do not use bold tags to emphasize text.
Content	Do not use italic <i> tags to emphasize text.</i>
Content	Do not have multiple headings with identical text.
Content	All data tables should correctly define header rows and column headers.
Content	Use correctly nested headings.
Content	Do not create blinking text.
Content	Do not use justified text.
Content	Paragraphs should be no longer than 100 words in length.
Content	H1 Headings should be no longer than 10 words in length.
Content	H2 Headings should be no longer than 10 words in length.
Content	H3 Headings should be no longer than 10 words in length.
Content	Do not use "Submit" as button text.



Category	Rule
Content	Do not overuse uppercase formatting.
Links	Do not use meaningless phrases such as "click here" or "more" as entire link text.
Links	Do not have links without content.
Links	Indicate when a link will open in a new window.
Links	If an image is the only content in a link it must have "alt" text.
Links	Combine adjacent links together if they have the same destination.
Links	Broken external links.
Links	Broken internal links.
Links	Broken images.
Links	Do not make links too long.
Images	All images should specify an "alt" attribute.
Images	Provide "alt" text for each clickable hotspot within an image map (not for mobile).
Images	Image "alt" attribute should not be empty, except for on known "decorative" images.
Images	Image "alt" text should contain more than one word.
Images	Graphical form buttons should have "alt" text.
Images	Do not provide text alternatives for decorative images.
Images	Images between 50 - 200 KB.
Images	Images between 200 - 500 KB.
Images	Do not use unsuitable image file formats.
Images	Images larger than 500 KB.
Rich Media	PDFs should be tagged for accessibility.
Rich Media	PDFs should have a meaningful title specified.
Rich Media	EMBED tags must have an associated NOEMBED tag.
Rich Media	Specify the file type when linking to non-HTML files.



Category	Rule
Rich Media	Include information about document size within or next to the link.
Title and Metadata	Does the page contain a title tag?
Title and Metadata	Is the title tag populated?
Title and Metadata	Does the title tag contain more than one word?
Title and Metadata	Pages should specify the natural language of a document.
Title and Metadata	Do not use meta refresh with a time limit.
Title and Metadata	Pages should contain metadata description.
Title and Metadata	Limit <title> tags to 60 characters or less.</title>
Title and Metadata	The title tag should contain the company name.
Title and Metadata	Do not use multiple title tags.
Template	Copyright date should be the current year.
Writing Style	Do not use white space characters to control spacing within a word.
Brand	Always capitalize the company name correctly.
Brand	Always spell the company name correctly.
URL Structure and Code	Do not use deprecated tags or attributes.
URL Structure and Code	Use relative font measurements.
URL Structure and Code	Use linked style sheets to control layout and presentation.
URL Structure and Code	If using frames (or iframes) make sure they are titled.



Category	Rule
URL Structure and Code	ID values must be unique.
URL Structure and Code	Do not use "onmouseout" without "onblur".
URL Structure and Code	Do not use "onmouseup" without "onkeyup".
URL Structure and Code	Do not use "onmouseover" without "onfocus".
URL Structure and Code	Do not use "onmousedown" without "onkeydown".
URL Structure and Code	Table summaries must not duplicate table captions.
URL Structure and Code	Do not use scripting to remove focus when focus is received.
URL Structure and Code	Do not use pre-ticked boxes in forms.
URL Structure and Code	Do not use inline styles.
URL Structure and Code	Deliver all code as UTF-8.
URL Structure and Code	Do not use special characters within file or directory names (URLs).
Privacy and Cookies	All pages should contain a privacy link.
Privacy and Cookies	All pages should contain a link to cookies policy.
Privacy and Cookies	Do not use Flash.
Privacy and Cookies	Do not use graphics for spacing.
Privacy and Cookies	Do not use onmouse and onkey triggers within your scripting.
Privacy and Cookies	Set the viewport on pages.



Category	Rule
Privacy and Cookies	Do not disable or suppress the ability to zoom.
Mobile	Do not use nested tables.
Mobile	All pages should have a link to the desktop version of the site.
Mobile	Do not use the title attribute unless on a form input.



Resolving an Issue by Topic in the Website Dashboard

For our demonstration of resolving issues in the **Website Dashboard**, we will look at **Issues > Issues by Topic**, **Links**. We clicked on the **Links** topic, **Do Not Have Links Without Content**. The right side of the page populates with the pages affected and statistics.

Clicking on a link displays the actual live page, where the link is broken, with the issue area highlighted in the **Source** code.

WEB	ITE DASHBOARD		WEBSITE:	
ls	sues by Topic		Influence Health	\bigtriangledown
Access	ibility 3127 Brand 736 Legal 641 SEO 2127 Usability 2813			
Evnan	d all L Cellance all		Download	these issues (xls)
CON		272	Do not have links without content PAGES A	FFECTED
11	All pages should contain boadings		Although these empty links will not be visible on the page, they will be apparent to some users and cause confusion	%
1.1	All pages should contain meanings	204	See WCAG 2.0 2.4.4.	
1.2	An pages should concarn an sint interduing	204	Sort by Date: newest first	
1.3	Do not use underlining to highlight text	0	Choosing the Best Hospital Website Technology	06 Jul 18 🗔
1.4	Large blocks of content should be broken up using subheadings	3	5 Steps to Make Your Hospital Website Perform	06 Jul 18 🗔
1.5	Do not artificially create bullet lists	1	Healthcare Marketing & Technology Weekly News - July 2nd	06 Jul 18 🗔
1.6	Do not use bold tags to emphasize text	10	Healthcare Marketing Strategy Tips	06 Jul 18 🗔
1.7	Do not use italic <i> tags to emphasize text</i>	7	Healthcare CRM Use Case for Patient Engagement	06 Jul 18 🗔
1.8	Do not have multiple headings with identical text	0	WHPRMS 2018	06 Jul 18 🛛 🖓
1.9	All data tables should correctly define header rows and	4	GSHMPR 2018	06 Jul 18 🛛 🖓
	column headers		Josh Klein	29 Jun 18 🗔
1.10	Use correctly nested headings	43	Healthcare Marketing & Technology Weekly News - June 25th	29 Jun 18 🗔
1.11	Do not create blinking text	0	Healthcare Directory Listings Best Practices	29 Jun 18 🗔
1.12	Do not use justified text	0	Get More Return on Your Healthcare Marketing Investments	29 Jun 18 🗔
LINK	5	890	Healthcare CRM for Population Health Initiatives	29 Jun 18 🗔
2.1	Do not use meaningless phrases such as "click here" or "more" as entire link text	3	Join Influence Health at HIMSS 2019!	29 Jun 18 🗔
2.2	Do not have links without content	599	Healthcare Marketing & Technology Weekly News – June 18th	22 Jun 18 🗔
2.3	Indicate when a link will open in a new window	40	Beginner's Guide to Hospital Website Hosting	22 Jun 18 🗔
2.4	If an image is the only content in a link it must have "alt"	6	Millennial Marketing Tips for Healthcare Marketers	22 Jun 18 🗔
	text		Healthcare Marketing Strategy Tips	22 Jun 18 🗔
25	Combine adjacent links together if they have the same	166	Healthcare Marketing & Technology Weekly News – June 11th	15 lu <u>n 18</u>



Analyzing: https://www.influe	ncehealth.com/whi	te-papers/7-steps-to-select-the-right-healthcare-cms
FILE DETAILS ISSU	ES (10)	SPELLING (0)
10 issues found	2.2 Do i	not have links without content Warning
CONTENT PRESENTATION 1.2 All pages should contain an < heading	II> () Previou	Urce Browser Query issue Warning: this page breaks your accessibility target level Issues highlighted
LINKS	79.	href="https://www.facebook.com/InfluenceHealth" target="_blank"><img alt="Influence Health Facebook" border="0" clas<br="" src="https://influenceh
ealth.com/assets/images/homepage/facebook-dark.png"/>s="">
TITLE & METADATA	9 80. 81. 82.	
5.8 The title tag should contain th company name	e () 83. 84.	<form class="form-inline" id="search" role="form"></form>
URL STRUCTURE & CODE	85. 86.	<pre><div class="form-group"> <div class="input-group"></div></div></pre>
9.1 Do not use deprecated tags o attributes	() 87.	<pre><input id="globalSiteSearchBox" onfocus="this.placeholder='' onblur=" placeholder="Search this site" sitesearchbutton').click();}"="" this.placeholder='Search this site" class="form-control ui-autocomplete-input" utorementers" id="globalSiteSearch this site" class="form-control ui-autocomplete-input" </pre></td></tr><tr><td>9.4 If using frames (or iframes) m sure they are titled</td><td>ake ()
88.</td><td>autocomplete= orf onkeydown=if (event.keyLode == 13) {event.preventDetault();document.getElementB
yId(' type="text"/> </pre>
9.5 ID values must be unique	 89. 	<pre><div class="input-group-addon searchBtnContainer"></div></pre>

Although these empty links will not be visible on the page, they will be apparent to some users and cause confusion. For example, some browsers will allow tabbing to empty links and assistive technology will also announce the presence of a link.

In addition, they will be picked up by search engines, which may interpret them as spam and penalise the website.



Click the Information icon ① to view why resolving links without content is important. The text states:

Although these empty links will not be visible on the page, they will be apparent to some users and cause confusion. For example, some browsers will allow tabbing to empty links and assistive technology will also announce the presence of a link.

In addition, links without content will be picked up by search engines, which may interpret them as spam and penalise the website.



Misspellings by Word

Check **Misspellings by Word** under the **Spelling** tab of the **Website Dashboard** application. The misspelled word list for your entire selected site loads in the viewer area. Click the misspelled word and the pages where it appears load in the right panel. Click the page link and as we demonstrated above, you can click the **Source** tab and go directly to the misspelled word in the code without scrolling, or you can view the highlighted text in the **Browser** tab view.



	ISSUES	SPELLING	INVENTORY	ACCESSIBILITY	/
WEBSITE D	^{ashboard} spelli	ings b	y Wor	d	website: Influence Health \bigtriangledown
12 words miss	spelled over 9 pag	es were found at th	e last test. (Download	l as xls) 2	→□ 1 page contains "clinicans"
clinicans despairour				1	Weekly Healthcare and Marketing News Roundup for May 260
eg				1	
hcmkg				1	
hcmkg hcsmSA				1	
hcmkg hcsmSA helath					



In the **Browser** tab view, once the page launches, you can use the standard <Ctrl+F> keyboard command to search the misspelled word on the page.

Click on the **Misspellings Highlighted** button at the top right of the page to display information

Crownpeak DQM is highlighting misspellings on this page. If you can't see them, it is probably because they are:

- within a layer or menu that needs to be clicked on to see
- within code that has been commented out
- only visible to users without stylesheets or Flash
- within an element not designed to appear on the page

Try selecting the **Source** (code) view to see them all.

FILE DETAILS 1 potential misspe	ISSUES (15) Iling	SPELLING (1)		
🔲 clinicans (1)		Source Browser		Misspellings highlighted
		<section-header></section-header>	There's been a lot of talk about the triple aim of healthcare and the need to refocus many of the EHR and healthcare IT solutions on the triple aim. Many of the concepts are really good, but the triple aim is certainly not all encompassing. This was highlighted really well by this infographic (see below) by Caradigm which suggests a 4th aim that should be added: Improving the work life of health care providers, including clinicans and staff.	



Using the search function





Taking Inventory

The **Inventory** tab, as its name implies, lists all the assets of your website by category. Each asset type, such as **Images**, displays the count of that type of asset and is an active link that provides the pages of occurrence and their links.

File Assets are listed by: Images, Acrobat (Pdf) Documents, Word (Doc) Documents, Excel (xls) Documents, PowerPoint (ppt) Documents, Zip Files, CSS Files, All Flash Files, WMV Files, Flv Files, Mp3 Files, Mp4 Files, JavaScript Files.

Content Assets are listed by: All emails used, Title tag frequency, Links to external websites, All data collection forms,

Metadata is listed by: Pages without metadata keywords, Pages without metadata description,

Cookies are listed by: Pages using Facebook widgets that set cookies, Pages using Twitter widgets

ERVIEW ISSUES SPELLING IN	ORY ACCESSIBILITY
/EBSITE DASHBOARD	WEBSITE:
nventorv	Influence Health 🗢
kpand all Collapse all	Download this information (xls)
ILE ASSETS	Images
Veb pages	 Inis list snows all images found. These images can be viewed as a group by clicking "View image report". Clicking on individual images will show information about that image as
mages	649 View thumbnails View filenames
crobat (PDF) documents	3 Sort by Size: biggest first
Vord (DOC) documents	هر اس
xcel (XLS) documents	0
owerPoint (PPT) documents	
ip files	0

that set cookies, JavaScript files setting cookies, Persistent cookies by type, Pages using HTML5 local storage code, Pages using HTML5 session storage code.



The Accessibility Tab

The **Accessibility** tab is a rich source for WCAG compliance information. From this page you can analyze and correct all issues that might limit accessibility to your web content. Your chosen target level is displayed at the top right of the screen. Here, it displays as: *Your target is WCAG Level AA compliance*.

You can choose the target levels to display here, by checking one or all of the following: Level A, Level AA or Level AAA. You can also toggle Hide Success Criterion without automated tests. The top-left panel displays the number of issues for each level and their benchmarking score, with a ranking from 1-10. Each link on the right takes you to the specific W3 Consortium checkpoint. As with all other checkpoint pages, drill down from the topics listed on the left to see additional detail and link to affected pages. Not shown below, the checkmark icon indicates no issues were found, but manual testing is still required.



ebsite dashboard	Display Levels	WEBSITE: Influence Heal	th Target level
Showing data for: 🗹 Level A 🗹 Level AA 🗹 Le	vel AAA		Your target is WCAG Level AA compliance
WCAG Level A Issues WCAG Level AA Issues 42	WCAG Level AAA Issues No automated tests	ACCESSIBILITY BENCHMA	
VCAG compliance even four			
		Orr Hide Su	iccess Criterion without automated tests
Perceivable	found for this succ	emanual content is required. See	rccess Criterion without automated tests
Perceivable Text Alternatives	Where on summand terr are sualishin found for this succ pand for additional	e manual review is required See ess criterion. details.	Increase Criterion without automated tests Inks to WCAG for more details. Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives A Non-text Content	Where an automated tests are available found for this succ pand for additional	e manual review is required See ess criterion. details. 8 124	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives Non-text Content Time-based Media	found for this succ pand for additional	emanual review is required See ess criterion. details. 8 124	Inks to WCAG for more details.
Perceivable Text Alternatives A Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prercorded)	found for this succ pand for additional	e manual conject is conject in the Su ess criterion. details. 124	Inks to WCAG for more details.
Perceivable Text Alternatives A Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A Captions (Prerecorded)	Where an automated tests are available found for this succ pand for additional	ess criterion. details. 0 124	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives A Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A Audio Description or Media Alternative (Prerecorded) A Audio Description or Media Alternative (Prerecorded)	Where an automated tests are available found for this succ pand for additional	e manual review is required See ess criterion. details. 8 124	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives A Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A Captions (Prerecorded) A Audio Description or Media Alternative (Prereco	Where an automated tests are available found for this succ pand for additional	e manual review is required See ess criterion. details. 0 124 0 0 0 0	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives A udio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A udio Description or Media Alternative (Prerecorded) A dudio Description (Prerecorded) Captions (Live) A dudio Description (Prerecorded)	Where an automated tests are available found for this succ pand for additional	e manual review is required See ess criterion. details. 0 124 0 T 0 0 0	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A Audio Description or Media Alternative (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded) A Sign Language (Prerecorded)	Where no summated tests are sualiable found for this succ pand for additional	e manual review in required See I ess criterion. details. 0 124 0 124 0 124 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A Audio Description or Media Alternative (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded) A Sign Language (Prerecorded) A Extended Audio Description (Prerecorded)	Where no summated test are sualiable found for this succ pand for additional	Hide Sk emperature is required Cee I ess criterion. details. 124 0 124 0	Average Compliance
Perceivable Text Alternatives Non-text Content Time-based Media A Audio-only and Video-only (Prerecorded) A Audio Description or Media Alternative (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded) A Audio Alternative (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded) A Audio Alternative (Prerecorded) A Audio Description (Prerecorded)	Where no summated test are sualiable found for this succ pand for additional	Hide Sk emperature is required Cee ess criterion. details. 124 0 124 0	Average Compliance



HOW DOES DQM CHECK FOR BROKEN LINKS?

When **DQM** scans your site, it records every single link it encounters. Each of these links is tested to check whether it should be flagged as broken, using HTTP response codes returned from the server.

The table below details how DQM handles HTTP response codes, by type.

HTTP Response Code	Is marked as a broken link?	What the code indicates
400 - 499	Yes	Codes that fall within this range indicate an error with the page. Common statuses such as 404 fall within this range.
401	No	This code indicates that authentication is needed to reach the page that has not been provided. The classification is "unauthorized".
403	No	This code indicates that the server understood the request, but has refused to fulfil it. The classification is "forbidden".
407	No	This code is similar to the 401 classification, but indicates that the DQM should authenticate itself with the proxy. The classification is "proxy authentication required".
500 - 599	Νο	This code indicates that the server could not service the request made by the DQM. This can occur sporadically when the server gets busy.
300 - 399	Link check is repeated on redirected URL	This code indicates that the server is redirecting the DQM to another page. The DQM link checks the new URL also. To prevent these redirect loops, a rule marks a link visited more than seven times sequentially as broken.
200 - 299	No	Codes that fall within this range indicate a successful response. These site pages are also checked to see if the page in question is an error page.

These default responses can be modified if required. Contact your implementation representative, if you'd like to discuss this.



Other Reasons Links Can Be Marked as Broken

Along with the HTTP server codes above, a link will also be flagged as broken if an error occurs at any part of the page's download process. Reasons for such errors include:

- The Host part of the URL is not valid
- An issue with downloading the page via SSL
- An attempt to connect or read times out. Connects time out at 1 minute, reads time out at 2 minutes
- Illegal characters in the URL
- Illegal characters in the URL that DQM is redirected to
- The response code indicates a redirect, but gives no URL for the redirect

Excluding Links from the Link-Checking Process

DQM can ignore URLs, or parts of URLs that do not need to be checked. For example: login pages. Contact your implementation representative if you would like to add some broken link exclusions to your DQM configuration. For more detail, please see <u>Reducing Errors Reported in Website DQM</u> <u>Reports</u>.



REDUCING ERRORS REPORTED IN WEBSITE DQM REPORTS

Our goal is to make Website DQM reports as meaningful and concise as possible by reducing unnecessary or unwanted errors. Here are some areas that can inflate the error count:

- Third Party code that we do not own or author
- Client-authored documents
- Page source content
- •

Broken links

CMS scans the content of *.pdf and *.doc files for broken links. Broken links from legacy documents included with broken links found on pages can also inflate error count. CMS can exclude certain URLs or parts of URLs, reducing the number of reported errors for broken links.

EXCLUDING LINKS FROM THE LIN	KCHECKING PROCESS
Crownpeak DQM can ignore parts pages). Please inform the Product exclusions to your Crownpeak DC	: of or whole URLs that do not need to be checked (e.g. login : Support team if you would like to add some broken link M configuration.
File	
Article Number	Last Published Date
	6/7/2017 7:54 444

The list of full or partial URLs must be provided and placed on an exclusion list. We can also request that URLs ending with designated extensions be ignored, such as: .pdf, doc, ppt or others. Once provided, DQM will skip scanning for broken links inside these types of client documents.

Alternately, the **2.10 PDFs – Documents with broken links** checkpoint can be suppressed completely on client request.

8	Combine adjacent links together if they have the same destination	16
2.9	Link text longer than 80 characters in length	115
2.10	PDFs - Documents with broken links	289
IMAG	ES	1170
RICH	MEDIA	8387
TITLE	& METADATA	8517

Errors can be sometimes be flagged in more than one checkpoint. Errors flagged by the **2.10** checkpoint can show up in both **2.1 Broken external links** and **2.2 Broken internal links**.



Cautionary Points

When requesting exclusions by full or partial URL, consider if there are other pages or assets that share the full or partial URL with the *.pdf files. If there are other assets that would be affected by an exclusion by URL or partial URL, then be sure to specify the file extension in the exclusion. You can also describe the end result you are hoping to achieve to your implementation representative, who can give you suggestions on how best to exclude specific files.

ADAM Content

Adding American Accreditation HealthCare Commission (ADAM HRA) content will cause error counts in most checkpoints to escalate. This content contains many images and image maps without **alt** attributes. There are also errors that get flagged for **Rich Media** checkpoints.

As we do not have any control over the ADAM code, a request to exclude all ADAM content from being scanned will be needed. ADAM content is onion like; it is not a single product but a collection of product IDs, therefore ADAM exclusions are defined by individual product IDs.

Once ADAM has been successfully excluded from the Website DQM scan, it can again show up if a client adds a new or different product ID. When clients update or add new ADAM products to their site, we need to request a re-scan and provide notification of the new product IDs.

ADAM exclusions can require some "fine tuning". Following, is a helpful chart and some tips that should be helpful.

Indicate the exact product ID (productId) used by the client.

PRODUCT NAME INCLUDED WITH ADAM SE PRODUCTID=127	PRODUCTID
ADAM Health Illustrated Encyclopedia Multimedia	
Thomson Drug Notes	
ADAM Wellness Tools	
ADAM Health Navigator	
ADAM Pregnancy Health Center	
ADAM Complementary and Alternative Medicine	
ADAM Health Illustrated Encyclopedia Multimedia (Catholic filtered)	
Thomson Drug Notes (Catholic filtered)	
ADAM Wellness Tools (Catholic filtered)	
ADAM Health Navigator (Catholic filtered)	



PRODUCT NAME INCLUDED WITH ADAM SE PRODUCTID=127	PRODUCTID
ADAM Pregnancy Health Center (Catholic filtered)	
ADAM Complementary and Alternative Medicine (Catholic filtered)	
MyCheckUps	

Tips

Use the word "article" in the exclusion "rule"; for example, request exclusion of all URLs that have the following string: "article?productId=43", "article?productId=65", "productId=5107", etc.

You cannot refer only to "productId=127"; you must list each productId included in SmartEngage to successfully exclude ADAM content.

Clients might be using older ADAM products or contract directly with ADAM for their 3rd party content. Some URLs for article pages might be using ADAM2004_ or other similar URL parameters. ADAM offers mixed content, so it is a good idea to also exclude the following:

- .adam.com
- www.adam.com
- http://adam.com
- https://ssl.adam.com

The following are examples of other exclusions asked for on behalf of our clients. They are specific to those clients, but will give you an idea of how to request exclusions.

You should exclude code found in HTML comments. At least one client had commented out code in the page source of at least 90% of the pages. The commented-out code contained tags without **alt** attributes. As the code was throwing errors, the following exclusion was asked for:

Please exclude any tag with or without alt attributes found inside a comment tag. The comment tags being used are <!--- --->, but also we should exclude for <!-- --> comments as well. Example, there are places in the page source similar to the following:

```
<!---<div class="cta-overlay"><img class="img-responsive"
src="/assets/images/banners/fpo.jpg" />
<div class="overlay">
<h4>Book Your Yearly Physical Online</h4>
<a class="btn btn-outline" href="/schedule-an-appointment-
online/default.aspx">Request Appointment</a>
</div>
```



</div> </div> </div> </div>--->

Images from cross-site origin or external sources

One client was using forms which included buttons and images from an external source. You can ask to exclude scanning image tags contain specific URLs; for example:

Please exclude any where the src is https://bbox.blackbaudhosting.com/webforms/images/. Since the image is coming from a source over which we have no control to change, we should exclude this from being reported as an error.

Example, the following is found in the page source:

<img

src="https://bbox.blackbaudhosting.com/webforms/images/ajax_loader_border2.gif"
alt="" style="vertical-align: middle;"/>

Default Images Which are Used for Display or Decoration Only

You can exclude certain image tags from the scan, but these images must have an alt attribute in the tag. They must be able to pass the "3.1 All images should specify an "alt" attribute" checkpoint. If the decorative or presentation role image passes the 3.1 checkpoint, but is flagged by the "3.3 Image alt attribute should not be empty, except for on known, decorative images" checkpoint, you can exclude it from the scan by asking for the following:

Any tag where the image file name has "_default_" In the class ih-blog ih-blog-detail is see images that are decorative.

Example, the following can be found in page source:

```
<div class="ih-blog ih-blog-detail">
<img src="/assets/images/news/news_default_front_hospital.jpg" alt="" class="img-responsive"
itemprop="image"/>
```

But, remember: the tag must include an alt attribute (alt=""); this tells accessibility technology to ignore and not attempt to read the alt as it is NULL. The criteria for an image to be considered "decorative" are:

- the image is not used as a link
- the image is decorative; if it was removed, no information would be lost
- the tag includes an empty alt attribute (alt="")



Turning off or Suppressing Checkpoints

Some clients have requested to turn off or suppress certain checkpoints. Before turning off or suppressing a checkpoint, consider the following:

- Is the checkpoint evaluating a key accessibility level? If it is turned off will the website not reach the accessibility goal the client wants to achieve?
- Is the checkpoint being turned off only to cut down on the error count? If so, the error will still be present and it might not be noticed. Also disabling one checkpoint doesn't mean the error will disappear, it might show up in another checkpoint.



OTHER FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQ)

How does the crawl of the site affect performance?

The running site crawler is equivalent to a one-person page hit.

How many checkpoint issues come with the platform?

There are 120 standard checkpoint issues. You can customize these standards for both code and content, including by country. You write the logic. There are also complex checkpoints in place for twitter tags and attributes, client IDs, etc.

What browsers does the DQM Platform support?

The DQM Platform supports the following browsers:

- Internet Explorer 11.0
- Latest version of Firefox
- Latest version of Chrome



MANAGING YOUR SEO

In this section, we will explain what SEO is, why it is important and how to target and resolve SEO issues.

Defining SEO

The object of Search Engine Optimization (SEO) is increasing targeted internet traffic and ultimately your ROI. This is best achieved by improving your search rankings, by optimizing your pages, so that search engines can find them.

Who Manages the SEO?

Managing the SEO typically falls to the Power User, who also creates or modifies **Page** and **Content App** layouts, page content and site-level settings such as **Site Configuration**.

SEO Keywords

There are many SEO strategies site managers use to encourage search engines to rank their pages over competitors, including Pay Per Click (PPC) advertising campaigns. Organic¹² ranking can assist your website getting placed in the top 10 search results for your targeted keywords.

SEO keywords are actually *phrases* that describe your services. These keywords are placed in the <TITLE> as well as <BODY> tags of your page, so that search engines can find them.

Strategically selected, unique two to three-word keywords have the best chance of higher ranking in search results and return the highest quality traffic. You want a keyword phrase that is specific enough to direct your targeted audience (*those most likely to purchase services*) to your site, but that contains words visitors who are searching for your service are *most likely to use*.

Think of how you search, <u>not</u> how you advertise.

¹² Organic search results are returned due to their relevance to search terms, whereas non-organic search results can include Pay-Per-Click advertising.



Keyword Syntax

One example of keyword syntax: (single or multi-words that describe) adjective service location, or location adjective service

- Enter the username (typically your email address) that is associated with your account. An email will be sent to
- **Adjective** describing your service (narrows the search, results in a higher ranking when that term is used in a search, in combination with the remainder of the phrase),
- Your Service (broadens the search, results in a lower ranking when used alone),
- Your Location (narrows the search, results in a higher ranking when that term is used in a search, in combination with the remainder of the phrase).

Example keywords:

- laser back surgery birmingham al
- birmingham al laser back surgery

Enter the CODX V3 DQM

Digital Quality Management (DQM) is a cutting edge, cloud-based platform that provides up-to-theminute reporting, by a library of continually updated digital, technical and legal specification standards on all issues detected on your site, whether it is **Live**, in **Development** or in **Staging**.

CODX V3 DQM provides the only automated digital governance solution that integrates directly with your healthcare web Content Management Solution (CMS), assuring a high quality, consistent customer experience across every page and asset of your site.

With DQM, you can quickly target and resolve SEO issues, which can affect how easily your pages are found, and ultimately conversion rates, using included best practices and rule customization.

Other DQM Capabilities

- View a consolidated analysis of error classifications on all your web pages from a central dashboard, with links to make corrections on the fly.
- Ensure Web Content Guidelines (WCAG) 1.0 and 2.0 and Section 508 accessibility standardscompliant content.
- Easily correct details such as broken links, orphaned pages, readability and multi-lingual misspellings, which can have a strong impact on public perception.
- Quickly target and resolve URL structure and code issues, as well as privacy and cookie policy inclusion and mobile device optimization.
- Automatically monitor your digital properties 24/7, by crawling your sites, regardless of channel, with configurable frequency.
- Protect your brand with reporting for brand violations such as usage of correct logo, color palette, font, punctuation, image assets, consistent use of terminology, language clarity, prohibited terms, etc., across all digital experiences.


• Detect and track key digital assets across all of your sites, making it easy to review and replace files.

Browser Support

CODX DQM supports the following browsers:

- Internet Explorer 11.0
- Latest version of Firefox
- Latest version of Chrome

Logging In to the DQM

Access the new DQM by using a link. http://dqm.crownpeak.com/

INSTALLING THE DQM PAGE CHECKER

When you receive your login for your CMS Crownpeak DQM user account and log in to the platform, you will notice an orange button at the top-center of the **Website Dashboard Overview** page. Installation is simple. Click the Install DQM Page Checker button.



If IE is your current browser, make sure your **Favorites** bar is displaying. In Chrome or Firefox, enable **Bookmarks**.



If you are on Windows 10, using Microsoft Edge and wish to use IE11, simply switch to IE as your default browser.



The instruction screen displays. Drag the orange box to the browser **Favorites** or **Bookmarks** bar. You will see an arrow in a white box when you are over the correct area of the bar. Release the mouse button. The install is instantaneous. Click the **Got It!** button to close the instruction screen.



Using the DQM Page Checker

Once the **DQM Page Checker** is installed, you can go to any site and click it for an instantaneous evaluation, based on the currently configured rules in place.

Quickly target and resolve Search Engine Optimization (SEO) issues, which can affect how easily your pages are found, and ultimately conversion rates, using included best practices and rule customization.

- Quickly target and resolve URL structure and code issues, as well as privacy and cookie policy inclusion and mobile device optimization.
- Automatically monitor your digital properties 24/7, by crawling your sites, regardless of channel, with configurable frequency.
- Protect your brand with reporting for brand violations such as usage of correct logo, color palette, font, punctuation, image assets, consistent use of terminology, language clarity, prohibited terms, etc., across all digital experiences.
- Detect and track key digital assets across all of your sites, making it easy to review and replace files.



ANOTHER POINT OF VIEW, THE WEBSITE DASHBOARD OVERVIEW (18)

- The online **DQM Website Dashboard** also known as the **Analyzer**.
- There are five tabs: **Overview**, **Issues** (with options: *Priority issues, All issues, Issues by topic, Worst pages*), **Spelling**, (with options: *Misspellings by word, Misspellings by page*) **Inventory** and **Accessibility**.

All issues Issues by t Worst pag	SPELLING Misspellings by Misspellings by Misspellings by	CONTE / word / page			There a Overv Spelling	re four tabs: iew, Issues and Content.
WEBSITE DASHBOARD Overview WEBSITE: Demo Site	•	page count 581	issues found 9115	overall ranking 2	Crownpeck Marger	International Application
ISSUES Fix 1,270 priority issues Revert the full list of issues ssaest by topic Worst pages	SPELLING Fix 521 potential misspellings More frequenc: ecologistem (22) ecologistem (12) exter(11) touchpoints (11) eValuent (15)	CONTENT Website inventory All your files and assets, including images, web page PDFs, emails, lites, metadat and cookies Content analysis Content snapisat, using seman technology. Who and what is your website taking about?	s, a ntic	ARCH ch for page content or get information dividual files	Arii 135 UBSS Example Single A Construction of the second	Citck on a link for more details



ISSUES: CATEGORIES AND RULES

Most of your time will be spent within **Issues**. **Issues** can be designated as prioritized. Standards can range from content presentation, links and images to URL structure and cookies. You can view the full list of **Issues**, as shown.

Working with these tools empowers your content management team, by reducing the chance of introducing compliance issues, so they can focus on creating conversion-centric content for your organization.

You can have as many websites in the platform as desired and administer each one on a separate dashboard.

The table on your screen lists all the rules from this page. Use the scrollbar to view them all.

MANAGING YOUR SEO USING THE DQM OVERVIEW DASHBOARD SCREEN

To quickly manage your SEO using the DQM Overview Dashboard screen, go to the **Issues** tab and select **Issues by Topic**.

From this screen, select the **SEO** category.

The issues that are pertinent to SEO optimization are provided by topic: **Content Presentation**, **Links**, **Images**, **Rich Media** and **Titles** and **Metadata**. Each category displays the number of occurrences.

Expand a category to immediately address those issues, in context from the **Overview** page. Let's look at one of the major issues that directly affects not only your site's ranking but user experience and response, **Page Load Performance**. You can speed up page loading time by optimizing your images, with the goal of making file sizes as small as possible, without sacrificing image quality.

Large images slow down page download, which can cause visitors to leave your site and go elsewhere, affecting the *time spent on that page*. This is an important ranking factor that tells Google how relevant your page is to visitors.

Page download speeds of more than one second are subject to search engine penalties when exceeded, and affect not only consumer engagement but whether that consumer will ever return to your site.

> Google estimates that 61% of users are unlikely to return to a mobile site they had trouble accessing and 40% visit a competitor's site instead.



Here, we clicked **Images larger than 500 KB.** View the images under this category by thumbnails or filenames and sort by size or date. Click on an image to see additional properties and a list of how many pages in your site the image is linked to, listed by links to each affected page in your site, so that you can address the issue and see the result.

vervie crow	npeak Domp				Install DQM Page Checker Help Hello Julie 🔞	
OVER		SPELLING	INVENTORY	ACCESSIBIL	Intra Bigli Figge Checker	
WE	BSITE DASHBOARD				WEBSITE:	
ls	ssues by	topic	bic		Influence Health	
Acce	and all Collapse all Collapse	7 Legal 2570 Signal Sig	O 2176 Usability 4	1119 Ity 4119	Download tiDownload these issues (xls)	
со	NTENT PRESENTATION			2	Images larger than 500 KB PAGES AFPAGES AFFECTED	
1.1	All pages should cont	hould contain heading ain headings		0	Large images will slow down page download. Few users are happy to wait on the web, and large images can be particilatify furstrating for users with low bandwidth	
1.2	All pages should cont	ain an <h1> headir</h1>	g broken up using	0	Users do not tend to wait for images to show full Users do not tend to wait for images to show full Users do not tend to wait for images to show full Users do not tend to wait for images to show full	
1.4	Large blocks of conte subheadings	nt should be broke	n up using	2 1255	description : View Nerames	
LIN	IKS IMAGES			1255	Saables Dates service for	
2.1	Do not use meaningle "more" as entire link	ess phrases such as text	"click here" or	359	Jorden Index Index Index Date: oldes first /2017 Size: smallest first 454_390490.jpg	
2.2	3.3 image fait Do not have links wit	⁶ attribute should not i hout content	e empty, except for on	852	2/blog/7-myths-about c-consumers-banner.jpg 25 Aug 17	
2.6	Broken external links			P 22	25 Aug 17 📮	
2.7	3.8 Images be Broken internal links			FD 22	2/grow-brand-withumer-reviews-banner.png 11 Aug 17 📮	
IMA	AGES RICH MEDIA	ger uldit buu ND		434	11 Aug 17	
3.2	Provide "alt" text for	each clickable hots	pot within an	P 40	a/blog/coach-your-marketing-team-banner.jpg 11 Aug 17 🗔	
	imagemap (not for m	obile)			/helping-healthcath-consumers-banner.jpg 11 Aug 17 📮	



Address Metadata Keywords by Page

Remember those keywords we discussed earlier? You can quickly analyze and address their usage in every page of your site, by going to **Issues by Topic** > **TITLE & METADATA**, you can view pages without **Metadata Keywords** or **Metadata Descriptions**, with counts and a link to each individual page. Once a result link is clicked, you can sort page results in ascending or descending order by date, name and size. Rules below are:

- Pages should contain metadata description
- Limit <title> tags to 60 characters or less
- The title tag should contain the company name
- Do not use multiple title tags

rownpe	ak			Install Page Checker H					
OVERVIEW	ISSUES	SPELLING	INVENTORY	ACCES	SIBILITY				
WEBSITE	DASHBOARD				WE	BSITE:			
Issues by tonic					Influence Health				
1550			~						
Accessibility	/ 16 Brand 2 I	Legal 5 SEO 5 L	Jsability 8						
Expand all	Collapse all								
CONTENT	PRESENTATION				0	Click on a link for more d	letails		
LINKS					4				
IMAGES					1				
RICH MEDIA					0				
TITLE & MI	ETADATA				0				
5.6 Pag	ges should contain	n metadata descrip	otion	p	0				
5.7 Lin	hit <title> tags to (</title>	60 characters or le	SS		0				
5.8 The	e title tag should o	contain the compa	ny name		0				



OPTIMAL KEYWORD DENSITY AND MODERN SEO POWER STRATEGIES AND TIPS

Remember those keywords we discussed earlier? You can quickly analyze and address their usage in every page of your site, by topic, with counts and a link to each individual page. Once a result link is clicked, you can sort page results in ascending or descending order by date, name and size. You can achieve maximum search engine effectiveness, by utilizing some strategies with this powerful tool. The following page elements are the best places to use keywords for maximum impact on your rankings.

Meta Description Tag

The content of this tag displays on the search engine results page, below your **Page Title**. This tag should be on every page and customized *by* page. Quickly address all pages without this tag *from one location* by going to **Issues > Issues by Topic > SEO > TITLE & METADATA.** The **Website Dashboard Analyzer** returns results and links for pages breaking configured meta description rules such as:

• Pages should contain metadata description

Title Tag

This is *not* the **Page Title**. This text displays in bolded blue text on Google search engine results pages. Also under **Issues > Issues by Topic > SEO > TITLE & METADATA** are rules such as:

- Limit <title> tags to 60 characters or less
- The title tag should contain the company name
- Do not use multiple title tags



Page Title

This is the actual page title your visitors see on the pages of your site. Don't use images, include your keywords, and enclose in an <h1> tag. Access and address under Issues > Issues by Topic > SEO > Content Presentation.

WEBSITE DASHBOARD ISSUES by topic Accessibility 16 Brand 2 Legal 5 SEO 5 Usability 8	
Expand all Collapse all	
CONTENT PRESENTATION	0
1.1 All pages should contain headings	0
1.2 All pages should contain an <h1> heading</h1>	0



HTML and JavaScript

SEO ranking calculation evaluates how high up on the page keywords appear. Externalizing JavaScript leaves more room in the top portion of your pages' code.

Site Text

Utilize your keywords well in the text of your site, but with an eye toward high readability. 3-6% density is a good rule of thumb to avoid the risk search engine spam labeling.

Keywords in Links

Use your keywords in the *links* on your site and in the **Name Attribute** of your link tags, as well as in your sidebar and footer.



Alt Tags

Each image on your site should have an **Alt Tag**.¹³ **Alt Tags** are important for 508 compliance screen readers, such as Job Access with Speech (JAWS), which generates audial speech and Braille output for users with vision impairment. You can also utilize this descriptive text to include your keywords!

Address every page with missing alt tags by clicking Issues > Issues by Topic > Images.

WEBSITE DASHBOARD			WEBSITE:			
lssues by topic			Influence Health 🗢			
Access	ibility 16 Brand 2 Legal 5 SEO 5 Usability 8					
Expan	d all Collapse all				Download these issues (xls)	
CONTENT PRESENTATION 0			0	Image "alt" attribute should not be empty, except for on known 'decorative' images	PAGES AFFECTED	
LINKS			4	The "alt" attribute is designed to provide a short text description that can be used in place of the image. It	50%	
IMAGES 1		1	should only be left empty if the image does not convey any			
3.2	Provide "alt" text for each clickable hotspot within an imagemap (not for mobile)	P	0	meaning, e.g. is purely decorative. Using show full description		
3.3	Image "alt" attribute should not be empty, except for on known 'decorative' images	þ	1	Sort by Date: newest first	02 Sep 17 🗔	
3.7	Images between 50 - 200 KB		0	Experiences.	0104010	
3.8	Images between 200 - 500 KB		0			
3.10	Images larger than 500 KB	Þ	0			
RICH	RICH MEDIA 0					
TITLE	TITLE & METADATA 0					

Non-compliance can be a costly mistake for websites that do not provide accessibility to all.

Filenames

Filenames of pages and images are another place to include your keywords. **Filenames** display in page URLs and using keywords here can really help your rankings. Optimize those URLs using the **LINKS** category under **Issues by Topic** > **SEO**.

¹³ Alt tags, also known as "alt attribute" and "alt description," is an HTML attribute applied to image tags to provide a text alternative for search engines. Applying images to alt tags such as product photos can positively impact an ecommerce store's search engine rankings.



Your Domain Name

Use your primary keyword in your domain name, if possible for considerable improvement in your rankings, because this implies to the search engine that the entire content of your site is centered around your keyword.

http://www.wordstream.com/meta-tags



SUPPORTED BROWSERS FOR CMS AND CROWNPEAK

Below is a list of the browsers that are currently supported by both CMS and Crownpeak. These browsers have been tested against the latest versions, as well as through an automated process and support both PC and Mac operating systems.

- Latest version of Chrome (Chrome 67)
- Internet Explorer 11.0
- Latest version of Safari

QUESTIONS?

While one of the most obvious advantages of CMS's features is its ease of use, we understand that you may have questions. Should you need additional training on a specific capability of the CMS application, or just need to develop a deeper understanding of how to most effectively wield its powerful potential, please reach out to our responsive delivery or support teams.